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• PART I • 
l NTRODUCTORY SECTION 

Black HIii Visitors Center offers the public nature center exhibits and sweeping vistas of Little Seneca Lake 



MN 
THE [ MARYL~ND-NATIONAL 

pp 
CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSIOr 

6611 Kenilworth Avenue • Riverdale, Maryland 2073 

~Jc 
September 26, 2003 

Commissioners: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 
Commission ("the Commission") for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 is hereby submitted. This Report 
was prepared by the Commission's Finance Department, in accordance with the provisions of Article 28, 
Sections 2·113 and 7-107, of the Annotated Code of Maryland. Responsibility for the completeness and 
reliability of all the information presented, including all disclosures, rests with the Commission. We assert that 
to the best of our knowledge and belief, the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects and is 
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position changes in financial position of the 
governmental activities, business-type activities and various funds of the Commission in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). All disclosures necessary 
to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Commission's financial activities have been included. 

To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the Commission has 
established an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the Commission are protected 
from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the 
preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The internal control structure is designed to 
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable 
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) 
the evaluation of costs and benefits requires business judgment by management. 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial and 
Statistical. The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the Commission's background and 
organization, and the Commission's program highlights. The Financial Section includes the basic financial 
statements, and the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, as well as 
the auditors' report on the financial statements and schedules. As part of the Financial Section, GAAP 
requires that management provide a narrative Introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal 
is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The Commission's MD&A 
can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. The Statistical Section includes 
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. 

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The Commission selected 
the accounting firm of KPMG LLP. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance 
that the financial statements of the Commission for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 are free of material 
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditors 
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that 
the Commission's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 are fairly presented in 
conformance with GAAP. The Independent auditors' report is presented as the first component of the 
Financial Section of this Report. 

The Commission is normally required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the 
Single Audit Act of 1996, as revised and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. This audit is not required this year because of 
the relatively low level of federal grant awards received by the Commission. 
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The Commission is also required to file a Uniform Financial Report with the Maryland State Department of 
Legislative Services by November 1 of each year. 

The Commission 

The Commission is a body corporate of the State of Maryland established by the Maryland General Assembly 
in 1927. The Commission is a bi-county agency serving both Montgomery and Prince George's Counties. It is 
empowered to acquire, develop, maintain and administer a regional system of parks in the defined 
Metropolitan District in Montgomery and Prince George's Counties, and to prepare and administer a general 
plan for the physical development of a defined Regional District for the two Counties. The Commission also 
conducts the recreation program for Prince George's County. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Commission's financial planning and control. The 
Commission maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual 
appropriated budget approved by the Montgomery County and Prince George's County governments. 
Activities of the General Fund, which include a transfer for debt service expenditures, are included in the 
annual appropriated budget. Project length financial plans are adopted for the Capital Projects Funds. The 
level of budgetary control (the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is 
established within each individual account in the General Fund. Budget-to-actual presentations for all five 
accounts of the General Fund are presented in Noto 6 in the basic financial statements. 

The Commission maintains an internal auditing division that reports to the Secretary-Treasurer. This staff 
performs internal audits throughout the Commission's offices and facilities. All internal control evaluations 
occur within the above framework. We believe that the Commission's Internal accounting controls adequately 
safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. 

Factors Affecting Flnanclal Condition 

The Commission's financial condition is positive as a result of a stable primary revenue source and the 
Commission's conservative fiscal management policies. The assessable bases in both counties continue to 
experience modest growth, and collections, including Interest and penalties as a percent of the levy, are 
consistently above 99%. The Commission prepares quarterly and long-term financial projections to help guide 
current year and future years' expenditures based upon anticipated revenue sources. In addition, the 
Commission adopted a comprehensive fund balance policy in fiscal year 2000 to provide a cushion against 
unforeseen expenditures or revenue shortfalls in each fund. The Commission's fiscal year 2003 General Fund 
budget basis ending fund balance was in excess of $39.8 million. 

Along with the Commission's internal financial management policies, spending affordability guidelines continue 
to be provided by Montgomery County Government for the Commission's Montgomery County operations, and 
by a Spending Affordability Committee for the Commission's Prince George's County operations. More 
detailed information on the financial outlook is provided in the Management's Discussion and Analysis section 
of this Report. 

Major Initiatives 

The Commission enjoyed an excellent program year In fiscal year 2003. The major accomplishments of the 
Commission are set forth in the Program Highlights section of this Report. 

Cash Management 

The Commission actively manages a cash and investment program. The primary objectives of the program 
are the preservation of capital, providing liquidity to meet financial obligations, and the maximization of 
investment return consistent with the risk limitations and investment guidelines per the Commission's 
investment policy. Commission investments are limited to those authorized by the Annotated Code of 
Maryland and the Commission's investment policy. 
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The Commission's accounting system operates under a pooled cash fund concept. This method reduces the 
efforts needed to manage cash and investments since bank accounts and investments are consolidated in a 
Treasurer's Fund instead of having separate bank accounts and investments for each fund. Investments of 
the Treasurer's Fund earned interest income of $2,031,000 during fiscal year 2003. The average rate of 
return on the Commission's cash and investments during fiscal year 2003 was 1.45%. 

Risk Management 

The Commission is a participant in the Montgomery County Self-Insurance Program (the "Program'') and is 
therefore self-insured for most claims filed by third parties. The Commission has an in-house Risk 
Management and Safety Office which develops and implements the internal loss control program to reduce 
workplace accidents and injuries. Commercial policies provide f urthcr liability and property loss cove rag~ for 
claims arising out of real and personal property damage (over $100,000), operation of a public airport, and 
other specific items of personal property. 

Pension and Other Post Employment Benefits 

The Commission sponsors a single employer defined benefit pension plan, The Maryland-National Capital 
Park and Planning Commission Employees' Retirement System (ERS), included in this report as the 
Employees' Retirement Pension Trust Fund. Each year an independent actuary engaged by the ERS 
calculates the amount of the annual contribution that the Commission must make to ERS to ensure that the 
plan will be able to fully meet its obligations to retired employees on a timely basis. As a matter of policy, the 
Commission fully funds each year's annual required contribution as determined by the actuary. As a result of 
this conservative funding policy, the Commission has succeeded, as of July 1, 2002 In funding 118. 7% of the 
actuarially accrued liability to employees. 

The Commission also provides health and dental care benefits for certain retirees and their dependants. At 
the end of the fiscal yoar, 569 retired employees received these benefits, which are financed on a pay-as-you· 
go-basis. GAAP does not require governments to report a liability in the financial statements in connection 
with an employer's obligation to pay these benefits. The Commission has elected to establish a trust fund for 
payment of future benefits. Amounts placed here are not based on any actuarial studies. No contributions 
were made to this fund in 2003, and benefits totaling $2,757,000 were paid from the fund. Benefits for 2004 
are again to be paid by this fund. The fund had net assets of $6,120,000 at June 30, 2003. 

Other Information 

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence In Financial Reporting to the Commission for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. The Commission has received this award continuously since fiscal year 
1973. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the Commission must publish an easily readable 
and efficlently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This Report satisfied both GAAP and 
applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement Is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements, and we 
are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another Certificate. 

In addition, the Commission also received the GFOA's Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its 
annual budget for fiscal year 2003. The Commission has received this award continuously since fiscal year 
1987. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the Commission's budget 
document was judged to be proficient in several categories including policy documentation, financial planning 
and organization. 
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Commission Background and Organization 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission is a body corporate of the State of 
Maryland, established by the Maryland General Assembly in 1927. The laws governing the Commission 
were codified in 1959, recodified in 1975 to be Article 660 of the Annotated Code or Maryland and again 
in 1983, to be Article 28. 

The Commission is a bi-county agency, empowered to acquire, develop, maintain and administer a 
regional system of parks in a defined Metropolitan District within the Maryland Counties (Montgomery and 
Prince George's) adjacent to the District of Columbia. The Commission is also empowered to prepare 
and administer a general plan for the physical development of a larger Regional District in the same area. 

As development and urbanization of the area have progressed, the two Districts have been enlarged by 
the General Assembly. They now embrace all of Maryland's Montgomery and Prince George's Counties, 
except for certain incorporated municipalities In each County and, for the Metropolitan District only, 
Election Districts No. 4 and No. 8 In Prince George's County. 

Responsibility for public recreation in Prince George's County and the County Recreation Department 
was transferred to the Commission in July, 1970 as a result of legislative action. This legislation provided 
that taxes to support recreation be imposed County-wide and that the County Council may require the 
Commission to institute new recreation programs. The County Executive appoints a Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board which works closely with the Commission In setting policy. 

The Commission consists of ten members, five appointed by Montgomery County and five by Prince 
George's County. In Montgomery County, all five of the Commissioners are appointed by the County 
Council and confirmed by the County Executive. Montgomery County Commissioners may not be 
appointed for more than two consecutive terms. In Prince George's County, all five of the Commissioners 
are appointed by the County Executive and confirmed by the County Council. Each County designates 
one of its Commissioners for the position of Chairman of their respective Planning Board. The 
Commission elects one of such designees as its Chairman and the other as its Vice-Chairman. Under 
the Commission's rules of procedure, the Chairmanship and Vice-Chairmanship of the Commission rotate 
annually between the two designees. Terms of office are staggered and no ·more than three members 
from each County may belong to the same political party. 

The Commission coordinates and acts on matters of interest to both Counties. Two regional offices are 
maintained, one in each County. The Commission meets once each month regularly, the site of the 
meetings alternating between the two regional offices. The members of the Commission from each 
County serve as separate Planning Boards to facilitate, review and administer the matters affecting only 
their respective County. To carry out their functions, the County Planning Boards meet at least once a 
week. The County Councils set priorities for the Planning Boards' park and planning operations through 
their annual determination and periodic review of the Commission's operating and capital improvement 
budgets and work programs. 

The Commission administers a park system that currently contains over 56,000 acres. It is composed of 
stream-valley parks, large regional parks, neighborhood parks and park-school recreational areas. Its 
staff consists of over 2,079 career employees - planners, park and recreation administrators, park police 
and administrative staff. In addition, It employs approximately 5,170 seasonal workers, primarily for its 
numerous park and recreation programs. 

The operating and administrative functions of the Commission are financed primarily by property taxes 
levied for the Commission by the two Counties. The Commission has the authority to sell general 
obligation bonds to fund approved park acquisition and development projects. 
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FY 2003 Program Highlights 

The Commission completed its memorable series of successful 751
h anniversary promotional events during fiscal yea 

2003 (FY03), using "Turning Visions into Reality" as the unifying theme, with thousands attending a gala ctosin! 
ceremony and reception at Watkins Regional Park's Festival of Lights and Nature Center. After three years of drough· 
the Commission weathered crippling snowstorms followed by months of record rainfall, assisted in the grippin· 
regional sniper investigation, launched the SmartLinks online registration for parks and recreation classes, expande 
the vast amount of information available to the public on our website, www.mncppc.org, and extended the network c 
hiker/biker trails through natural areas linking urban, suburban and rural communities to mass transit, cultural sites an 
shopping. 

To focus on improving customer service and achieving greater efficiency, the Commission has launched a campaig 
for official accreditation through the national Commission for Accreditation of Parks and Recreation Agencies (CAPR.' 
which sets strict standards for every facet of operations: financial management; planning; human resources; safety an 
security; risk management; programs and services; agency authority, rote and responsibility; facility and land us 
management; organization and administration; and evaluation and research. 

Serving a diverse, multicultural community of more than 1.7 million residents, many of who do not speak or reac 
English well, led the Commission to add online translation services to the Commission's web site using Altavista's freE 
Babblefish translation servlco. Languages now available to those who wish to translate our web site atmos 
Instantaneously include: Spanish, French, Italian, Portuguese, German, Korean, Chinese and Japanose. 

After years of planning, land acquisition, community outreach, design, and development, the Commission opened i 
spectacular Ridge Road Recreational Park on 56 acres In Germantown to serve the community's needs for acti, 
recreation in a rapidly growing area. Included in the Park are: four lighted and irrigated ballfields, an in-line skatir 
rink, tennis courts, a network of trails, a dog exercise area, a colorful playground, picnic shelters, two restroo 
buildings and lighted parking for 580 cars. In addition, the Commission opened many renovated playgrounds ar 
expanded parks during the year to great fanfare and community appreciation. 

Prince George's County Department of Parks and Recreation 

Meeting Customer Needs Through Innovative Service and Technology: The Department of Parks and Recreati• 
serves over 812,000 residents in a diverse socio-economic area, and maintains a long-standing reputation as 
national leader. Meeting the needs of an ever-growing and diverse population Is accomplished by highly train• 
professional staff who are innovators in the leisure services field, and committed to enhancing customer service. 1 

part of its commitment to service, the Department continued to expand upon the success of tho automat• 
SMARTlink registration program, designed to help the public find classes and activities with ease, and register on Ii 
or by telephone. Approximately 15% of our customers used this self-service system during initial registration perioc 
continued growth is expected and additional business opportunities are being explored. The Department's establish 
web site, www.Qgparks.com, continued to be enhanced, and offered vast amounts of information to the public with t 
click of a mouse-from trail maps to rental facility information. 

Enhancing the Parks System: The Department completed work on projects designed to Gnhance the 24,000-ac 
parks system, including; Hilmar Suitland Community Park School; the Ernest Everett Just Community Park School; t 
Allentown Fitness and Splash Park; the College Park Dog Park; the Temple Hills Community Center addition; a 
improvements to the marquee, landscaping, and parking at the Prince George's Sports & Learning Complex. Desi 
projects included the Clearwater Nature Center renovation and playground retrofits. Construction projects WE 

underway at the Fort Washington Forest Elementary School and Huntington Community Centers; North Forestv 
Elementary School gymnasium; and the Prince George's Sports & Learning Complex Learning Center additic 
Funding for some projects came by way of grants, including $2 million In Rural Legacy Funds; $1.3 million for t 
Gateway Trails initiative; and $4.3 million from Maryland Program Open Space for park acquisition and developme 
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Staging Outstanding Community Events: Popular events drew thousands of participants, including the annual 
Hispanic Festival, which hosted over 10,000 people; the 22nd annual Kinderfest; the Montpelier Spring Festival; 
Marlboro Day; the Harlem Renaissance Festival; and the 6th annual Teen Cotillion. Watkins Regional Park's Festival of 
Lights dazzled more than 110,000 visitors, including residents and tourists, and the Department assisted with a 
multitude of community events throughout the county attracting both newer and long-time residents. 

Furnishing Recreational Opportunities for All: Thousands of community recreation programs met the interests of 
all ages, including teen and senior centers, day camps and summer playgrounds, and a wide variety of classes and 
popular off-site trips and excursions. Inclusion services were provided as an important part of a continuum of services 
for people with disabilities. Countless fitness enthusiasts improved their health and wellness at facilities offering the 
best in golf, swimming, tennis, weightlifting, running, hiking, and bicycling. Delighted users of our extended trails 
system traversed pristine natural areas of the county, with links to mass transit, cultural sites, and major shopping. 

Providing Quality Childcare Services: The Prince George's Employees' Child Care Center in Upper Marlboro, and 
the childcare facility at Glenridge Elementary School, operated at full capacity, continuing to serve as models for child 
care centers across the nation. Staff at these facilities were frequently tapped to share their expertise as board 
members for a number of child-related organizations. Excellence in childcare was carried further as lunches were 
served to needy children at numerous summer program sites. Pre-schools, before- and after-care and Kids Day Out 
programs satisfied the needs of both parents and children for safe, educational, and enjoyable activities. 

Offering Varied Sports and Leisure-Time Activities: The Sports/Permit Division administered a diversified program 
of countywide sports for youth and adults. Thousands of people permitted park facilities and the popular garden plots. 
The division also administered the Prince George's County Boys and Girls Club program, offering team recreation 
opportunities for thousands of youth. 

Supporting the Arts and Building Cultural Heritage: Arts and cultural offerings were well attended, as the Arts and 
Cultural Heritage Division hosted local and nationally acclaimed artists and performers who thrilled audiences and 
gallery visitors. A major public art exhibition, Birds-I-View, was completed and a "flock" of artist-designed birds placed 
at high-visibility points throughout the County. The Clarice Smith Performing Arts Center at the University of Maryland 
continued to host numerous on-site M-NCPPC programs, special events, and performances. The Show Place Arena 
hosted the NCAA Division 1 Patriot League Conference Basketball Tournament. Montpelier Cultural Arts Center 
released its fourth CD, Ron Holloway and Friends, Live at Montpelier, to critical acclaim and outstanding sales. 

Preserving and Protecting Natural and Historical Resources: Natural and historical interpretive programs again 
proved popular, with high attendance at special events like the Patuxent 1 OK Run for WIidiife. Special projects included 
the building and dedication of the James 0. Hall Research Center at the Surratt House Museum and the opening of 
the Tobacco Museum at the Patuxent Rural Ute Museum. Park naturalists continued the wild rice and wetlands 
restoration project at Patuxent River Park. Park Rangers provided a wide range of services including conservation and 
wildlife projects, and provided conservation and interpretation education for over 5,000 Prince George's County Public 
School students. 

Keeping Parks Secure: Park Police maintained an around-the-clock watch at neighborhood parks, community 
centers, regional parks, and special facilities. Use of Mobile Data Terminals in police vehicles allowed officers direct 
access to records checks, thereby reducing time to verify information. Officers continued to assist with mentoring 
programs, the Drug Abuse Resistance Education program, a Halloween Safety Program, and the "Eddie the Eagle" 
Gun Safety Program. Volunteers attended the popular Park/Community Volunteer Academy to become trained to 
assist Park Police as another set of eyes and ears throughout the park system and at special events. 

Maintaining Safe and Attractive Parks and Facllltles: The task of maintaining a 24,000-acre park system and 
ensuring that all facilities and parks are in pristine condition for park patrons falls to the Maintenance and Development 
(M&D) Division. With several heavy snow storms blanketing the area, M&D staff was called into action to plow major 
county roads, totaling over 6,000 man-hours working 12-hour shifts per day. The M&D facility was a test site for 
implementation of M-NCPPC's energy cost reduction and staff awareness programs, and the FASTER System for 
vehicle maintenance work orders provided connectivity to satellite garages to further enhance fleet maintenance. 
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Prince George's County Planning Department 

Providing Community Outreach and Publlc Information: PlanningDotCom, a new community outreach an 
education component designed to enhance the public's knowledge of and participation in planning, zoning an 
development processes was launched, with workshops held throughout the county. 25,000 copies of a brochur 
describing the work of the department were published and distributed to the public. The delivery of, and public acceE 
to, land-use information was enhanced with planning Information services made avallable in a more accessible an 
user-friendly environment on the lower level of the County Administration Building where more than 1,500 custome, 
each month can research zoning and property information; purchase property maps, plans and studies; and obta 
Information on planning, zoning and development regulations and processes. Information is also available c 
www.mncppc.org/pgco, which may be translated into eight languages and which receives more than 350,000 month 
hits. The department also continues to serve as a resource to county and municipal governments, compiling ar 
disseminating census data in various formats and by geographic area. 

Planning for Quality Communities: Staff continued work on master plans, sector master plans, sectional m1; 
amendment (SMA) revisions, specialized planning studies and land use legislation. The 2002 General Plan we 
approved by the County Council, which also enacted zoning ordinance legislation for aviation policy areas. Publ 
participation and plan preparation proceeded on the Morgan Boulevard-Largo Town Center Metro and Prince George 
County Gateway Arts District Sector Plans/SMAs, and the Suitland and Riverdale Park Mixed-Use-Town Center Zone 
Completed projects included: Biennial Growth Policy Update, Central Patuxent River Special Area, Accokeek Tov 
Center, Strategic Plan for Transit-Oriented Development, and the West Hyattsville Transit-Oriented Developme 
Studies. New Master Plans/SMAs were initiated for Bowie and Vicinity, and Henson Creek-South Potomac, and nE 
studies begun for Seat Pleasant/Glenarden Martin Luther King, Jr. Highway and the Annapolis Road (MD 45 
Corridor. Studies continued on: Tuxedo Road-Arbor Street-Cheverly Metro Station Area Sector Plan/SMA, Hyattsvi 
M-UTC Zone Development Plan and the Purple Line/International Corridor. 

Planning for Public Facllitles: Public Facilities Planning staff completed a report for the Police Department 
support of their campaign for accreditation, continued to provide support for the School Construction Manageme 
Team and initiated a fair share fee system to assist the Fire Department in funding the construction of Emergen 
Medical Services Facilities. 

Revitalizing and Preserving Older Communities: Planning staff working in the Redevelopment Authority (R 
continued to advance a number of projects and programs within older communities, including State certification of ti 
Anacostia Trails Heritage Area (ATHA). Major grants were obtained from the Maryland Heritage Areas Authority, ti 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and the Maryland Community Legacy Program, and O\I 

$1 million in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds were secured for the acquisition of propertie 
relocation of tenants and construction of projects. In addition, the Neighborhood Improvement Grant Program (NIG 
funded small projects designed to visually enhance older communities. 

Developing Efficient Transportation Systems: Transportation Planning staff supported the Morgan Boulevard/Lar 
Town Center Metro and Cheverlyfruxedo Sector Plans, and major planning studies for the Capital Beltw 
Corridor/Purple Line, 1-95/Greenbelt Metro Access, 1-95/Contee Interchange and the MD 210 Corridor. The Coun 
initiated the update to the Countywide Master Plan of Transportation in September 2002. and the Planning Board hE 
a Public Forum in May 2003. Planning staff provided support to the Bicycle and Trail Advisory Group, updated t 
traffic impact guidelines and continued work on a new transportation model. In addition, traffic forecasts for the desi 
of three CIP projects were prepared or updated and 54 traffic impact studies for development activities WE 
processed. 

Preserving and Protecting the Environment and Historic Properties: The Environmental Planning Secti 
assisted in the preparation of grants for the FY04 State Rural Legacy Program and for the statewide Scenic Bywa 
Program. Work was initiated on the Countywide Green Infrastructure Plan and new outdoor lighting standards 
reduce light pollution. Work was completed on the FY02 Forest Conservation Annual Report, Environmental lmpc 
Reports for sand and gravel mining, and rubble landfill special exceptions. Historic Preservation staff preparec 
historic district nomination to the National Register of Historic Places for the Town of North Brentwood. The Cour 
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Historic Preservation Commission classified two historic resources as Historic Sites, recommended that two historic 
properties be classified as Historic Sites through sector plans and determined five Environmental Settings. 

Achieving Better Customer Service Through Technical Innovation: The Data Systems Section successfully 
migrated all desktop computers to the Windows 2000 Operating System and moved a network file server from the 
Novell to Windows environment. Scanning and indexing of permit applications as part of final implementation of the 
Permit Tracking applications began, enabling concurrent review of permits by the Department. 

Instituting State-of-the-Art Mapping Systems: The November 2002 roll-out of PGAtlas.com, the Department's GIS 
website, provided the citizens of Prince George's County (and the world) with ready access to County GIS data 24 
hours a day. Department staff, County staff, residents, and businesses are all using this application regularly. 

Promoting Responsible Development: Several hundred applications for zoning map amendments, special 
exceptions, conceptual and detailed site plans, and preliminary and final plats of subdivisions, along with over 19,000 
permits of all types, were reviewed and analyzed, and expert professional advice provided to decision makers. A 
project undertaken to image new permit applications electronically will allow for simultaneous rather than sequential 
review and improve turn-around time. Permit status and comments are now available on the web, as a major 
customer convenience. Development review fees, raised January 1, 2003, are anticipated to generate nearly a million 
dollars annually in revenues. Development Review Division staff also provided support for two major County 
campaigns designed to streamline government operations: the Zoning Ordinance Task Force and the Permit Review 
Committee. 

Montgomery County Department of Park and Planning 

Protecting Important Open Space for the Future: In this third year of the Legacy Open Space program, staff 
negotiated contracts on 407 additional acres of sensitive natural resources, drinking water protection lands, and urban 
open space. Easements were placed on 850 acres, totaling more than 2,400 acres protected to date. In FY03, the 
Commission received the first donation to Legacy, a 106-acm parcel in the Broad Run watershed. To protect the 
drainage to the Rocky Gorge Reservoir on the Patuxent River, the Commission purchased the 41-acre Maiden's Fancy 
property. The Commission made first payments on two key installment contracts: the Wohlfarth property in urban 
Chevy Chase and the 258-acre Serpentine Barrens, a rare forest ecosystem in Potomac. Through Maryland's Rural 
Legacy program, more than 850 acres in the Hoyles Mill Diabase-North are now in conservation easement, 
successfully protecting those forest resources. 

Keeping Montgomery County Moving: As the County's source of transportation forecasting and analysis, the 
Department continues to strive for the best approaches to knowledge-based decision-making. The Department has 
recently developed a Geographic Information Systems (GIS) database to store and analyze information on more than 
700 County signalized intersections. Staff is investigating a new transportation model to provide peak hour and 
average daily traffic forecasts and permit changes in the regional transportation network to be efficiently incorporated. 
Staff also reviews all major County and State transportation project studies and designs, and supports all requests 
from the County Council and Department Divisions for transportation analysis and recommendations. 

Promoting Development Patterns Concurrent with Envlronmental Protection: Recent master plans for the Upper 
Rock Creek, Olney, and Damascus areas will include guidelines that sustain and improve ecological systems and 
environmental quality. As the regulatory agency and administrator for the County's Forest Conservation Law, our 
forest conservation program goal is to plant trees on 600 additional acres each year using native trees grown in Park 
nurseries. The U.S. Department of Environmental Protection has honored the Commission as a clean water partner for 
our work in the Patuxent watershed. 

Conserving our Past: A commitment to historic preservation extends to a leadership role in Heritage Tourism. This 
plan's adoption will reinforce the conservation and interpretation of significant historic resources. Work continues 
through the Locational Atlas of Historic Sites as the Planning Board reviews master plans. Staff continues work on an 
amendment to the Master Plan of Historic Preservation to consider designating additional historic sites. Staff has used 
the Commission's GIS to create mapped information on historic sites. 
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Streamlining the Development Approval Process: The Department continues to Implement new tracking anc 
information reporting systems to improve data collection and reporting of development activitiQS. Advancement~ 
continue in Integrating the new computer system with the GIS mapping program. Staff has developed computeri.tec 
application forms and is moving toward electronic submission of applications and electronic transmission of applicatio1 
data to various reviewing agencies. Staff continues to work with the building industry to improve the developmcn 
process. 

Planning for Metro Station Areas: For more than 30 years, the Department has been planning for dens, 
development in Metro station areas. Sector plans for the Shady Grove and Twinbrook Metro station will be updated i 
2003. Continuing to provide opportunities for housing near the Metro station areas of Bethesda, Friendship Height~ 
Grosvenor, and White Flint is also a primary focus of the work program. The Department continues plans to revitaliz 
Wheaton and Silver Spring Metro areas. 

Supporting Employment Center Development in the 1-270 Corridor: Updating the mastQr plans for the Shae 
Grove, Gaithersburg Vicinity, Twinbrook, and Germantown areas is Included in the 2003 work program. Planne1 
recognize the 1-270 Corridor competes with jurisdictions in the W ashlngton area and across the country. According! 
the program supports advanced technology and biotechnology industries, provides opportunities for affordab 
housing, links cultural facilities, preserves open space, increases recreation opportunities, and improves t~ 
transportation system. 

Strategies for Older Communities and Commercial Centers: Maintaining and enhancing older communities is 
primary goal. Older communities provide a stable housing resource for the County. Strategies to maintain t~ 
character of these communities include improving bicycle and pedestrian connections, encouraging public investme 
in community facilities, reducing the impact of highway Improvements on existing residential areas, and maintainir 
high quality community design. Existing commercial centers provide important retail services and contribute to tt 
vitality of adjacent residential neighborhoods. Recent planning for these centers accommodates a greater mix of us1 
and improves the pedestrian connections to adjacent communities. Increasing opportunities for housing in old 
commercial centers Is a focus of the planning program. New overlay zones, revised parking standards, and new strE 
standards will augment and enhance these commercial centers. 

Protecting Rural Communities: Protecting rural communities is an important planning goal in Montgomery Coun 
Accordingly, methods to augment and enhance the rural landscape, maintain a vital agricultural economy, preser 
important water resources such as the Patuxent River, and protect the character of rural communities have be 
established. Planning for rural areas includes creating new subdivision regulations, establishing new street standarc 
and revising sewer policies. 

Geographic Information Systems and Research: The GIS team's work program for FY03 has focused on acces~ 
the GIS through the Internet and database development and maintenance. Web-based projects include maps of p, 
trails, park ballfields/facilities, and countywide base maps. Database maintenance programs and processes are be 
upgraded to improve data quality and staff efficiency. In FY03, research activities have included: the annual update 
the economy study, completion of the 2003 Census Update Survey (analysis of results in FY04), demographic a 
market studies supporting two master plans, staff support of affordable housing initiatives, the 2003-2005 Ann 
Growth Policy Policy Element, and ongoing work on the Planning Board's website, www.mc-mncppc.org. 

Parks' Capital Improvements Program (CIP): Significant FY03 accomplishments include completing constructi 
renovation, and/or design of the following facilities: Ridge Road Recreational Park Phase II, Flower Hill Local Park, c 
parks in Wheaton and Black Hill Regional Parks and Ridge Road Recreational Park, natural surface trails in Sern 
Greenway and Magruder Branch, roller hockey rinks at Rock Creek Hills and Columbia Local Parks, tennis , 
basketball courts at seven parks and play equipment at four parks. In addition, the Department completed the fac 
plan for Matthew Henson Hard Surface Trail and completed designs for Montgomery Village Local Park, Jesup e 
Local Park renovation, and Woodlawn Cultural Park's water and sewQr. Also completed are facility or developm 
plans for: East Norbeck Local Park, Black Hill Regional Park trail renovation, Cherry Avenue Connector to Sligo Cr, 
Trail, Rickman Therapeutic Riding Center, and Woodlawn Barn. Construction began on: Black Hill maintena1 
facility, Woodstock Equestrian Park, lighting at Wheaton Regional Park, Blair High School Baseball Field, a car bar 
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the National Capital Trolley Museum, Crystal Rock Trail, storm water management ponds, and resurfacing of Little 
Falls Parkway. 

Public Private Partnerships: The Department continues to pursue public/private partnerships with non-profit groups 
creating new and expanded recreational opportunities in parks. Examples include: Improvements to Meadowbrook 
Stables, and the Rickman Therapeutic Riding Center. In addition, the Red Wiggler Foundation is developing an 
environmentally sensitive farming operation for physically and mentally challenged children at Ovid Hazen Wells Special 
Park. 

Volunteers: During the past year the Volunteer Services Office has continued to expand the Department's volunteer 
program, despite budget cuts resulting in the cancellation of the Spring Festival and the County Fair booth, and the 
effects of the sniper threat and extreme weather. Still, 4,143 volunteers contributed 45,842 hours of service either as 
individuals or as part of the 102 group projects in parks. At the annual Volunteer Banquet, staff recognized volunteers 
with 20 years and 25 years of service. The Volunteer Services Office plans to create and Implement background check 
procedures, arrange for an assessment of the program, train staff in using volunteers for projects and coordinate 
Volunteer Management training for all staff who supervise volunteers. 

Park Safety: Park Police focused on crime prevention and safety through community involvement and initiatives. 
Programs educated seniors and trail users on personal safety. Park Police Volunteers helped develop a spirit of 
cooperation and partnership with the community. The division mobilized its Community Response Vehicle, which 
functions as a movable sub-station at community events. To provide speed management improvements on Sligo Creek 
Parkway, the Department recently reached agreement with the Department of Public Works and Transportation to install 
new traffic signs, increase Park Police enforcement, and construct speed tables along a five-mile segment of the parkway 
to slow and/or stop speeding. This parkway safety initiative will be duplicated along Beach Drive and Little Falls Parkway. 

Enterprise Fund: Due to an unusual combination of factors, Enterprise Fund revenue for FY03 came in significantly 
under budget. Extreme weather conditions all year and the sniper threat In October resulted in a worst-case business 
scenario for the golf courses and other outdoor Enterprise facilities. Wheaton Carousel's closure for extensive 
mechanical repairs also contributed to the downturn. In spite of curtailing expenditures to mitigate the effects of reduced 
revenues, higher than anticipated utility costs and other unexpected costs partially offset those expenditure reductions. 

SmartParks: With a grant from Montgomery County's Technology Innovation Fund, the Commission's SmartParks 
program has begun. The Commission will be creating an inventory of park facilities, tracking operating and maintenance 
costs at parks, and streamlining service delivery using state-of-the-art computer technology including GIS, GPS, and 
distributive data collection and retrieval. 

Park Land Acquisition: Including the Legacy Open Space properties mentioned previously, parkland acquisitions 
totaled more than 275 acres in FY 03, bringing the total acreage managed in Montgomery County Parks to more than 
32,100 acres. Properties acquired as additions to existing parks Included lands In Northwest Branch Stream Valley Park, 
Great Seneca Stream Valley Park, Sligo MIii Open Space Area, Patuxent River Watershed and Seven Locks Local Park. 
Several acquisitions represented initial purchase in new parks that did not exist prior to the fiscal year. These included 
Broad Run Stream Valley Park, Berryville Road Neighborhood Conservation Area, Germantown Commons, Chevy Chase 
Open Space, Serpentine Barrens Conservation Park and Wildcat Branch Stream Valley Park. 

Property Management: For FY03, the residential element of the property management program came under review 
as a source of affordable housing for the Montgomery County workforce as part of the newly launched Housing 
Montgomery initiative. Further work on this initiative wlll continue Into FY04. A multi-year effort to perform lead abatement 
work on all residential units was completed during FY03. For many units, this is a continuing program to ensure that the 
units remain compliant. 
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Department of Human Resources and Management 

Under the leadership of the Commission's Executive Director, the Department of Human Resources and 
Management (DHRM), provides quality administrative, managerial and human resources services to the public and 
Commission. Organized into two major divisions, the Department Includes Corporate Management and Human 
Resources. A team structure supports the work program to enhance service quality and increase productivity. 

Organlzattonal Development: In FY03 the Department continued to focus on the One Commission: A Preterrec 
Workplace initiative through the coordination and guidance of special organizational development activities anc 
programs. Activities included the culmination of the Commission's 751

h Anniversary, launching of the first form~ 
mentoring program, release of new portals for Internet and Intranet systems, and the Leadership Institute -
Supervisory Training that graduated approximately 120 supeNisors during this fiscal year. The Leadership lnstitut1 
also incorporated the process to apply for accreditation from the Commission for Accreditation of Park and Recreatio 
Agencies (CAPRA) as part of its Capstone Projects. Before becoming involved in the CAPRA process, new Capstan 
Projects were completed by program participants involving such topics as: One Commission Bus Tour, Marketing th 
Commission's Website, Commission-wide Wellness program, Characteristics of Commission Mentors, Marketing th 
Commission as a Career, Annual Employee Day of Service, Emergency Response Plan, and the Positive Exchang 
Program. In addition, senior leadership workshops were established to provide a forum to Introduce and addres 
priorities of the Commission collectively. Through these workshops, cross-functional leadership teams were formed 1 
address additional critical success factors of the One Commission: A Preferred Workplace initiatives, which wer 
identified as: Awards and Recognition, Commission-wide Marketing, Formal Cross-training and Performanc 
Management. Work continued on critical success factors of communication through the employee speak-out forun 
Have Your Say, monthly publication of the supervisory help guide entitled TIPS, and use of a messaging troe fc 
priority information flow. 

Employee/Labor Relations: The Department negotiated a new, three-year collective bargaining agreement f, 
employees in the Service/Labor, Trades and Office/Clerical Bargaining Units. It also conducted implementatk 
workshops for changes to the new FOP contract, particularly in the retirement options available for Park Police. SU 
developed and conducted joint labor relations training with representatives for the Service/Labor, Trades ar 
Office/Clerical Bargaining Units to improve and strengthen accountability for good labor/management workit 
relationships at the work site. 

Continuous Improvement in Management and Employee Services: Other accomplishments included production 
a new training program on Workers' Compensation Benefits, implementation of domestic partner benefits, expansi1 
of the successful employment program for persons with disabilities, coordination of the upgrade of ti 
Personnel/Payroll System, development and adoption of a new policy for teleworkers and continuation of the increa 
in the quantity and diversity of applicant pools for job vacancies through web-based recruiting and outreach effo 
including numerous job fairs and networking. During FY03, three classification series were revised and 
reclassification actions were processed during two open windows. The Department continued leading Emergen 
Preparedness efforts by coordinating the crisis management plans and rolling out the Access Proximity system · 
facility security at four additional sites. Staff also completed a Risk Management Analysis that included assessmen1 
risk factors and cost effectiveness. 

Recognized Efforts: On behalf of the Commission, the Department has received: the recognition award a~ 
Workplace of Excellence from the Work-Life Alliance for the 2nd year and the Distinguished Budget Presentation Aw, 
from the Government Finance Officers' Association for the 16th consecutive year. These awards are evidence 
fulfillment of the Commission's workplace initiative. 

Department of Finance 

The Department of Finance provides fiscal management and oversight of all Commission financial activities. Servic 
of the Department include financial reporting and policy development; processing of payroll, disbursements c 
purchasing transactions; investment management; debt issuance; internal audit, and information syste 
management. 
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Financing Capital Projects and Equipment: In FY03, the Department coordinated the sale of $21 .2 million Park 
Acquisition and Development Bonds (Variable Auction Rato Notes) to refinance the Prince George's Sports and 
Learning Complex taxable debt. The bonds are auctioned every 35 days, and the interest rate has gone from a high of 
1.45% to a low of 1.05%. A Debt Service Rate Stabillzatlon Fund was created with the savings generated to provide a 
means to offset future interest rate Increases. The Commission also refunded Park Acquisition and Development 
Bonds amounting to over $21 million for Prince George's County and almost $8.5 million for Montgomery County, 
resulting in a net present value savings of approximately $1.5 million. Additionally, over $5.0 million of new CIP 
projects were funded in FY03 as well as $2.8 million worth of capital equipment for Montgomery County. 

Safeguarding Commission Assets: Department staff completed close to 200 facility, program and financial audits, 
including approximately 15 special audits. A fixed asset procedure manual and related Commission Practice were 
finalized to serve as a Mw Administrative Procedure to provide guidance on the protection of Commission assets, and 
annual inventories were completed for more than 90 Commission facilities. 

Automating/Streamllntng Efforts: Expansion of the Purchase Card program continued with almost 100 cardholders 
throughout the Commission, and Phase II of the automated purchasing module was implemented, which enables the 
electronic creation of direct purchase orders thereby oliminating the need for manual field purchase orders. Phase Ill, 
which will allow the creation of requisitions electronically and increase online approval processing, is in a pilot stage. 
These efforts are expected to continue generating efficiencies in the Commission's purchasing and payment 
processes. In addition, the Commission's online class registration system was partially integrated with the financial 
system to allow the decentralized recording of certain revenue transactions. 

Information Systems Support: The Department's IT Division continues to support and maintain more than 70 
different applications, primarily the financial, human resources and payroll systems, but also numerous other program 
support systems. During the year, efforts continued on the implementation of Personality 2000; network and financial 
system security was improved due to the implementation of a managed firewall system; a contract routing system was 
designed and implemented in Access; an upgrade to the Performance Series system was completed, and the 
KRONOS timekeeping system and the FASER utility system were migrated to Windows 2000. Also, CAS users were 
provided a means to access e-mail when outside of the office with the implementation of a secure Outlook Web 
Access server, and unwanted e-mail was reduced due to the addition of an Antigen-based filtering system. Division 
staff also logged and msolved over 1,500 help desk requests from users. 

Financial Reporting: For the 30th consecutive year, the Commission received the Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada 
for the FY02 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), prepared by the Finance Department. The CAFR was 
produced based on the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements· and Management's Discussion and Analysis . for State and Local Governments, and efforts continue on 
additional compliance with the new requirements. 

Office of General Counsel 

The Office of General Counsel provides a comprehensive program of legal services to the Commission, supporting 
virtually every facet of the Commission's work program. The Office of General Counsel guides the Commission's 
internal corporate operations; advises staff and the Planning Boards as they navigate their important quasi-judicial and 
regulatory responsibilities; advocates on the Commission's behalf in litigation before the state and federal courts; and 
participates In cross-functional teams assembled periodically to develop creative solutions to new challenges facing the 
Commission. The Commission's legal team includes recognized subject matter experts in several areas of the law, 
including employment law, regulation of land use, government contracting and procurement, commercial transactions, 
tort claims and risk management, and Maryland legislative procedure. 

Regulation of Land Use: FY03 was another successful and challenging year for the Office of the General Counsel. 
For example, in an effort to preserve the integrity of the Commission's jurisdiction over master planning for properties 
annexed into a municipality, Commission attorneys filed an amicus brief with Maryland's highest appellate court, and 
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that brief was quoted favorably in the seminal land use decision captioned Mayor and Council of Rockville v. Rylyn~ 
Enterprises. Inc. Commission attorneys also won the resounding dismissal of a federal lawsuit seeking $2 million ir 
damages, injunctive relief and attorneys' fees in a case alleging that Commission staff violated the plaintiff's civil right: 
by finding that the property owner was not entitled to a use and occupancy permit. 

Circuit Court Cases: The Office of General Counsel also successfully defended a number of planning boarc 
decisions in circuit court actions filed to contest those cases. For example, in Prince George's County Circuit Cour1 
Commission attorneys defeated one municipality's attempt to overturn the Planning Board's approval of a fine 
subdivision plat; another municipality's challenge concerning approval of a complex preliminary plan of subdivision; an, 
an applicant's legal appeal over the Board's decision to deny a specific design plan submitted for a 7-11 convenienc, 
store. In the Montgomery County Circuit Court, tho Office of General Counsel argued successfully that the Culture 
Arts Center and pedestrian bridge proposed for the Montgomery College campus in Jesup Blair Park did not violate th· 
devise of Violet Blair Janin and Section 5-106, Art. 28, Annotated Code of Maryland. In another case, the Montgomer 
County Circuit Court upheld the Planning Board's application of Section 50-29(c) of the Montgomery County Code 

Disputes and Transactions: Commission attorneys are frequently involved in cutting-edge transactions. Fe 
oxample, grounded firmly in case law and statutory analysis concerning the federal Americans With Disabilities Act, th 
Office of General Counsel negotiated a complex voluntary compliance agreement with the Department of Justice th, 
not only captured substantial savings by resisting unneeded building improvements to the Brookside Gardens facility i 
Wheaton, but also preserved the Commission's ability to pursue error and omission claims stemming from origin, 
design deficiencies. Commission attorneys also won favorable settlements in two negligent design cases that resulte 
in payments to the Commission of more than $70,000. Legal staff now routinely organizes intricate public/privat 
partnership transactions, this year including a development and license agreement for the Blair High School stadiur 
with the Thunderbolts team, and a complicated lease with Montgomery County to promote development of an Aquat 
Center in South Germantown Recreational Park. 

Legislative Action: The Office of the General Counsel continued its role as the Commission's spearhead in thE 
Maryland General Assembly, winning legislation that extends the Commission's minority business enterprise prograrr 
for an additional five years, and legislation that requires the State Highway Administration to transfer several dozem 
of acres for the Commission's construction of a hiker/biker trail in Matthew Henson State Park. The Office alsc 
monitored approximately 40 other local and State-wide bills of potential interest to the Commission. 

Merit System Board 

The Merit System Board is an impartial Board which provides recommendations and decisions regarding tho Meri 
System of the Commission and is the highest level within the Commission for hearing appeals. During FY03, th, 
Board continued to maintain its caseload on a current and timely basis. 

Employees' Retirement System 

The Employees' Retirement System (ERS), administered by the 13-member Board of Trustees, in accordance witl 
the Trust Agreement between the Board and the Commission, is a contributory defined benefit pension system witl 
four plans, qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401 (a). The administrative operations are th, 
responsibility of the ERS Staff and Board-appointed Administrator, who reports directly to the Chairman of the Boar, 
of Trustees. 

On July 18, 2001, the Commission approved a change in the composition of the Board of Trustees staged over th 
next several years to accommodate completion of terms of current members of the Board. Effective July 1, 2003, th 
Board will consist of 11 voting members as explained In the Financial Statements report available from the Systerr 

ERS Trust Fund assets closed the year with a fair market value in excess of $451 million. The FY03 annualized rat 
of return on investment was an overall gain of approximately 6.5%. The Board of Trustees actions for the yea 
included continued comprehensive communications to all members including publishing the System's Annw 
Summary Report and conducting concentrated worksite and full day retirement planning workshops for participant! 
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Hm,ic Financic1l 8LaLemcnLs 

Futuro Olympic gymnasts wait their turn on the mats at the Falrland Sports and Aquatics Complex 
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2001 M StreeT NW 

Washington, DC 20036 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of The Maryland-National 
Capital Park and Planning Commission (the Commission), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003, 
which collectively comprise the Commission's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Commission's management. Our responsibility is to 
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Commission, as of June 30, 2003, and the respective 
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary 
comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

The management's discussion and analysis and the schedules of funding progress and Commission 
contributions as listed in the accompanying table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Commission's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and 
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statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements, and accordingly we express no opinion on them. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated September 12, 
2003 on our consideration of the Commission's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral 
part of an audit perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in 
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

September 12, 2003 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As the management of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission ("the Commission"), we 
offer readers of the Commission's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial 
activities for the Commission for the flscal year ended June 30, 2003. 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission is a body corporate of the State of Maryland 
established by the General Assembly in .1927. The Commission is a bl-county agency. It Is empowered to 
acquire, develop, maintain and administer a regional system of parks in a defined Metropolitan District of 
Montgomery and Prince George's Counties and to prepare and administer a general plan for the physical 
development of a defined Regional District for the two Counties. The Commission also conducts the recreation 
program for Prince George's County. 

The major source of funding for the Commission's primary services are five property taxes levied on an 
individual County basis: 

• Montgomery County 
Administration tax· general administration and planning 
Park tax • park operations and debt service for park acquisition and development bonds 

• Prince George's County 
Administration tax · general administration and planning 
Park tax • park operations and debt service for park acquisition and development bonds 
Recreation tax • the recreation program 

Five separate accounts are maintained within the General Fund to account for the Commission's primary 
services. Revenues and expenditures that can be specifically identified with a county are recorded in the 
appropriate account. Expenses that apply to both counties are allocated to the appropriate accounts. Debt is 
issued on a county basis, not for the Commission as a whole. General obligation debt is guaranteed by the 
Commission and by the county government for which the proceeds will be expended. Due to this unique 
arrangement, certain financial information provided in this discussion and analysis, as well as in the summaries 
presented in Note 6 of the Notes to the Financial Statements, has been provided by county to reflect the 
financing constraints within each county. Other funds and accounts are maintained on a Commission-wide or 
on a separate county basis as necessary and appropriate. 

Financial Hlghllghts 

• The assets of the Commission exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2003 by $474.9 million (net assets). 
Of this amount, $88.1 million may be used to meet the Commission's ongoing obligations. 

• The Commission's net assets grew by $22.9 million during fiscal year 2003. This is primarily a result o· 
$20.9 million of grants received for capital asset acquisitions and development. 

, • As of June 30, 2003, the Commission's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances 
of $91.8 million, an increase of $4.3 million. Of this amount, $24.3 million is reserved for contract~ 
already issued (encumbrances) and $18.4 million is designated for use in the fiscal year 2004 budge· 
and as contingency reserves. 

• The Commission's General Fund balance at June 30, 2003 was $49.7 million, an increase of $0.€ 
million during the year. The unreserved fund balance of $39.8 million is approximately 20% of fisca 
year 2003 expenditures and transfers out. Of this amount, $22.1 million (11 % of fiscal year 200~ 
expenditures and transfers out) is unreserved and undesignated. 

• The assets of the enterprise funds exceeded liabilities by $82.9 million, a decrease of $3.7 million. 
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• The Commission's general obligation bonded debt decreased by $3.1 million as scheduled principal 
payments exceeded new debt incurred by refunding selected previous issues ($1.8 million) and a new 
issue of $5.9 million. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Commission's basic financial 
statements. The Commission's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also 
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the Commission's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Commission's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve 
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Commission is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Commission's net assets changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported 
in this statement for some Items that will only result In cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes 
and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Commission that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). The governmental activities of the Commission include General Government, County Planning and 
Zoning, Park Operations and Maintenance, Recreation Programs and Interest on Long-term Debt. The 
business-type activity of the Commission is Recreational and Cultural Facilities. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found as Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Commission, like other state and 
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the Commission can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, 
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide 
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such Information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it 
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar Information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. For both the governmental 
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances, a reconcil iation is provided to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and 
governmental activities. 
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The Commission maintains eleven individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and In the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Capital Project Funds for each county, and the Debt 
Service Fund of Prince George's County, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other 
seven governmental funds are combined Into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each 
of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements, Schedules 1 and 2 in 
the Combining and Individual Statements section of this report. 

The Commission adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, which is actually adopted as five 
"accounts" corresponding to the five different property tax levies. A budgetary comparison statement for the 
total General Fund has been provided as Exhibit 6, and summaries for each account are included in Note 6 of 
the Notes to the Financial Statements, to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found as Exhibits 3 - 6 of this report. 

Proprietary funds. The Commission maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. The Commission uses enterprise funds to account for Montgomery County's and Prince George's 
County's Recreational and Cultural Facilities. 

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the 
Commission's various functions. The Commission uses internal service funds to account for Montgomery 
County's Capital Equipment, Employee Benefits and Risk Management and Prince George's County's 
Executive Office Building, Employee Benefits and Risk Management. Because these services predominantly 
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in 
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each county's 
Recreational and Cultural Facilities, both of which are considered to be major funds of the Commission. 
Conversely, all internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary 
fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements, Schedules 6 - 8 in the Combining and Individual Statements Section of this report. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found as Exhibits 7 - 9 of this report. 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. The Commission uses fiduciary funds to account for the Employees' Retirement System Pension 
Trust, Postemployment Benefit Trust, Private Purpose Trusts for each county, and two agency funds. Fiduciary 
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are 
not available to support the Commission's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like 
that used for proprietary funds. 

The basic fiduciary financial statements can be found as Exhibits 1 o and 11 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The Commission 
has also Included financial statements for each county's portion of the governmental funds financial statements 
to reflect the relationship between the financing sources and responsibility for debt. The Notes to the Financial 
Statements can be found following Exhibit 11 of this report. 

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Commission's progress in funding its 
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found 
immediately following the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In 
the case of the Commission, assets exceeded liabilities by $474.9 million at the close of the most recent fiscal 
year. A summary of the Commission's net assets follows. 

Commission's Net Assets 
(In mllllons of dollars) 

Total 
Percentage 

Governmental Activities Business-tlee Activities Total Change 
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003-2002 

Assets 
Current and other Assets $ 147.7 $ 138.8 $ 5.3 $ 7.0 $ 153.0 $ 145.8 4.9% 
Capital Assets 440.1 423.9 95.0 97.8 535.1 521.7 2.6% 

Total Assets 587.8 562.7 100.3 104.8 688.1 667.5 3.1% 
Liabilities 
Current Portion of Long-term 

Liabilities 24.3 41.8 1.5 1.4 25.8 43.2 -40.3% 
Long-term Liabilities 152.9 139.2 14.2 15.1 167.1 154.3 8 .3% 
other Liabilities 18.6 16.3 1.7 1.7 20.3 18.0 12.8% 

Total Liabllltles 195.8 197.3 17.4 18.2 213.2 215.5 -1.1% 

Net Assets: 
Invested in Capital Assets, 

Net of Related Debt 305.8 282.6 80.4 82.2 386.2 364.8 5.9% 
Restricted for Debt Service 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.0% 

Unrestricted 86.2 82.8 1.9 3.8 88.1 86.6 1.7% 
Total Net Assets $ 392.0 $ 365.4 $ 82.9 $ 86.6 $ 474.9 $ 452.0 5.1% 

The current portion of the long-term debt decreased 40.3% from last year because the June 30, 2002 balance 
included a $21.0 million note payment due August 1, 2002, which is not a normal event for the Commission. At 
June 30, 2003 the current portion only ,includes normal amortization schedule payments. 

By far the largest portion of the Commission's net assets of $386.2 million reflects its Investment in capital 
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment and infrastructure), less any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Commission uses these capital assets to provide services to 
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Commission's 
Investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to 
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the Commission's net assets of $0.6 million represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $88.1 million of net assets is 
unrestricted and may be used to meet the Commission's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Commission is able to report positive balances in all three categories of 
net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type 
activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 
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A summary of changes in net assets (in millions) follows. 

Program Revenues: 

Governmental 
Activities 

2003 2002 

Business-type 
Activities 

2003 2002 

Charges for Services $ 16,0 $ 17.0 $ 19.8 $ 22.4 
Operating Grants and Contributions 1.9 1.7 
Capital Grants and Contributions 20.9 26.1 

General Revenues: 
Property Taxes 
Interest 

Total Revenues 
Expenses: 

General Government 
County Planning and Zoning 
Park Operations and Maintenance 
Aecrf:lation Programs 
Recreational and Cultural Facllltles 
Interest on Long-term Dsbt 
Loss on Disposal of Land 

Total Expenses 
Increase (Decrease) in Net 

Assets Before Transfers 

Transfers 
Increase In Net Assets 

Net Assets - beginning 
Net Assets • ending 

181,9 
1.9 

222.6 

12.7 
29.1 

104.5 
38.1 

7.0 

191.4 

31.2 

(4.6) 
26.6 

365.4 
$ 392.0 

174.7 
3.1 

222.6 

11.6 
29.7 

102.4 
38.0 

8.5 
3.2 

193.4 

29.2 

(8.1) 
21. 1 

344.3 
$ 365.4 

0.1 
19.9 

28.2 

28.2 

(8.3) 
4.6 

(3.7) 
86.6 

$ 82.9 

0.3 
22.7 

28.2 

28.2 

(5 .5) 

8.1 
2.6 

84.0 
$ 86.6 

Total 
2003 2002 

$ 35.8 $ 39.4 
1.9 1.7 

20,9 26.1 

181 .9 
2.0 

242.5 

12.7 
29.1 

104.5 
38. 1 
28.2 

7.0 

21 9.6 

22.9 

22.9 
452.0 

$ 474.9 

174.7 
3.4 

245.3 

11.6 
29 .7 

102.4 
38.0 
28.2 

8.5 
3.2 

221.6 

23.7 

23.7 
428.3 

$ 452.0 

Percentage 
Change 

2003·2002 

-9 ,1% 
11 .8% 

-19 ,9% 

4.1% 
·41.2% 

-1, 1% 

9.5% 
·2.0% 
2.1% 

0.3% 
0.0% 

·17.6% 
-1 00.0% 

•0,9% 

·3.4% 

During the currant fiscal year the Commission's net assets increased by $22.9 million. This increase was due 
to receipts of capital grants of $20.9 million and revenues in excess of ongoing expenses of $2.0 million. 
Charges for services decreased in both governmental and business-type activities, primarily due to the unusual 
weather in the area this fiscal year, and the impact of the Washington area sniper in the fall of 2002. These 
decreases are discussed in more detail when reviewing each activity individually. Interest income was also 
down due to extremely low interest rates available for investments. 
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the Commission's net assets by $26.6 million, 
thereby accounting for 116 percent of the total growth in the net assets of the Commission. The previously 
mentioned capital grants receipts of $20.9 million, added to an excess of ongoing revenues over ongoing 
expenses of $10.3 million, were offset by the transfers to business-type activities of $4.6 million. 

Revenues by Source • Governmental Activities 

• Property Taxes 
Operating Grants and Con1ributions 

.J Investment Earnings 

Charges for Services 

Capital Grants and Contributions 

As the above diagram shows, property taxes make up 82% of Commission governmental revenues. Property 
tax revenues in fiscal year 2003 were approximately 1.8% in excess of anticipated amounts. Interest income 
was lower than anticipated due to the drop in interest rates on investments. 

As is reflected in the following chart (OOO's omitted) , the Commission's governmental activities are largely 
supported by general revenues and in particular property taxes. Program revenues cover 20.3% of 
governmental activities expenses. 

The net cost of Park Operations and Maintenance increased 1 O .6% from last year primarily due to the reduction 
in capital contributions, all of which are recognized as Park Operations program revenues. Interest on long-term 
debt declined due to lower interest costs on refunded debt and the use of $21.2 million of variable rate debt. 

Percentage Change 
2003 2002 2003 - :W02 

Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost 
Of Services Of Services Of Services Of Services Of Of 

Services ~mvice§ 
General Government $ 12,678 $ 12,678 $ 11 ,615 $ 11 ,615 9.2% 9.2% 
County Planning and Zoning 29,120 26,062 29,740 26,968 -2.1 % -3.4% 
Park Operations and Maintenance 104,485 78,1 63 102,355 70,689 2.1% 10.6% 
Recreation Programs 38,058 28,647 37,993 27,661 0.2% 3.6% 
Interest on Long-term Debt 6,994 6,994 8,461 8,461 -17.3% -17.3% 
Total $ 191,335 $ 152,544 $ 190,164 $ 145,394 0.6% 4.9% 
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Business-type Activities. Business-type activities decreased the Commission's net assets by $3.7million, 
reducing by 16% the total growth in the Commission's net assets. Key elements of this decrease are as follows: 

• Expenses of operating these recreational and cultural activities (including interest expense) exceeded 
charges for services and interest income by $8.4 million. 

• Governmental activities contributed $4.6 million to support the enterprise activities. The support is 
primarily $4.2 mill ion of operating support for the Prince George's County business-type activities. 
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The operating losses occurred as a rosult of a significant unexpected decrease in revenues from golf courses 
($2.1 million). Rainy fall 2002 and spring 2003 seasons, combined with very warm summer 2002 playing 
season reduced the rounds of golf played. More detail is provided later in the Proprietary Funds discussion. 
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Charges for services make up the major portion of revenues for the business-typo operations, although support 
from governmental operations (transfers) also makes up a significant portion. Transfers are less than in fiscal 
year 2002 because that fiscal year included a land transfer of $3.8 million, a non-recurring event. 
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As noted earlier, the Commission uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. 

Financial Analysis of the Commission's Funds 

Governmental funds. The focus of the Commission's governmental funds is to provide information on near­
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful In assessing the 
Commission's financing requirements. In partlcular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure 
of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Commission's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $91.8 million, an increase of $4.3 million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 53% of 
this total amount, or $49.1 million, constitutes unreserved and undesignated fund balance, which is available tor 
spending in future years, with $21.1 million of this balance in the capital project funds. The remaining fund 
balances are reserved to indicate that they are not available for new spending as $24.3 million has been 
committed to liquidate contracts and purchase orders, $0.7 million has been committed to pay debt service, and 
$17.7 million is designated to fund the next fiscal year's expenditures and provide reserves for unforeseen 
expenditure needs. 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Commission. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unreserved and undesignated fund balance of the General Fund was $22.1 million, while total fund balance was 
$49.7 million. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved and 
undesignated fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved and undesignated 
fund balance represents 11 % of the total general fund expenditures and transfers out, while total fund balance 
represents 25% of the same amount. 

The fund balance of the Commission's General Fund increased by $0.6 million during the current fiscal year. 
Key factors in this increase are as follows: 

• Property taxes were $3.2 million more than anticipated 

• Interest fell short of budget by $1.2 million due to declining interest rates 

• A use of $10.5 million was planned in the budget for fiscal year 2003 

• A control of expenditures generated $6.4 million savings to provide funding for future years budgets 

• Debt refinancing and use of a variable rate debt financing resulted in savings of $0.9 million on debt 
service 

• Use of the Postemployment Retirement Fund to pay for current retiree health care costs was not 
anticipated in the Prince George's County budget. This resulted in a savings of $1.5 million 

The capital project funds for Montgomery and Prince George's counties have total fund balances of $8.8 million 
and $26.3 million, respectively, all of which represents authorized and funded projects that are not completed. 
The net change in fund balances during the current year in these funds was an increase of $4.8 million due to 
the $5.2 million bond sale in Montgomery County, and a decrease of $1 .0 million in Prince George's County. 
Positive fund balances were maintained in these funds at all times. 

Proprietary Funds. The Commission has determined that certain recreational and cultural facilities should be 
predominantly self-supporting through user fees. Enterprise fund accounting and reporting is used tc 
emphasize the self-supporting nature of these activities and to provide improved cost accounting information. 
Enterprise Fund accounting, which is on a commercial accounting accrual basis, more accurately reflects 
whether individual facilities return the full cost of the program. 
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One enterprise fund has been established in each county to account for the various facilities. Separate cost 
centers are maintained for each major type of facility including an historical airport, four ice rinks, eight golf 
courses, four enclosed tennis facilities, three conference centers, an equestrian center, a multipurpose arena, a 
trap and skeet center, certain regional park facilities, a sports and learning complex and a marina. 

The Commission's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found In the government-wide 
financial statements, but In more detail. 

Unrestricted net assets of tho Montgomery County fund at the end of the year amounted to $0.7 million and 
those for the Prince George's County fund amounted to $1.2 million. The total reduction in net assots for both 
funds was $1.7 million and $2.0 million, respectively. 

Summary comparative results of the financial operations of the Enterprise Funds for fiscal years 2003 and 2002 
follow ($000's). 

Montgomery Prince George's 
Count~ Count~ 

FY2003 FY2002 FY2003 FY2002 

Operating Revenues $ 12,686 $ 14,238 $ 7,054 $ 8,182 
Operating Expenses, Excluding Depreciation 12,263 12,368 11,532 11,380 

Operating Income (Loss), Excluding Depreciation 423 1,870 (4,478) (3,198) 
Depreciation 1,592 1,472 2,181 21238 

Operating Income (Loss) (1,169) 398 (6,659) (5,436) 
Nonopcrating Revenue (Expense) (583) (514) 32 31 
Transfers 7 3,879 4!648 4,243 

$ p,745} $ 3,763 $ p,979} $ {1,162} 

Comparative Montgomery County key data are as follows ($OOO's). 

Operating Operating Income (Loss) 
Revenues Excluding Deerociation 

FY 2003 FY2002 Change FY2003 FY2002 Change 

Conference Centers $ 366 $ 368 $ (2) $ (118) $ (57) $ (61) 
Golf Courses 5,598 7,315 (1,717) (562) 892 (1,454) 
Ice Rinks 4,068 3,712 356 481 212 269 
Indoor Tennis 1,097 1,125 (28) 339 381 (42) 
Park Facilities 1,557 1,718 {161) 283 442 {159) 

Total $ 12,686 $ 14,238 $ (1 ,552) $ 423 $ 1,870 $ {1 ,447} 

The Enterprise Fund revenues decreased by $1.6 million and operating income, excluding depreciation, 
decreased by $1.4 million. Significant changes occurred at a few or the facilities. The ice rink revenues 
increased by $356,000 and tho operating income Increased by $269,000, fueled by the continuing improvement 
in operating Income of the reconstructed and expanded Cabin John Ice Rink. The golf course revenues 
decreased $1. 7 million and park facilities revenue decreased by $161,000 due to very poor weather in 2003, as 
well as the impact of the Washington Metropolitan Area sniper crisis In the fall of 2002. This resulted in 
decreases in operating income of $1 .5 million and $159,000, respectively. 
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Comparative Prince George's County key data are as follows ($000's). 

Operating Operating Income (Loss) 
Revenues Excluding Deereciation 

FY 2003 FY 2002 Chango FY 2003 FY2002 Change 

Airport $ 12'1 $ 175 $ (51) $ (63) $ (109) $ 46 
Equestrian Center/Arena 1,241 1,222 19 (1,357) (1,252) (105) 
Golf Courses 2,078 2,525 (447) (316) 24 (340) 
Ice Rinks 247 240 7 (195) (163) (32) 
Regional Parks 271 230 41 14 54 (40) 
Trap and Skeet Center 1,082 1,262 (180) (89) (16} (73) 
Sports and Learning Complex 1,986 2,508 (522) (2,258} (1,530) (728) 
Bladensburg Marina 2'5 21 4 {214} {206} {8} 

Total $ 7,054 $ 8,183 $ {11129} $ {4,478} $ {3,198} $ (1,280} 

The Enterprise Fund revenues decreased by $1, 129,.000 and the operating loss, excluding depreciation, 
Increased by $1,280,000. The major changes occurred in the Golf Courses and the Sports and Learning 
Complex. The Golf Courses suffered from the same problems as in Montgomery County, resulting in a revenue 
decrease of $447,000; the Sports and Learning Complex revenues decreased by $522,000 for some of the 
same reasons, including having a national meet canceled by a major snow storm. Expenses increased only 
slightly overall, although the Sports and Learning Complex had increased expenses of $206,000 due to start up 
costs on several new programs. 

General Fund Budgetary Hlghllghts 

The Commission's park, recreation, planning and general administrative functions are financed primarily by five 
legally designated property taxes that must be levied on a separate County basis. These functions are 
accounted for in accounts within the General Fund, each of which has its own budget, and is presented 
separately In the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

In the Montgomery County Administration and Park Accounts, the $1,239,000 and $2,897,000, respectively, 
positive variances were primarily a result of expenditure savings. Favorable property tax collections and 
increased charges for services were offset by shortfalls in intergovernmental revenues and interest income, 
resulted In total revenues exceeding the budget by $275,000 and $528,000, respectively. Total expenditure 
savings of $965,000 and $2,370,000 Including (net of) transfers in and out of $10,000 and ($23,000) added to 
the positive variance. The expenditure savings was primarily the result of the commitment to the County to 
realize a 3% budget savings, to be utilized in the fiscal year 2004 budget and non-departmental savings from 
liquidation of prior year encumbrances of $68,000. The variance, together with July 1, 2003 undesignated fund 
balances, resulted in budget basis fund balances at June 30, 2003 of $2,303,000 and $5,489,000. Of those 
amounts, $860,000 and $2,392,000 are designated to fund fiscal year 2004 expenditures and $814,000 and 
$1,621,000 are designated for unforeseen circumstances (approximating 3.4% of the fiscal year 2003 operating 
budget). The remaining balances, $629,000 and $1,476,000, are undesignated as of June 30, 2003. 

Prince George's County experienced positive variances for the Administration, Park and Recreation Accounts 01 
$1,766,000, $2,979,000, and $1,103,000 respectively. The revenue variances of $778,000, $741,000, and 
$(1,088,000) respectively, were generated as a result of property tax revenues exceeding the budget, offsot b~ 
a shortfall in interest revenues due to declining interest rates, and a significant shortfall in charges for services 
in the Recreation Account. Charges for services revenues actually decreased from fiscal year 2002, as 
customers reacted adversely to some rate increases, and one facility, the Allentown Pool, was closed for part o1 
the year. With respect to expenditures, the Commission had savings of $1,386,000, $572,000, and $1,843,000, 
respectively. Transfers generated positive variances, as use of the Postemployment Retirement Fund to pay to, 
current retiree health care costs, not anticipated in the Prince George's County budget, resulted in transfers ir 
of $379,000, $725,000, and $347,000 respectively. Transfers out to the debt service fund were reducec 
$740,000 from budget expectations due to refunding of debt and the savings generated by using a variable rate 
debt instrument. Expenditure savings were primarily from salary lapses achieved in the Planning Departmen-
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and the Parks and Recreation Department. The variance, together with July 1, 2003 undesignated fund 
balances, resulted in budget basis fund balances at June 30, 2003 of $5,779,000, $17,581,000, and 
$8,675,000, respectively. Of these amounts, $1,527,000 (Park Account), and $2,066,000 (Recreation 
Account), are designated tor fiscal year 2004 expenditures; $685,000 (Administrative Account), $1,718,000 
(Park Account), and $1,036,000 (Recreation Account) are designated for unforeseen circumstances 
(approximating 3.2% of the fiscal year 2003 operating budget); and $5,026,000 is designated in the Park 
Account for the operating costs and debt service of future facilities. The remaining balances in the 
Administrative Account, Park Account and Recreation Account, $5,094,000, $9,311,000 and $5,573,000, are 
undesignated as of June 30, 2003. 

There was only one difference between the total original budget and the final amended budget. A $375,000 
increase in expected grant revenues resulted in a similar increase in appropriations. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The Commission's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30, 2003, amounts to $535.1 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, and roads. 
The total increase In the Commission's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 2.6% (a 3.8% 
increase for governmental activities and a 2.8% decrease for business-type activities). The only significant 
capital asset change in business-type activities is the depreciation of existing assets. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: proceeds of general obligation 
park acquisition and development issues are accounted for in Capital Projects Funds until the projects are 
completed. Completed projects and construction in progress at year-end are shown as capital assets in the 
Government-wide Statement of Net Assets. During fiscal year 2003, projects totaling $8.3 million in 
governmental activities and $0.8 million in business-type activities were completed. Among these projects are 
the Ridge Road Recreation Park, Nike Local Park, Point Way Neighborhood Playground, and Sligo Golf Course 
Improvements. 

Expenditures on Montgomery County projects totaled $7.0 million in fiscal year 2003, of which $0.7 million was 
for acquisition and $6.3 million was for development. The largest project was completion of construction at 
Ridge Road Recreational Park including an in-line skating facility, ball fields, picnic shelters, restrooms, 
playground and parking lots which were constructed at a cost of $3.8 million, of which $1.0 million was in fiscal 
year 2003. Other major projects that are yet to be completed with their accumulated costs through fiscal year 
2003 are: Rosemary Hills-Laytonsville Local Park - $0.8 million, Ball field initiatives - $1 .0 million, and 
numerous park and recreation construction projects. In addition, expenditures totaling $5.1 million were spent 
on 44 projects for routine maintenance of parks, roads, buildings and other structures. 

Prince George's County projects totaled $9.3 million in fiscal year 2003, of which $4.0 million was for acquisition 
and $5.3 million was for development. Major acquisition projects included park acquisitions such as the 
Patuxent River Corridor (funded by Rural Legacy) of $3.0 million, Piscatawa Creek Park of $0.4 million, and 
Henson Creek Park of $0.4 million. Park development expenditures include the addition to the Sports and 
Learning Center for $1.6 million, Improvements at the Showplace Arena of $0.5 million, Tennis Bubble 
replacement of $0.4 million, Tucker Road ice rink of $0.4 million, and Temple Hills Community Center of $0.4 
million. Renovations of park facilities, playground equipment, and various community centers cost about $1.0 
million. 
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Commission's Capital Assets (net of depreciation) ($000's) 

June 30,2003 June 30,2002 
Business- Business· Percent 

Governmental type Govommental type Change 
Actlvitios Activities Total Activities Activities Total Total 

Land $ 243,461 $ 19,364 $ 262,825 $ 230,157 $ 19,364 $ 249,521 5.3% 
Buildings and Improvements 76,783 70,566 147,349 74,226 72,937 147,163 0.1% 
Infrastructure 82,645 82,645 83,625 83,625 -1.2% 
Machinery and equipment 17,608 3,516 21,124 18,411 3,730 22,141 -4.6% 
Construction in progress 191621 1,583 211204 17 443 1 773 191216 10.3% 

Total $ 440,116 $ 95,029 $ 5351147 $ 423,862 $ 971804 $ 521.666 2.6% 

Additional information on the Commission's capital assets can be found in the Note 4B of the Notes to Financial 
Statements in this report. 

Long-term debt. Debt Service Funds are used to account for the payments on the Commission's general 
obligation debt, which includes Park Acquisition and Development Bonds (Park Bonds) and Advance Land 
Acquisition Bonds (ALA Bonds). The outstanding issues totaling $152.5 million and the related debt service 
requirements to maturity are set forth in Note 4E of the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

The Commission's general obligation bonds are unconditionally guaranteed by the Commission and the county 
for which issued. Debt service principal and interest expenditures for Park Bonds and ALA Bonds totaled $38.0 
million (Montgomery - $4.3 million; Prince George's - $33.7 million) for the fiscal year. Included in this total is a 
payment at maturity of a short-term Prince George's County Park Bond of $21.0 million, which was refinanced 
with a $21.2 million Park Acquisition and Development General Obligation Bonds issuance. 

Of the outstanding debt, Park Bonds totaled $145.8 million (Montgomery County • $32.1 million and Prince 
George's County - $113.7 million) at June 30, 2003. Park Bonds debt service expenditures totaled $36.9 
million (Montgomery - $3.6 million, Prince George's - $33.3 million) for the fiscal year. The Commission's 
Metropolitan District (Park) tax Includes a mandatory tax for debt service for Park Bonds of 3.6 cents for rea1 

property and 9 cents for personal property in Montgomery County and 4 cents for real property and 1 O cents fo1 
personal property in Prince George's County. Debt service payments approximated 0.46 cents of the 
mandatory debt service tax proceeds for real property and 1.15 cents for personal property for Montgomer) 
County and 2.88 cents for real property and 7.20 cents for personal property for Prince George's County. The 
remainder of the proceeds of the mandatory taxes was used for park operation and maintenance expenditure~ 
in the respective counties. 

The Commission's outstanding general obligation bonds have the following ratings: 

Moody's 
Investor Standard & Poor's Fitch Ratings 

Services Inc. Rating Services 
Montqomery County Aaa AAA AAA 
Prince Georae's County Aa2 AA AA+ 

The Commission's Montgomery County revenue bonds and revenue notes payable totaled $10.9 million a 
June 30, 2003. The bonds and notes have a reported value of $10.6 million, after considering the $0.3 million c 
unamortized discount and are accounted for in the Enterprise Funds. The revenue bonds and notes are nc 
general obligations of the Commission or Montgomery County and are payable solely from revenues generate 
from revenue producing facilities. Debt service expenditures for the revenue bonds and notes totaled $1. 
million for the fiscal year. The outstanding proprietary fund debt as of June 30, 2003, and the related det 
service requirements are set forth in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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During fiscal year 2003, the Commission sold $21.2 million of Prince George's county Park Acquisition and 
Development General Obligation Bonds, Serles AA·2, which have maturities through May 1, 2022 to redeem 
the Series X-2 Refunding Bonds that matured August 1, 2002. The AA-2 bonds were issued as auction rate 
notes, and interest is reset every 35 days. Interest rates have been between 1.05% and 1 .45% in 2003. 

Also during fiscal 2003, the Commission issued $21 .1 million of Prince George's County Park Acquisition and 
Development Refunding Bonds, Series BB-2; $12.155 million of Montgomery County Park Acquisition and 
Development Refunding and Project Bonds; Series CC-2; and $1 .55 million Montgomery County Advanced 
Land Acquisition General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 00·2. Except for $5.2 million of CC- 2 proceeds 
used for capital project financing, the bonds provided the resources to purchase U. S. government securities 
that were placed In an Irrevocable trust to defease bonds totaling $27 .8 million ($7 .9 million Montgomery 
County and $19.9 mllllon Prince George's County). These liabilities have been removed from the Statement of 
Net Assets. Reductions in debt service payments total $1.6 million ($0.5 mllllon Montgomery County and $1 .1 
mllllon Prince George's County). 

The Commission also issued a note payable of $2.8 million to finance capital equipment for Montgomery 
County. Semiannual payments are due until April 1, 2008 at an interest rate of 2.46%. 

Details of the Commission's outstanding debt (net of unamortized discounts and premiums) at June 30, 2003 
follow ($000's). 

General obligation bonds 
Revenue bonds and notes 
Notes payable 

Total 

General obligation bonds 

Revenue bonds and notes 

Notes payable 
Total 

General obligation bonds 
Revenue bonds and notes 
Notes payable 

Total 

Commission's Outstanding Debt 
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds and Notes 

Governmental Activities Buslness-!}'.~e Activities Total 
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 

$ 150,701 $ 155,620 $ $ $ 150,701 $ 155,620 
10,663 11,491 10,563 11,491 

6,651 5,342 290 217 6,941 51559 
$ 157,352 _j 160,962 $ 10,853 $ 11i7oa $ 168,205 $ 172,670 

Montgomery County's Outstanding Debt 
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 
$ 35,850 $ 33,200 $ $ $ 35,850 $ 33,200 

10,563 11.491 10,563 11 ,491 
4,976 3,577 290 217 5,266 3,794 

$ 40,826 $ 36,777 $ 10,853 $ 11 ,708 $ 51,679 $ 48,485 

Prince George's County's Outstanding Debt 
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 . 2002 
$ 114,851 $ 122.420 $ $ $ 114,851 $ 122.420 

1,675 1,765 
$ 116,526 $ 124,185 ="'$""""== $ 

11675 1,765 
$ 116,526 $ 124,1 85 

Change 

-3.2% 
•8.1% 
24.9% 
-2.6% 

~ 

8.0% 
-8.1% 
38.8% 

6.6% 

Change 

-6.2% 
0.0% 

-5.1% 
-6.2% 

The Commission's total debt decreased by $4.5 million (3.2%) during the current fiscal year. The key factor in 
this decrease was that normal principle payments were greater than the small new Issue of bonded debt for 
Montgomery County capital projects ($5.2 million). 
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State statutes limit the amount of general obllgatlon debt the Commission may Issue to the amount that can be 
redeemed within 30 years from date of issue by the tax or taxes authorized for payment of the bonds. The legal 
debt margin for each County of the Commission Is $821.6 million of debt service for Montgomery County and 
$392.7 million of debt service for Prince George's County, which is in excess of the Commission's required debt 
service of $43.5 million and $147.4 million, respectively, over the 30 year period. 

Additional information on the Commission's long-term debt can be found in Note 4E of the Notes to the 
Financial Statements. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

In evaluating the Commission's economic condition and future outlook consideration should be given to two 
factors. First, at year-end, the Commission had a budget basis fund balance in the General Fund of $39.8 
million. Of this amount, $6.8 million is designated to fund fiscal year 2004, $5.9 million is designated for 
unforeseen circumstances, $5.0 million is designated to fund the operating maintenance and debt service costs 
of future Prince George's County facilities, and $22.1 million is uncommitted as of June 30, 2003. Second, 
property taxes, which constitute approximately 82% of the Commission's Governmental funds revenues in fiscal 
year 2003, are expected to continue to be a stable revenue source. The assessed value of all taxable property 
increased, contributing to an Increase In property tax revenues from $177.1 million to $182.2 (2.9%). The 
Commission's total Montgomery County tax rate decreased slightly in fiscal year 2004. The Commission's total 
Prince George's County real and personal property tax rates Increased by 3.5 cents and 8. 75 cents respectively 
In fiscal year 2004 to allow for provide funding of delayed capital projects, new capital projects and other 
programs. The Montgomery and Prince George"s County unemployment rates obtained from the Maryland 
Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulations were 2.7% and 4.9%, respectively, as of June 2003 in 
comparison to the 4.6% State and 6.5% national unemployment rates. 

The Commission's Montgomery County activities are subject to spending affordability guidelines of Montgomery 
County Government. Legislation was passed In 2001 by the Prince George's County Council which created a 
Spending Affordability Committee to make recommendations during the budgetary process to the Council 
concerning spending affordability of the Commission's Prince George's County operations. These efforts add 
to the solld foundation of financial management and assist the Commission in meeting the challenge of 
providing enhanced public services at an economical cost. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the Commission's budget for the 2004 fiscal year. 

Requests for Information 

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Commission's finances for all those with an 
interest in the Commission's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided In this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Department of Finance, Office of 
Secretary-Treasurer, The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, 6611 Kenilworth Avenue, 
Riverdale, Maryland 20737. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Exhibit 1 

Statement of Net Assets 
June 30, 2003 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Equity In Pooled Cash and Investments $ 115,363,216 $ 3,215,984 $ 118,579,200 
Receivables - Taxes 2,899,710 2,899,710 
Receivables - Other 425,638 6,035 431,673 
Due from Fiduciary Funds 932,702 932,702 
Due from County Governments 3,978,744 3,978,744 
Due from Other Governments 1,014,854 1,014,854 
Inventories 1,391,872 1,391,872 
Deposits and Other 50,450 50.450 
Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments: 
Revenue Bond Covenant Accounts 589,848 589,848 
Unspent Debt Proceeds 23,034,601 51 ,717 23,086,318 

Capital Assets: 
Land and Construction In Progress 263,081,657 20,946,815 284,028,472 
Other Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 1771035,941 7410811827 251,117,768 

Total Assets 587,817,513 100,2841098 688,101 ,611 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 12,616,954 928,713 13,545,687 

Accrued Interest Payable 3,088,253 116,240 3,204,493 

Deposits and Deferred Revenue 2,881,857 887,597 3,569,454 
Payable to Advance Land Acquisition Trust Fund 3,829,363 3,029,363 
Claims Payable: 

Due within One Year 1,954,077 1,954,077 

Due In more than One Year 4,849,318 4 ,849,318 

Compensated Absences: 
Due within Ono Year 7,886,751 376,414 8 ,263,165 

Due in more than One Year 5,077,292 593,998 5 ,671,290 

Bonds and Notes Payable: 
Due within One Year 12,585,556 1,071 ,155 13,656,711 

Due In more than One Year 144,766,392 9,782,345 154,548,737 

Estimated Liability for Closure and Postclosure Costs 
Due within One Year 26,230 26,230 

Due In more than One Year 91 805 91 805 

Total Liabilities 105i&2414as 17,385,825 213,210,310 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 305,800,251 80,397,496 386,197,747 

Restricted for Debt Service 589,848 589,848 

Unrestricted 861192,777 1,910,929 88,103,706 

Total Net Assets $ 39119931028 $ 82,898,273 $ 474,891 ,301 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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lHE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

P~ram Revenues 

FunctionsJPrograms 

Governmental Activities: 
General Government 
County Planning and Zoning 
Park Operations and Maintenance 
Recrealion Programs 
Interest on Long-term Debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Recreational and Cultural Facilities 

Total Government 

Charges for 
---3enses SEMVioes 

$ 12,678,079 s - $ 
29,119,749 2,206,015 

104,484,551 4,689,195 
38,057,899 9,083,148 

6,994,245 
191,334,523 15,978,358 

28,243,046 19,757,618 
$ 219,577,569 $ 35,735,976 

General Revenues: 
Property Taxes 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 

Transfers 
Loss on Disposal of Land 

$ 

Net General Revenues and Transfers 
Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets. Beginning 
Net Assets - Ending 

1ne notes to the fmancial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

-
852,120 
762,869 
327,394 

1,942,383 

-
1,942,383 

Capilal 
Grants and 

Contri>utions 

$ -
-

20,869,343 

20,869,343 

-
$ _______l().~.343 

$ 

$ 

Governmental 
Activities 

(12,678,079) $ 
(26,061,614) 
(78,163,144) 
(28,647,357) 

(6,994,245) 
(152.,544,439) 

-
(152,544,439) 

181,859,997 
1,931,787 

(4,637,187) 
(4,920) 

179,149,677 
26.§05,238 

365,387,790 
391,993,028 $ 

Business-type 
Activities 

. 
-
-
-

-

(8,485,428} 
(8,485,428) 

123,811 
4,637,187 

4,760.998 

$ 

(3,724,430) 
86,622,703 
82,898,273 $ 

Exhibft2 

Total 

(12,678,079) 
(26,061,614) 
(78,163,144} 
(28,647,357) 
iS,994,24~ 

{152,544,439) 

(8,485,428} 
(161,029,867) 

181,859,997 
2,055,598 

(4,920) 
183.910,675 
22,880,808 

452,010,493 
474,891,301 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2003 

Montgom•ry PMnce Georg,'$ 
Covnty Covnty 
c,p1t,1 CtpiUOI 

Qcn~llll PtOjbCtft PIOjOcta 

ASSETS 
equity in Poolod Caah ftnd Investments $ 59,477,403 s 3,000,241 s 9,660,067 $ 

Rl)t¢ivablos • Tll)(OS (net of ellowenca for uncollecUble&) 2,809,710 
ReceivftblM • Other (net of allowance for uncollecUblea) 193,759 194,396 
Ovo from County Govomments 1,088,410 2,328,951 
Ovc from Other Govommenta 110,362 393,04'1 502,440 
R•ntMt~d Ca!h • UMpent Debt Proceeds 4,624,373 17,360,074 
Other 

Total Assets $ $ ~ 4Cl.!)D9,. $ ~ ,718,685 $ 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
L1abll1tloa• 

Accounts Payable $ 5,212,?.75 
Accrued Ll~blllllo, 3,531,242 
Rotalnage Payable 
Due to County Govommont& 
01po$I\$ ,nd O~forred Revr.nuo 5,375,526 
Tolal Llsbllltles ~f?.~ 

Fund BtlMCft$, 
Reserved for Encumbrances 9,828,316 
Rooorvod tor Oobt Servlc, 
Unra$OM:d, DMlgnated for Subsequent Years 17.744.~0 
Unreserved, Undaalgnaled, Roportod In: 
OonQral Fund 22,083,071 
Speelal Revonuo Fund 
Capllal Project& Fund 
Tol•I Fund 13ol~nCt!a 491&5M87 

Total Lleblllttes and Fund Salancos s s3i7001e32 

Amount& reported for govtmmonlill ilollvilie, in the statement or net asaata 

are different becauso: 

Capital aaaol& u1od In gov,mmeni.t ~clivilles ere not nnenctal 

resources ond, thorofor,, ,i_to not reportod In the funds. 

lnlemal aervlco funda aro u1od by m•n•gome.nt 10 cMrga Iha costs of cep1ta1 

equlpmont nnanclng, rfak m,migomMI, group Insurance and 

ttte Executlvo Olflco eulldlno, Tho uset• ond lloblllUes of the Internal 

service fund& are lnoludod In govcmmonlal activities In the stalomonl of 

not essota. 

Somo of tho Commission', taxo; will bO collacted aner year,cnd. but aro not 

avallablo noon onough to p3y far tM CUn'ent pertOd's expendlturos, and 

lhoretore are n,pQftod ~~ delen'od ravenua In the fund&, 

Long-torm llobilltics. includino bOndS payable, are not due and paynblo In tho 

current porlod ~nd lh,:rcforo aro not reported In the fund& 

Net A1;ets of GowmmMt~I Activities 

The noles to Iha nnanclal ntalomont& are an lntegr~I pal'! of 1hls stalemenl 

41 

$ 610,140 $ 560,539 s 

003,031 827,099 

1 513171 1387638 

7,674,722 6,460,341 

112se,71e 19,862,708 
8,833,438 26,331,047 

$ 10,348,600 S 2ZJa1B,6M $ 

Prinot G•orgt'$ 
County 

PM<Debt 
servlee 

706,39$ 

706 396 

. 
33,523 

33623 

$72.873 

672 873 
7061396 

Exhibit 3 

Other Total 
Gov~mmonlftl Govommentol 

Funds Funaa 

$ U 82,!19 $ 79.427,616 
2,899/10 

37,233 4~6,390 
374,297 3,791,658 

1,014,854 
?.1,985,247 

6,1~0 7 328 
s 619991179 s 109,551,6,i)J.. 

$ 140,626 s 6,523,702 
108,393 3,079,168 

1,730,130 
5,002 5,002 

___ 4(J!!,.Q!'l_ 5 701 567 
660 262 17 719 $39 

416,638 24,290,017 
32,012 704,805 

17,744,500 

22,083,071 
S,688,267 ~.888,207 

21121 422 
6 338 917 U1,832,162 

$ 8,999,179 

432,134,728 

18,9Ei1,237 

~,S99,710 

(163,834,809) 

$ 391 ,993,028 



THE MARYLAND•NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Exhlbl14 

St•t•m•nt of Revenuoa, ExpendllurM, Qnd Ch1n1101 In Fund Balsnc~, 
Governmental Funds 

For the Year El'ldtd Jun• 30, 2003 

Montgomery Prtnce George'$ Prince George's 
county County Co1mty Olher Tol~I 
Capltal Cepit,I Park Oebl Govemmenl1I Oovommontal 

Gonoral Ptojeeu P!:21ocls Sel'lliCCI Funds Funds 

REVENUES 
Property Taxoa $ 180,604.705 $ $ $ . $ 1,!176,149 $ 1 B2, 180,054 
Intergovernmental • 

F•dcrnl 168,084 2,708 168,773 
Stele 357,2'/6 1,415,781 6,882,530 7 ,85b,b87 
County 503,052 6,037,401 838,043 6,378,400 
Local 35,487 19,812 33,$60 88,739 

Charges for Scrvicw, 7,595,403 10,972 678,0~ 8,285,233 
Rentals and Conr.esslons 3,221,286 3,341,811 6,562.800 
Interest 840,140 59,750 386,058 115.416 1,361,363 
Conlrtbutlona 20,000 9,121 29,121 
Mlseelloncous 582,647 ll8 851 418,857 1,100,355 

Total ~evenu&a 193,906,039 8i!l12,932 8,401,032 8,991 ,414 213,811 ,417 

EXPENDITURl!S 
Currant. 

General Government 12,696,310 12,698,310 
Planning and Zoning 29,189,477 198,097 28,387,574 
PM< Opc111lion; and Maintenance 98.618,080 847,178 99,486,1!!9 
Recreallon 32,602,831 4,884,677 37,487,oOS 

Debt Service • 
PMeip~I 28,37MOO 2,960,000 31,335,000 
lnterasl 4,866,785 1,773,148 6,638,933 
Dond Issuance Costa 406,056 147,574 e53,G30 

cspllel out111y • 
Park Acqulslllon 763,419 4,033,598 4,797,017 
Park Development 

----r7rro9,698 
6,275,577 5,314.929 1 1 ,590 ,506 

T otol Expcndlturus 7,038,900 9,348.627 33,5411,841 10,790,675 233,834,637 

Excess (Oenclency) of F!evenues ovl'>I' (undet) expenditures 20 7911441 (528,064) !2,947149SI !33,848,841) !3,788,281 ! (20, 123,220! 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCl!S (USl!S) 
Proceeds from General Obllgallon Bond9 5,222,900 21,200,000 26,422,900 
Refunding Bondu Issued 21,110,000 8,482,100 28,692,100 
Premiums on Bonds Issued 172,273 109,534 281 ,807 
Payment to F!efundlng Bond F.serow Aeeounl (21,109,582) (8,442,494) (29,552 ,086) 
Tninsfera In from Private PutJlOse Trust Funds 8,874 0,874 
Ttonsfers out to Prlvnto Pulf)Qso Trust l'unds (493,058) (493,058) 
Tranarers In 3,297,881 185,000 2,468,936 12,847,033 3,691,157 22,591 ,017 
Transfer Out !23,!!31,090) !651lo0! !581,627l !222,9361 (24.398,3031 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) !20,234,0901 5,348,150 1,888,309 34 318 714 3,134,177 24,4!>6,251 

Net Change In Fund B3lonecs 562,342 4,822,086 (1,058,186) 672,873 (665,084) 4,333,031 

Fund B~lancoa - Bealnnlng 48,083,645 4,01,.352 27,390,233 7,004,001 87149A1131 

Fund Balances· Ending $ 4~55L88L S 81833,438 $ ?.6,331,047 $ 872 873 $ 6 ,338,917 $ a,.a32,1e2 

The notes lo Ille finonci~I statement, are an lntoaral part of this stetoment. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Reconclllatlon of th, Statemont of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes In Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

To the Statement of Actlvltlea 
For the Veer Ended June 30, 2003 

Amounts repor1cd for governmental activities In the Statement of Activites (Exhibit 2) are 
dlfforent because: 

Net change In fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit 4) 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
In the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets Is allocated 
over their estimated useful lives and repol'1ed as depreciation 
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded 
depreciation in the current period, 

Capital Outlay $ 17,713,437 
Depreciation Expense !10,018,124) 

Net adjustment 

In the Statement of Activities, only tho gain (loss) on the sale of property Is 
reported, whereas In tho govemmental funds, the proceeds from sales 
Increase financial resources. Other land activity that has no impact on 
financial resources Is also included in the statement of activities. 

Donations of Land 8,511,010 
Loss on Disposal of Land (4,920) 

Net adjustment 

Tax revenues In the Statement of Activities that do not provide 
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 
This Is the amount by which the deferred revenues changed from 
last fiscal year. 

The issuance of long•term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides 
current llnancial resources to governmental funds, while the 
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the 
current ftnancial resources of governmental funds. Neither 
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, 
governmental funds report the effect of Issuance costs, premiums, 
discounts, and similar Items when debt Is first Issued, whereas 
these amounts are deferred and amortized In the the 
Statement of Activities. This amount Is the net affect of these 
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related Items. 

General Obligation Bonda Issued, net of bond issuance 
costs of $482,987 (55,813,820) 

Repayments of Principal 31,335,000 
Payment to Refunding Bond Escrow Account 

Net adjustment 
29,552,086 

Accrued Interest expense and landfill postclosuro costs reported In the 
Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial 
resources and, therefore, aro not reported as expenditures In 
governmental funds. The amount Is the Impact of the net change In 
the llabllltlea from the prior year. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs 
of capital equipment financings, employee benefits, risk management 
and Executive Office Building costs, to individual funds. 
The change in net assets of certain activities of internal service funds 
Is reported with governmental activities. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit 2) 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement. 
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4,333,031 

7,695,313 

8,506,090 

(320,857) 

5,073,266 

(93,357) 

1,411,752 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes In Fund Balance 
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual • GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

BudfiJeted Amounts 

Ori5iinal Final Actual 
Revenues: 
Property Taxes $ 177,397,810 $ 177,397,810 $ 180,604,705 

Intergovernmental 1,118,930 1,492,542 1,061,859 

Charges for Services 8,423,920 8,423,920 7,600,034 

Rentals and Concessions 2,821,150 2,821,150 3,216,654 
Interest 2,030,000 2,030,000 840,140 

Miscellaneous 507,200 507,200 582,647 

Total Revenues 192,299,010 192,672,622 193,906,039 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Current· 
General Government 12,892,100 12,892,100 12,548,210 

County Planning and Zoning 30,906,700 30,949,939 29,730,412 

Park Operation and Maintenance 102,715,500 102,327,600 99,362,793 

Recreation Programs 34,151,000 34,419,273 32,576,229 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 180,665,300 180,588,912 174,217,644 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances 11,633,710 12,083,710 19,688,395 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In 1,790,000 1,790,000 3,297,891 

Operating Transfers Out (23,953,800) (24,403,800) (23,531,9901 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (22,163,800) (22,613,800) (20,234,099) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
over (under) Expenditures/Encumbrances 
and Other Financing Uses - Budget Basis $ (10,530,090) $ (10,530,090) (545,704) 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, July 1 40,373,275 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, June 30 $ 39,827,571 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement. 
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Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

3,206,895 

(430,683) 

(823,886) 

395,504 

(1,189,860) 

75,447 

1,233,417 

343,890 

1,219,527 

2,964,807 

1,843,044 

6,371 ,268 

7,604,685 

1,507,891 

871,810 

2,379,701 

9,984,386 



THE MARYLAND~NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Exhibit 7 

Statement of Net Assets 
Proprietary Funds 

June 30, 2003 
Governmental 

Business-type Activities • Entererise Funds Activities-

Recreational and Cultural Activities lnternol 
Montgomery Prince George's S1rvics 

Coun~ Coun~ Totals Ful'ldt; 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Equity In Pooled Cash and Investments $ 1,455,113 $ 1,760,871 $ 3,215,984 $ 35,935,600 
Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments: 

Revenue Bond Covenant Accounts 589,848 589,848 
Unspent Equipment Financing Proceeds 51,717 51 ,717 1,049,354 

Accounts Recelvable 3,647 2,388 6,035 250 
Due from County Government 187,086 
Due from Other Funds 932,702 
Deposits and Other 43,122 
Inventories 854,621 537,251 1,391 ,872 

Total current Assets 2,954,946 2,300,510 5,255,456 38,148,114 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital Assets: 

Land 11 ,584,468 7,779,131 19,363,599 748,497 
Buildings and Improvements 26,132,269 65,055,716 91,187,985 2,752,334 
Machinery and Equipment 4 ,720,278 4,295,454 9,015,732 17,845,377 
Construction In Progress 1,583,216 1,583,216 

44,020,231 77,130,301 12\ 150,532 21 ,346,208 
Less - Accumulated Depreciation !1 o, 193,409) (15,928,481l {26,121,890) {131363,338} 

Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 33,826,822 61,201,820 95,028,642 7,982,870 
Total Noncurrent Assets 33,826,822 61,201,820 95,028,642 7,982,870 

Total Assets 36,781,768 63,502,330 100,284,098 46,130,984 

LIABILITIES 
Current Llabllltles: 
Accounts Payable 299,065 243,713 542,778 423,697 
Claims Payable 1,954,077 
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 154,631 231,304 385,935 245,121 
Compensated Absences 210,050 166,364 376,414 7,886,751 
Interest Payable 116,240 116,240 72,236 
Revenue Collected in Advance 548,900 138,697 687,597 
Current Portion of Revenue Bonds Payable 300,000 300,000 
Current Portion of Revenue Notes Payable 684,444 684,444 
Current Portion of Notes Payable 86,711 86,711 1,830,666 
Due to County Government 10 064 

Total Current Llabilities 2.400,041 780,078 3,180,119 12,422,502 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Claims Payable 4,849,318 
Revenue Bonds Payable 2,831,433 2,831 ,433 
Revenue Notes Payable 6,747,224 6 ,747 ,224 
Notes Payable 203,688 203,688 4,820,635 
Compensated Absences 239,547 354,451 593,998 5,077,292 
Payable to Advance Land Acquisition Trust Fund 3,829,363 31829.363 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 10,021 ,892 4,183,814 14,205,706 14,747,245 
Total Li.tbilities 12,421 ,933 4,963,892 17,385,825 27,169.747 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 23,025,039 57,372,457 80,397,496 2,381 ,033 
Restricted for Debt Service 589,848 589,848 
Unrestricted 744,948 11165,981 11910,929 16,580,204 

Total Net Assets $ 24,359,835 $ ss1s3si43s $ 82,898,273 $ 18,961 ,237 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assots 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Operating Revenues: 
Sales 
Charges for Services 
Claim Recoveries 
Rentals and Concessions 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Cost of Goods Sold 
Personal Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Montgomery County Self Insurance Program 
Claims Incurred 
Insurance 
Communications 
Utilities 
Maintenance 
Contractual Services 
Other Services and Charges 
Administrative Services 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (E=xpenses): 
Investment Earnings 
Interest Expense, net of Amortization 

Total Nonoperatlng Revenue (Expense) 
Income (Loss) before Transfers 

Transfers In - Park Account 
Transfer In - Recreation Account 
Transfer In - Internal Service Fund - Group Insurance 
Transfer In - Trust 
Transfers Out 
Transfer Out- CIP Fund 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets - Beginning 
Total Net Assets - Ending 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 

Recreational and Cultural Activities 
Montgomery Prince George's 

County_ County Totals 

$ 1,343,769 $ 
8,730,639 

2,611,242 
12,685,650 

815,033 
5,637,641 
1,678,246 

131,142 
737,127 
307,010 

1,501,624 
259,463 

1,195,419 
1,592,080 

13,854,785 
(1,169,135) 

91,593 
(674,407) 
(582,814) 

(1,751,949) 

86,000 

78,173 
17,759 

(175,000) 
(1,745,017) 

26,104,852 
$ 24,359,835 $ 

1,268,004 $ 
3,789,223 

1,996,982 
7,054,209 

998,229 
7,464,442 
1,230,011 

205,794 
4,835 

434,166 
813,649 
381,489 

2,181,239 
13,713,854 
(6,659,645) 

32,218 

32,218 
(6,627,427) 

4,162,200 
388,600 
97,214 

(1,979,413) 

60,517,851 
58,538,438 $ 

2,611,773 $ 
12,519,862 

4,608,224 
19,739,859 

1,813,262 
13,102,083 
2,908,257 

336,936 
741,962 
741,176 

2,315,273 
640,952 

1,195,419 
3,773,319 

27,568,639 
(7 .828, 780) 

123,811 
(674,407) 
(550,596) 

(8,379,376) 

4,248,200 
388,600 
175,387 
17,759 

{175,000) 
(3,724,430) 

86,622,703 
82,898,273 $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Governmental 
Activities­
Internal 
Service 
Funds 

36,562,499 
290,501 

36,853,000 

12,555,636 
288,962 

1,836,140 
8,455,522 

10,070,402 

855,470 

1,646,874 
35,709,006 

1,143,994 

570,424 
(227,930) 
342,494 

1,486,488 

13,362 
2,757,165 

(2,845,263) 

1,411,752 

17,549,485 
18,961,237 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Exhibit 9 

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Businoss-t:,:ee Activities- Entererise Funds 
Government: 

Recreational and Cultural Activities Activities-
Montgomery Prince George's Internal 

1sh Flows from Operating Activities: 
Counzy Counzy Totals Service Fune 

:ecolpts from Customers and Users $ 1:2,795,570 $ 7,038,079 $ 19,833,649 $ 35,911,921 
ayments to Suppliers (4,680,753) (3,861,070) (8,541,823) (21 ,783, 11· 
ayments to Employees (5,608,387) (7,384,629) (12,993,016) (11,865,16 
·ayments for lnterfund Services Used (860,000) (243,100) (1,103,100) (303,801 
·ayments for Administrative Charges (111951419) (1,1951419) 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 451 011 (4,450,720) (3,999,709) 1,959,84: 

1sh Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
1perating Transfers In from Other Funds 181,931 4,648,014 4,829.945 
>peratlng Transfers Out to Other Funds 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital 

{175,000) (1751000) (74,731 

Financing Activities 6,931 4,648,014 4,654,945 (74i73l 

,sh Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
~cqulsltlon and Construction of Capital Assets (819,468) (178,117) (997,585) (1,700,82: 
~rincipal Paid on Notes Payable (732,920) (732,920) (1,358,90· 
)rincipal Paid on Revenue Bonds (285,000) (285,000) 
nterest Paid (642,344) (642,344) (227,92\ 
)roceeds from Financing • Notes Payable 13\593 13\593 2,668.40" 
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related 
Financing Activities (2,348,139) (178,117) (215261256) (619,25' 

1sh Flows from Investing Activities: 
nterest on Restricted Investments 104,895 104,895 
nterest on Investments (13,302) 321218 18,916 570 42· 
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 91,593 32,218 1231811 570.42· 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equlvalents (1,798,604) 51,395 (1,747,209) 1,836,28: 

1sh, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, July 1 3,895,282 1? 091476 5,604,758 35,148,67: 

1sh, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, June 30 $ 2,096,678 $ 1,760,871 $ 3.857,549 $ 36,984,95· 

3played as: 
:qulty in Pooled Cash and Investments $ 1,455,113 $ 1,760,871 $ 3,215,984 $ 36,984,9S, 
~estrtcted for Revenue Bond Covenants 589,848 589,848 
~estrtcted Revenue and Equipment Financing Proceeds 51,717 51 717 

$ 2,096,678 $ 1,760,871 $ 3,857,549 $ 361984195: 

e notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Exhibit 9 
continued 

Busincss-~ee Activities- Entererise Funds 
Governmenta' 

Recreational and Cultural Activities Activities-
Montgomery Prince George's Internal 

:onclllatlon of Operating lncome/(Loss) to Net Cash 
Coun!): Coun!}: Totals Service Fundi 

,vlded (Used) by Operating Activities: 
>erating Income (Loss) $ (1,169,135) $ (6,659,645) $ (7,828,780) $ 1,143,994 
Jstments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
1t Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
epreciation 1,592,080 2,181,239 3,773,319 1,646,874 
hanges In Aeeete and Liabilities: 
Increase) Decrease In Accounts Receivable (3,275) (61) (3,336) 250 
Increase) Decrease in Due from County Government (22,622 
Increase) Decrease in Inventories, at Cost (11 ,915) 8,828 (3,087) 
Increase) Decrease in Deposits and Other 13,994 
ncrease) Decrease In Due from Other Funds (932,702 
ncrease (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (89,033) (44,825) (133,858) 244,79S 
ncrease (Decrease) in Claims Payable (633,434 
ncrease (Decrease) In Accrued Salaries and Benefits 18,370 28,768 47,138 57,67!: 
ncrease (Decrease) In Compensated Absences 10,884 51,045 61,929 632,79E 
ncrease (Decrease) in Interest Payable (10,160) (10,160) 53,56:e 
ncrease (Decrease) In Incurred But Unreported Clms (53,90; 
ncrease (Decrease) In Other Accrued Liabilities (201,50C 
ncrease (Decrease) in Due to County Government 10,Q6L 
ncrease (Decrease) in Revenue Collected In Advance 113,195 !161069) 97126 

Total Adjustments 1,620,146 21208,925 31829,071 815,851 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 451 011 $ (41450,720) $ '31999i709l, $ 1,959184f 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Exhibit 10 

Statement of Net Assets 
Fiduciary Funds 
June 30, 2003 

Pension Private 
Trust Purpose Agency 
Funds Trust Funds Funds 

ASSETS 
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $ - $ 13,032,277 $ 3,355,329 
Cash and Marketable Securities 457,537,063 
Restricted Cash: Unspent Bond Proceeds 843,866 
Collateral for Securities Lending Transactions 43,782,139 
Accounts Receivable 1,829,141 2,000 
Due from other Governments 27,627 
Deposits and Other 109,444 
Receivable From Enterprise Fund 3,829,363 
Land Held for Transfer 37,224,354 
Other 481,665 

Total Assets 503,285,414 55,413,525 3,355,329 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 871,424 1,497 2,819,512 
Due to Group Insurance Internal Service Fund 932,702 
Obligation for Collateral Received 

under Securities Lending transactions 43,782,139 

Deposits 535,817 
Total Liabilities 45,586,265 1,497 3,355,329 

NET ASSETS 
Assets Held In Trust for: 

Land Held for Transfer 41,053,717 

Pension Benefits 451,579,126 
Other Postemployment Benefits 6,120,023 
Other Purposes 14,358,311 
Total Net Assets $ 457,699,149 $ 55,412,028 $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Exhibit 11 

Statement of Changes In Net Assets 
Fiduciary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

ADDITIONS: 
Contributions: 

Employer 
Plan Members 
Private Donations 

Total Contributions 

Receipts from Commission Debt Service Funds 

Investment Earnings: 
Interest 
Dividends 
Net increase (decrease) In the Fair Value of Investments 

Total Investment Earnings 
Less Investment Expense 

Investment Advisory and Management Fees 
Net Income from Investing Activities 

Securities Lending Activity 
Securities Lending Income 
Securities Lending Fees 

Net Income from Securities Lending Activity 

Total Net Investment Income 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Benefits 
Refunds of Contributions 
Administrative Expenses 
Transfers to Group Insurance Internal Service Fund 
Transfers to Commission Debt Service Funds 
Transfers to Enterprise Fund 
Other 

Total Deductions 
Change In Net Assets 

Net Assets • Beginning 
Net Assets • Ending 

$ 

Pension 
Trust 
Funds 

540,369 
3,583,083 

4,123,452 

9,577,534 
2,106,769 

16,137,514 
27,821,817 

(1,641,940) 
26,179,877 

714,806 
(642,489) 

72,317 

26,252,194 

30,375,646 

13,734,100 
349,645 

1,047,466 
2,757,165 

17,888,376 
12,487,270 

445,211,879 
$ 457,699,149 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement. 
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Private 
Purpose 

Trust Funds 

55,660 
55,660 

493,058 

213,443 

213,443 

213,443 

213,443 

762,161 

9,874 
17,759 
73,415 

101 048 
661 ,113 

54,750,915 
$ 55,412,028 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2003 

(1) - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(A) The Commission and Its Services 

Background 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (the "Commission") is a body corporate of 
the State of Maryland established by the Maryland General Assembly in 1927. The Commission is a 
bi-county agency. It is empowered to acquire, develop, maintain and administer a regional system of 
parks in the defined Metropolitan District in Montgomery and Prince George's Counties and to prepare 
and administer a general plan for the physical development of a defined Regional District for the two 
Counties. The Commission also conducts the recreation program for Prince George's County. The 
express powers of the Commission are provided In Article 28 of the Annotated Code of Maryland. As a 
body corporate of the State of Maryland, the Commission is not generally subject to local county 
legislation such as the Tax Reform Initiative by Marylanders ("TRIM"), a Prince George's County Charter 
Amendment originally enacted in November 1978. 

The major source of funding for the Commission's primary services are five property taxos levied on an 
individual County basis: Montgomery County administration tax - general administration and planning; 
Montgomery County park tax - park operations and debt service for park acquisition and development 
bonds; Prince George's County administration tax • general administration and planning; Prince George's 
County park tax - park operations and debt service for park acquisition and development bonds; and the 
Prince George's County recreation tax for the recreation program. Five separate accounts are 
maintained within the General Fund to account for the Commission's primary services. Revenues and 
expenditures that can be specifically identified with a County are recorded in the appropriate account of 
that County and those that apply to both Counties are allocated to the appropriate accounts. Other funds 
and accounts are maintained on a Commission-wide or on a separate County basis as necessary and 
appropriate. 

The provisions of Sections 2-113 and 7-107 of Article 28 of the Annotated Code of Maryland require that 
the Commission publish an annual financial report and that its financial statements be audited by 
independent certified public accountants. The accompanying financial statements have been presented 
to meet the financial reporting needs of the Commission and the requirements of Maryland law. 

Flnanclal Reporting Entity 

The Employees· Retirement System (ERS), administered by the 12 member Board of Trustees, In 
accordance with the Trust Agreement between the Board and the Commission, is a contributory defined 
benefit pension system qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). The administrative 
operations are the responsibility of the ERS Staff and Board-appointed Administrator, who reports directly 
to the Board of Trustees. Publicly available Financial Statements for the ERS can be obtained at 6611 
Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 100, Riverdale, Maryland 20737. 

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), these 
financial statements present the Commission and its blended component unit, the ERS. A blended 
component unit, although a legally separate entity, is, in substance, part of the Commission's operations 
and therefore data from this unit are combined with data of the Commission. Accordingly, the financial 
statements of the ERS are included as a pension trust fund in the accompanying financial statements, 
and the ERS is the only such component unit of the Commission. 

52 



In accordance with GAAP, the Commission represents a joint venture of Montgomery and Prince 
George's Counties, reportable in the notes to their respective financial statements. The financial data of 
the Commission pertinent to Montgomery County and Prince George's County, for governmental, internal 
service, and private-purpose trust funds are set forth on a County basis in Note 6. 

(B) Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The Commission follows accounting standards established by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (''GASS"). The reporting requirements include: 

Management's Discussion and Analysis - GASB standards requires that financial statements be 
accompanied by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the Commission's financial activities in 
the form of "management's discussion and analysis" (MD&A). This analysis is similar to analysis the 
private sector provides in their annual reports. 

Government-wide Financial Statements - The reporting model includes financial statements prepared 
using full accrual accounting for all of the Commission's activities. This approach includes not just current 
assets and liabilities (such as cash and accounts payable) but also capital assets and long-term liabilities 
(such as buildings and infrastructure, including bridges and roads, and general obligation debt). Full 
accrual accounting also recognizes all revenues and the full cost to provide services each year, not just 
those received or paid in the current year or soon thereafter. Neither fiduciary funds nor component units 
that are fiduciary in nature are included in Government-wide financial statements. 

The basic financial statements include both Government-wide (based on the Commission as a whole) 
and fund financial statements. The focus is on both the Commission as a whole and the fund financial 
statements, including the major individual funds of the governmental and business-type categories, as 
well as the fiduciary funds (by category). Both the Government-wide and fund financial statements (within 
the basic financial statements) categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type. In 
the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, both the governmental and 
business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column and (b) are 
reflected, on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and 
receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. Eliminations have been made to minimize the 
double counting of Internal activities. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be 
analyzed and compared (between years and between governments) to enhance the usefulness of the 
information. 

Statement of Net Assets - The Statement of Net Assets is designed to display the financial 
position of the Commission (government and business-type activities). The Commission reports 
all capital assets, including infrastructure, in the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets and 
reports depreciation expense - the cost of "using up" capital assets - in the Statement of 
Activities. The net assets of the Commission have been broken down into three categories - 1) 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted. The Commission 
generally first uses restricted assets for expenses incurred for which both restricted and 
unrestricted assets are available. The Commission may defer the use of restricted assets based 
on a review of the specific transaction. 

Statement otActlvltles - The Government-wide Statement of Activities reports expenses and 
revenues in a format that focuses on the cost of each of the Commission's functions. The 
expense of individual functions is compared to the revenues generated directly by the function 
(for instance, through user charges or intergovernmental grants). The Government-wide 
Statement of Activities reflects both the gross and net cost per functional category (county 
planning and zoning, park operations and maintenance, recreation, etc.) that is otherwise being 
supported by general government revenues. The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses 
(including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants, and 
contributions. The program revenues must be directly associated with the function (county 
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planning and zoning, park operations and maintenance, recreation, etc.) or a business-type 
activity. Program revenues include 1) charges for County planning and zoning services; 2) 
charges for park operations and maintenance; 3) rentals and concessions; 4) recreational and 
cultural facilities and events and 5) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Property taxes and other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. Direct 
expenses are considered those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. 
The Commission does not allocate indirect expenses. The operating grants include operating­
specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column 
reflects capital-specific grants. 

Fund Financial Statements - Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, 
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the Government-wide 
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

In the fund financial statements, financial transactions and accounts of the Commission are organized on 
the basis of funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be an independent fiscal and separate 
accounting entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and/or other financial resources 
together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which are 
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance 
with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. The fund statements are presented on a current 
financial resource and modified accrual basis of accounting. This is the manner in which these funds are 
normally budgeted. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement 
focus and basis of accounting than the Government-wide statements' governmental activities column, 
reconciliations are presented which briefly explain the adjustments necessary to reconcile the fund 
financial statements to tho governmental activities column of the Government-wide financial statements. 

The Commission's fiduciary funds and the Employees' Retirement System, which is fiduciary in nature, 
are presented in the fund financial statements by fund type {pension, private purpose trust, and agency). 
Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (other local governments, 
private parties, pension participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the 
Commission, these funds are not incorporated into the Government-wide statements. 

Budgetary Comparison Schedules - Demonstrating compliance with the adopted budget is an 
important component of the Commission's accountability to the public. Many citizens participate in the 
process of establishing the annual operating budgets of state and local governments, and have a keen 
interest in following the financial progress of their governments over the course of the year. For this 
reason, the Commission has chosen to make its General Fund budgetary comparison statement part of 
the basic financial statements. The Commission and many other governments revise their original 
budgets over the course of the year for a variety of reasons. 

Since the Commission adopts its General Fund budget by accounts within each county, each of which 
has a dedicated tax levy, budgetary comparison summaries are presented for each account in Note 6. 
These accounts are as follows: Montgomery County Administration, Montgomery County Park, Prince 
George's County Administration, Prince George's County Park, and Prince George's County Recreation. 

(C) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The Government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus. The Government-wide, proprietary and pension trust and 
private purpose fiduciary fund flnancial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are generally recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year in 
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which they are levied. Grants and similar Items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Employee and employer contributions to Pension Trust Funds are recognized as revenues (additions to 
net assets) in the period in which employee services are performed. Both benefits and refunds paid are 
recognized as expenses (deductions from net assets) in the period in which employee services are 
performed. 

Government fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
Commission considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under the 
accrual basis of accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment has matured and is due. 

Property taxes, interest and grants associated with the current fiscal period are considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other 
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the 
Commission. 

The Commission reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Commission. It is used 
to account for the tax revenues and other revenues which fund the Commission's general 
operations and to account for all other financial resources except those required to be accounted 
for in another fund. 

Montgomery County and Prince George's County Capital Proiects Funds - These Capital 
Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition, development or Improvement of parkland 
and the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those accounted for in the 
proprietary funds and the Advance Land Acquisition Private Purpose Trust Funds. The 
Commission maintains separate funds for each county. 

Prince George's County Debt Service Fugd · This Debt Service Fund is used to account for the 
accumulation of resources and the payment of Prince George's County Park Bond principle, Interest, and 
related costs. 

The Commission reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Montgomery County and Prince George's County Enterprise Funds - These Enterprise 
Funds are used to account for recreational and cultural facilities operations that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. A separate Enterprise Fund is 
maintained for the enterprise operations of each county, each of which is considered a rnajor 
fund. The General Fund absorbs utility and administrative charges of the Prince George's County 
Enterprise Fund. These costs are estimated to be $1,250,000 and $530,000, respectively. 

Additionally, the Commission reports the following fund types: 

Other Governmental Funds __ The other governmental fund types used by the Commission are 
special revenue and nonmajor debt service. Special revenue funds are used to account for 
specific revenues that are legally restricted for particular purposes. Debt Service funds account 
for resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long~term debt of 
governmental funds. 
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Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of certain 
goods or services provided by one department to other departments of the Commission on a 
cost-reimbursement basis. There are six Internal Service Funds reported by the Commission: 
Montgomery County Capital Equipment Fund, Montgomery County Employee Benefits Fund, 
Montgomery County Risk Management Fund, Prince George's County Executive Office Building 
Fund, Prince George's County Employee Benefits Fund, and Prince George's County Risk 
Management Fund. Internal Service Funds are used to account for the Commission's group 
insurance and risk management programs; the executive office building on Kenilworth Avenue in 
Prince George's County; the recording of annual and sick leave earned, taken and accrued by 
employees; the administrative leave used by employees who are bargaining unit members; and 
financing of capital equipment purchases. Within the Employee Benefit Funds, the Commission 
has fully funded the short-term portion of the annual and compensatory leave liability required to 
be recorded in the governmental activities column of the Government Wide financial statements, 
and has funded 55.8% of the long-term portion. 

The Commission reports the following fiduciary fund types: 

Pension Trust Funds - The Employees' Retirement Fund is used to account for all activities of 
the Employees' Retirement System including accumulation of resources for, and payment of. 
retirement annuities and/or other benefits and the administrative costs of operating the system. 

The Other Postemployment Benefits Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources 
for postretirement health care benefits provided by the Commission. The Commission is not 
required to make additional contributions unless obligated to do so by resolution, and the fund is 
not funded based on actuarial information. Starting in fiscal year 2003 this fund is being used to 
provide current retiree health care benefits. 

Private-Purpose Trust Funds - Private-Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for funds 
whose principal and interest are legally held in trust and must be expended in accordance with 
their designated purposes. 

Agency Funds - The Agency Funds are used to account for the State retirement funds of 
participating Commission employees and retirees, and for certain deposits held. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, 
generally are followed in both the Government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the 
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of GASS. Governments also have 
the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and 
Enterprise Funds, subject to this same limitation. The Commission has elected to apply GASS 
pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements Issued on or before 
November 30, 1989 unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASS pronouncements. 

In the process of aggregating data for the Government-wide financial statements, some amounts reported 
as interfund activity and balances in the funds should be eliminated or reclassified. As a general rule the 
effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the Government-wide financial statements. Internal 
Service Funds are used by management to charge to funds using the service the costs of capital 
equipment financing, risk management, employee benefits, and the Executive Office Building. The 
assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Funds are included in the governmental activities column of 
the Statement of Net Assets. The Commission eliminates internal fund expenses by allocating the 
expenses to other funds. Expenses for capital equipment are allocated based on revenues, for risk 
management based on revenues, and for employee benefits based on salaries expense. 1he funds are 
so unique that a single allocation method was not appropriate. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
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connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 
enterprise funds and of the Internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperatlng revenues and expenses. 

(D) Assets, Llabilities, and Net Assets or Equity 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and mature within three months of the date acquired by the 
Commission. 

Equity In Pooled Cash and Investments - The Commission pools the cash and investments of all funds 
into a common pool to maintain investment flexibi lity and maximize earnings. The Commission's Finance 
Department manages the pool. Investment earnings are allocated to participating Funds based upon 
their average monthly equity in pooled cash balances. Commission investments, including those In the 
Pension Trust Fund, are stated at fair value. 

Property Taxes Receivable - All property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for 
uncollectlbles. The property tax receivable allowance is based on an aging of receivables, with 
increasing percentages applied to older receivables. Property taxes are levied and collected for the 
special taxing districts of the Commission by Montgomery and Prince George's County Governments, as 
appropriate. Semiannual tax payment plans are automatic for homeowners living in their properties 
unless they request to remain on an annual payment plan. Under the semiannual payment plan, one-half 
of the real property taxes are due by September 30 and the remaining one-half Is due by December 31 . 
Real property taxes are levied on July 1 each year and become delinquent on October 1 and January 1, 
at which time interest and penalties commence. Personal property and real property taxes levied for a 
fraction of a year are due when billed. Tax liens on real property are sold at public auction on the second 
Monday in June in Montgomery County and on the second Monday in May in Prince George's County for 
taxes that are delinquent. 

The property tax revenues and rates of the Commission are not subject to any legislative limitations. 
However, the respective County Council approves such revenues and rates when budgets are adopted. 

Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities - Accounts payable includes only short-term liabilities 
due and payable within the normal course of business. 

Inventories - Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market for proprietary funds. 

Restricted Assets - Certain proceeds of the Commission's bonds, as well as certain resources set aside 
for enterprise fund revenue bond repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet 
because they are maintained in investment accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond 
covenants. 

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and Infrastructure assets 
(e.g., roads, bridges, trails , dams and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or 
business-type activities columns in the Government-wide financial statements. The Commission defines 
capital assets as assets with an initial. individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in 
excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased 
or constructed and actual costs are not known. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair 
market value at the date of donation. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The costs 
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets 
lives are not capitalized. 
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Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

A.sse.ts 
Buildings and Improvements 
Infrastructure 
Machinery and Equipment 

Years 
20 - 40 
15 - 60 
5 · 10 

Advances to Other Funds - Long-term lnterfund advances at June 30, 2003, consist of $3,829,363 of 
land acquired by the Prince George's County Advance Land Acquisition Private Purpose Trust Fund that 
is being used for park purposes in the Prince George's County Enterprise Fund. The advances are 
recorded as noncurrent receivables/payables in the respective Funds. 

Compensated Absences - Commission employees earn annual leave and sick leave in varying 
amounts, and are granted three days of personal leave annually. Some employees may also earn 
compensatory leave in lieu of overtime pay. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since 
the Commission does not have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service. 

Each pay cycle, an estimated amount for compensated absences expenditures is recorded for the 
General Fund employees and is recognized as expenditures In the General Fund and revenue in the 
Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund. The estimate is equal to the amount of annual and sick leave 
expected to be taken during the year, plus an amount to fund the long-term leave liability. As General 
Fund employees take annual and sick leave. this usage is charged to the Employee Benefits Internal 
Service Fund. When annual and sick leave are used or taken by employees charged to proprietary 
funds, the expense is charged directly to the employees' cost center in the proprietary funds. 
Compensated absences for leave liabilities are charged directly to the proprietary funds' cost center to 
which the employee is assigned. The year-end liability for annual leave and compensatory leave Is 
calculated based on hours of leave available, priced at current salary rates plus applicable employer 
payroll taxes. 

Long-term Obllgatlons - In the Government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the 
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net 
assets. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources 
while discounts on debt Issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures. 

Landfill Closure and Postclosure Costs - The Bonifant Road Rubble Landfill stopped receiving solid 
waste and is closed. The landfill was capped during fiscal year 2003. The total current cost of landfill 
postclosure care is an estimate and subject to changes resulting from inflation, deflation, technology, or 
changes In applicable laws or regulations. 

The postclosure care cost, estimated to be approximately $118,000 over the 4 1/2 year remaining 
postclosure care period, is reported as a long-term obligation in the Government-wide financial 
statements. The Montgomery County Park Account in the General Fund will pay the annual operating 
expense of approximately $26,000 to monitor and maintain the landfill. 

Fund Equity - In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance 
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a 
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specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to 
change. 

Reserves - Fund balances in the governmental funds are reserved for encumbrances and debt 
service to Indicate the amounts am not available for other expenditures. 

Designated . Fund Balances for Individual Funds and Accounts • The Commission has 
designated $17,744,500 of fund balances in the General Fund at June 30, 2003, to fund fiscal 
year 2004 operations and contingencies, as follows. 

1\/bntgomery Prince George's 
Coun!}'. Coun!X Total 

Administration Account $ 1,673,900 $ 685,300 $ 2,359,200 
Park Account 4,013,400 8,270,200 12,283,600 
Recreation Account NIA 3,101,700 3,101,700 

$ 5,687,300 $ 12,057,200 $ 17,744,500 

(2) - EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
BALANCE SHEET AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

The governmental fund balance sheet (Exhibit 3} includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total 
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the Statement of Net Assets 
(Exhibit 1 ). Details related to the most significant items on the reconciliation are as follows. 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore are not reported 
in the funds. The capital assets related to governmental funds (not including internal service funds) 
include: 

Land 
Buildings 
Improvements Other than Buildings 
Infrastructure 
Machinery and Equipment 
Accumulated Depreciation on Buildings, 

Improvements and Machinery and Equipment 
Construction In Progress 

Total 

$ 242,712,154 
140,735,264 

13,724,214 
120,645,893 

38,859,474 

(144,163,277) 
19,621,006 

$ 432 ,134,728 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. The long-term debt related to governmental funds (not including 
internal service funds} include: 

Bonds and Notes Payable: 
Due Within One Year 
Due in More than One Year 

Estimated Liability for Postclosure Costs: 
Due Within One Year 
Due in More than One Year 

Accrued Interest Payable 
Totals 
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$ 10,755,000 
139,945,757 

26,230 
91,805 

3,016,017 
$ 153,834,809 



(3)- STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

(A) Budgetary Information 

The following procedures are used In establishing the annual budget. 

On or before January 15, the Commission submits to the County Executive of each County a proposed 
annual budget for the respective accounts of the General Fund (including park debt service) and the 
Special Revenue Funds, and a budget plan for the respective Enterprise Funds and Internal Service 
Funds. The Capital Projects Funds' budgets and six-year expenditure plans are submitted to the County 
Executive of Prince George's County prior to each November 1 and to the County Executive of 
Montgomery County prior to November 1 of each odd-numbered year. These budgets and plans include 
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

Each County Executive transmits the budgets and plans with recommendations to the respective County 
Council. The County Councils conduct public hearings on the budgets and plans, and the budgets and 
plans are legally adopted prior to July 1. 

The legal level of budgetary control is the department or function for the Administration Accounts and the 
Account level for the Montgomery County Park Account, Prince George's County Park Account, and 
Prince George's County Recreation Account. The Commission's expenditures may not exceed tho total 
approved budget for each of the General Fund Accounts without prior approval by the respective County 
Council, except where grant funds received with the knowledge and approval of the respective County 
constitute an automatic budget amendment, thereby increasing the appropriations. Management is 
authorized to allow a department or function within a General Fund Account to be overspent by up to 10% 
of the approved budget without Council approval, provided the account in total is not overspent. 

General Fund and Special Revenue Funds unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end. Capital 
project appropriations do not lapse until the project Is completed. The budget plans for the proprietary 
funds serve as a guide to the Commission and not as legally binding limitations. 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for the General Fund. The 
budget for the General Fund is adopted on a modified accrual basis consistent with GAAP except that 
encumbrances are treated as expenditures. 

The actual expenditures in the General Fund Statements of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and 
Changes ln Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual are presented on a basis 
consistent with The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission Adopted Annual Budget. 
All expenditures made during fiscal year 2003 were within the legal limitations pertinent to the 
Commission. Under the budgetary method, current year outstanding encumbrances are charged to the 
budgetary appropriations and are considered expenditures of the current period. Governmental GAAP 
considers outstanding encumbrances as reservations of fund balances that are charged to expenditures 
in the period in which the goods or services are used or received. 

A reconciliation from the Budget Basis to the GAAP Basis for the year ended June 30, 2003 is as follows. 
The account information shown below is reported in Note 6. 
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MontQomery Countl Prince Geor2e's Count~ rotal 
Administration Park Administration Park Recreation General 

Account Account Account Account Account Fund 
Adjustment to rxpenditures 

To Increase • 
Encumbrances • 

June 30, 2002 $ 1,322,048 $ 960,100 $ 2,383,788 $ 2,963.424 $ 1,090,910 $ 8,720,270 
To Decrease • 

Encumbrances · 
June 30, 2003 (1,252,687) (2,152,000) (2,843,984) (2,515,337) (1 ,064,308! (9,8~8.316! 
Total Adjustment 69,361 (1,191,900) (460,196) 448,087 26,602 (1,108,046) 

Excess of Revenues and Other 
Sources over (under) 
Expenditures end Other Uses: 

GAAP Basis 218,385 2,657,558 1,800,180 (3,042,392! (971,389! 5621342 
Budget Basis $ 287,746 $ 1,365,658 $ 1,339,984 $ (2,594,305) $ (944,787) $ (545,704) 

(4) · DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

(A) Cash and Investments 

The Commission's deposits and investments as of June 30, 2003, totaled $660,806,040. The 
Commission's pool of deposits and investments ($134,966,806) is available to all funds, except for the 
Pension Trust Funds. 

Cash in Banks · At year-end, the carrying amount of deposits was $1,503,457 and the bank balance was 
$867,918. In addition, the Commission held cash at various locations totaling $250,538, and the 
Employees' Retirement System Pension Trust Fund had a cash deficit of $(3,856). Of the bank balance, 
$500,000 was covered by Federal depository insurance and the remainder was collateralized by 
$3,709,902 of securities held by a member of the Federal Reserve banking system In the name of the 
Commission and the Commission's bank. 

The Commission requires collateral for the pooled cash and investments of ten or more days duration to 
be held in the Commission's name by the trust department of a bank other than the pledging bank. The 
Commission's policy was complied with throughout the year ended June 30, 2003. Collateral shall be 
maintained in excess of FDIC Insurance coverage for all Commission bank cash accounts, certificates of 
deposits and time deposits. 

Money Market Deposits - At year end the carrying value (fair value) of deposits in money market 
accounts is $4,055,008. All such deposits relate to cash and investments restricted for debt service, for 
construction or for retiree health costs. 

Investments ~ The Annotated Code of Maryland authorizes the Commission to invest in obligations for 
which the United States has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest, 
obligations that are issued by a Federal agency, repurchase agreements, bankers' acceptances, 
commercial paper, money market mutual funds, the State Treasurer's investment pool, certificates of 
deposits and municipal bonds and notes. 

Statutes require that investments comply with the guidelines relative to investment grade and/or ratings 
and Securities and Exchange Commission registrations where appllcable. Also, statutes require that 
securities underlying repurchase agreements have a fair valuo of at least 102% of the cost of the 
investment. If during the year, the fair value of securities underlying such investments falls below this 
required level, additional collateral is pledged or other collateral in the amount of the required level is 
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substituted. All collateral must meet statutory requirements and is held in the Commission's name by a 
third-party custodian. 

There were no unusual variations in the mix or volume of the investment portfolio during the fiscal year. 
The Commission was in compliance with all applicable investment statutes throughout the fiscal year. 

The cash included in the following restricted cash and investments are fully collateralized as discussed 
above: 

Cash and Investments Restricted for Debt Service - At year-end, the Commission had $589,848 
restricted to pay debt service for Little Bennett Golf Course Revenue Bonds. 

Cash and Investments Restricted for Unspent Debt Proceeds - At year-end, the Commission had 
$23,086,318 of unspent bond and note proceeds restricted to pay construction costs for various 
projects, and for equipment purchase. 

Pension Trust Funds Investments - Statutes do not restrict the investment activity of those two 
funds. 

§ecurltles Lending Transactions for Defined Benefit Pension Plan - The Maryland-National Capital 
Park and Planning Commission Employees' Retirement System Board of Trustees policies authorize the 
lending of investment securities. These lending transactions are managed by the custodian bank. There 
were no violations of legal or contractual provisions, or borrower or lending agent default losses known to 
the securities lending agent as of June 30, 2003. Due to the nature of the program's collateralization of 
securities loaned at a minimum of 102% of the market value plus accrued interest, management of the 
System believes that there is no credit risk, since the lender owes the borrower more than the borrower 
owes the lender. 

Securities are loaned against collateral that may include cash, U.S. government securities and 
Irrevocable letters of credit. U.S. securities are loaned against collateral valued at 102% of the market 
value of the securities plus any accrued interest. Non-U.S. securities are loaned against collateral valued 
at 105% of the fair value of the securities plus any accrued interest. Non-cash collateral cannot be 
pledged or sold unless the borrower defaults. Consequently, the non-cash collateral has not been 
reported as an asset or liability on the Fiduciary Fund Statement of Net Assets. All securities loans can 
be terminated on demand by either the lender or the borrower, although the average term of overall loans 
is 35 days. 

Cash collateral is invested in a short-term investment pool, which has an average weighted maturity of 38 
days. Cash collateral may also be invested in "term loans", in which case the investments match the loan 
term. These loans can be terminated on demand by either borrower or lender. There are no dividends or 
coupon payments owing on the securities lent. 

The custodian bank's responsibilities include performing appropriate borrower and collateral investment 
credit analyses, demanding adequate types and levels of collateral, and complying with applicable 
Department of Labor and Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council regulations concerning 
securities lending. Loss indemnification ls provided when securities are not returned duo to the 
insolvency of a borrower and the trustee bank falls to fulfill its contractual responsibilities relating to the 
lending of those securities to that borrower. 

The fair value of securities on loan as of June 30, 2003 was $51.472,325, which was collateralized by 
cash of $43,782,139 and non-cash collateral of $9,025,169. The securities lending gross earnings for the 
year ended June 30, 2003 were $714,806, while the borrower's rebate totaled $594,602 and bank fees 
and commissions were $47,887, which resulted in a net addition from securities lending activity of 
$72,317. 
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Categories of Investments - Investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk 
assumed by the Commission at year-end. Category 1 includes investments for which the securities are 
insured, registered, or held by the Commission or its agent in the Commission's name. Category 2 
includes uninsured and unregistered investment securities held by the counterparty's trust department or 
agent in the Commission's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investment securities 
held by the counterparty or its trust department or agent but not in the Commission's name. The 
Commission, including the Pension Trust Fund, did not hold Category 2 or 3 investments at year-end. 
Certain investments as listed in the following table are not subject to categorization, including mutual 
funds and commingled trusts, because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book 
entry form. 

The Commission's investments at June 30, 2003 were as follows: 

Investments Subject to Categorization 
Commission Investments (all Category 1 :) 

Commercial Paper 
United States Treasury BIiis 
Bankers' Acceptances 
Federal National Mortgage Association Notes 
Federal Homo Loan Bank Notes 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Association Notes 
Repurchase Agreements 

Total Commission Investments 
Fiduciary Fund Investments (all category 1) : 

Commercial Paper 
Fixed Income securities 

Not on securities loan 
On securities loan for securities collateral 

Common Stocks 
Not on securities loan 
On securities loan for securities collateral 

Total Fiduciary Funds Investments 
Total Investments Subject 

To Categorization 
Investments Not Subject to Categorization 

Fiduciary Funds: 
Stock Mutual Fund 
Fixed Income Mutual Fund 
Commingled Stock Trust 
Securities Lending Short Term 

Collateral Investment Pool 
Investments Held by Broker Dealers 

Under Securities Loans with Cash 
Collateral: 

Corporate Bonds 
Common Stock 

Total Investments not subject to categorization 
Commission Total 
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Reported Amount/ 
Fair Value 

$ 424,091 

$ 

7,035,174 
22,691 ,359 
31,599,131 
6,801 ,921 

27,053,480 
59,532,241 

155,137,397 

367,836 

137,426,611 
7,304,546 

190,088,463 

1,475,089 
336,662,545 

491 ,799,942 

26,295,417 

4,036,165 
46,394,541 

43,782,139 

22,325,708 
20,366,981 

163,200,951 

655,000,893 



Cash and investment balances are shown in the financial statements as follows: 

Statement of Net Assets 

Equity In Pooled Cash and Investments 

Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Revenue Bond Covenant Accounts 

Unspent Bonds Proceeds 

Statement of Net Assets - FlducialV Funds 
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments - Private Purpose Trust Funds 

Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments - Agency Funds 

Restricted Cash Unspent Bond Proceeds - Private Purpose Trust Funds 

Cash and Marketable Securities - Pension Trust Funds 

Collateral for Securities Lending Transactions - Pension Trust Funds 

Total 

They are composed of: 

Cash in Banks 

Cash of Employees Retirement System Pension Trust Fund 

Cash in Other Locations 

Money Market Deposits 

Investments 

Total 

(B) Capital Assets 

$ 118,579,200 

589,848 
23,086,318 

13,032,277 

3,355,329 

843,866 

457,537,063 

43,782,139 

$ 660,806,040 

$ 1,503,457 

(3,856) 

250,538 

4,055,008 

655,000,893 

$ 660,806,040 

A summary of governmental activities capital assets at June 30, 2003 is as follows: 

Jul~ 1, 2002 Increases Oocreescs Transferu June 30, 2003 
Capital assets nol being depreciated: 

Land $ 230,157,544 $ 1:3,:308,027 $ (4,920) $ $ .!43,480,851 
Construction In progress 1714431351 10,508,793 (8,329,138! 19,621,006 

Total caplt,;il assets not being depreciated 247,800,895 23,814,8~0 !4,920! !8,329, 138! 263,0811657 

Capital assets being deprecl:;it e<.1: 
Buildings and lmprovemonts 100,088,202 220,989 7,138,036 157,447,227 
lnfrostructure 119,454,791 1,191 ,102 120,64:i,893 
Mael'linery and equipment 53,345,251 3,889,483 !902, 1 A4l 56,332,520 

Total capital assets being d8preclated 3.!2,888 ,244 4,110 452 !902,194) 8,329,138 334,425,640 

Less accumula ted depreciation ror: 
Buildings and Improvements (75,862,361) (4,801,943) (80,664,304) 
lnfra&true1ura (35,830,267) (2 ,170,214) (:38,000,501) 
Machinery end equipment !34,934,?45) (4 ,1592,843! 902,194 !38,724,894! 

Total accumulatod depreciation !146,626,893! p 1 ,66$,000) 902,194 !157,389,899) 

Total capital assets bGing depreciated, net 176,261,351 (?,M4,548) 8,329,138 177,035,941 

Governmental activities capital asset~, not $ 423,862,248 $ 16,260,272 $ !4,920) $ $ 440,117,598 

Infrastructure assets relating to athletic fields constructed prior to July 1, 2001 have not been included 
above. GASB Statement No. 34 allows the Commission until June 30, 2006 to record these assets. 
Athletic fields completed after July 1, 2001 are included. 
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Summaries of business-type activities capital assets at June 30, 2003, made up of two major enterprise 
funds, is as follows: 

July I, 2002 lncreai;es Decreases Tranefers June 30, 2003 
Mont~orne~ Count~ Entererlse Fund 
Capital assGts not being depreciated; 

Land $ 11,584,468 $ $ $ $ 11,584,468 
Construction in progress 1,773,131 635.748 (825,663) 11583,216 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 13,357,599 635,748 (825,663) 13,167,684 

Capital assGts bGlng dGpreclated 
Buildings and improvements 25,306,606 825,663 26,132,269 
Machinery and equipment 4,559,388 183,727 (22,837) 4,720,278 

Total capital assets being depreciated 29,865,994 183,727 (22,837) 825,663 30,852,547 

Less accumulated depr0clatlon for: 
Buildings (5,906.184) (1,220,811) (7,126,995) 
Machinery and equipment (2,717,974) (371,269) 22,829 (3,066,4141 

Total accumulated depreciation (8,624, 1581 p ,592,0SOJ 22,829 (10,193,409l 

Total capital assets being depr0clated, net 21 ,241,836 (1,408,353) (8) 825,663 20,659,138 

Capital assGts, net $ 34,599,435 $ (772,605) $ \81 $ $ 33,826,822 

Prince George's County Enterprise Fund 
Capital assets not being depreciated; 

Land $ 7,779,131 $ $ $ $ 7/79,131 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 65,055,716 65,055,716 
Machinery and equipment 4,129,137 178,117 p 1,800) 4,295,454 

Total capital assets being depreciated 69,184,853 178,1 17 p 1,eooi 69,351,170 

Less accumulated dGpreclallon for: 
Buildings and improvements (11,618,361) (1,977,036) (13,495,397) 
Machinery and equipment (21240,681) (204,203) 11,800 (2,433,084) 

Total accumulated depreciation {13,759,042) !2,181,239) 11,800 !15,928,481) 

Total capital asseti. being depreciated, net 55,425,811 !2,003,1221 53,422,689 

Capilal assets, net $ 63,204,942 $ (2,003, 122l $ $ $ 61,201 ,820 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Commission as follows: 

Prince 
Montgomery George's 

Count~ Count~ Total 
Governmental activities: 

General Government $ 131,734 $ 161,998 $ 293,732 

County Planning and Zoning 532,517 296,771 829,288 
ParkOperatlons and Maintenance 4,605,981 4,240,296 8,846,277 
Recreation Programs 1,695,703 1,695,703 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 5,270,232 $ 6 ,394,768 $ 11,665,000 

Total depreciation expense • business-type activities: 
Recreational and Cultural Facilities $ 1,592,080 $ 2,181 .~39 $ 3,773,319 
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Construction Commitments - The Commission is committed to $14,043,063 for construction contracts 
for work to be pertormed In subsequent years. 

(C) lnterfund Recelvables, Payables, and Transfers 

The Commission's only interfund receivable and payable balance at June 30, 2003 is $$932, 702 payable 
by the Employees' Post Employment Benefit Pension Trust fund to the Group Insurance Internal Service 
Fund. 

The Commission had the following interfund transfers during fiscal year 2003: 

Montgomery Pr1m::;o Gciorgo'!i Pnnoo Gr,orgo'a 
County County P9rll Non mnJor 
Cepitol capital Debt Government1:II Proprietary 

tnt~llr>dT!'.!!Ql!lers: G~noral Projcets Pro)oQ1o $QMQQ F'unoe Flltl03 TQlnl 

TtanB!ors In 
08Mfal Fund • Admlnlatrallon Account $ $ $ s s $ $ 

Gonqrol F'und Parll Accoont 10,000 2,247,000 12,847,033 3 ,ij31 ,157 4,248.~00 23,143,390 
GOll<lral Fund • Roorcollon A0to1Jnl 388,600 388,600 
lntnrrol Sor/lco Fund - Group lnaurnnce 2,Gt16.~t4 188,749 2,845,283 
$paclal l'lli!llonuv Fund 222,930 222,930 
Cap,tbl Projbola • lntora,t &11,3n 641 ,377 
Entorpnllll Fuod 17!,000 175,000 
Total Tl'IIMlenl In s 3,,1971691 $ 185,000 s 2,469,936 s 12;,9<17.033 $ 3,891,167 s 4,825,549 $ 27,4161506 

Tranote,a out 
Gonori;tl Fun(l • A<,111n111ra11on Account $ s $ $ $ $ 71)8,708 $ 708,709 
Clenoral Fund - Perk Account 59,750 581,627 1,540,""4 ?, 181,621 
GoflOfal Fund - Recreation 347,36Z 347,(le2 
lntomal Sorvioo Fund• Risk M.1nngomo~ 11 ,137 11,137 
tnlgmal Servlc0 Fund - Exocullvo Olllco Building 2,225 ~.225 
Debt Sonnee Fund 16,588,100 18,500,190 
Capital ProJecto 2 ,207,000 22<1,936 175,000 2,654,535 
Spaolol l'IIIY()n\lO ~und 50,000 l!0,000 
Enlerp~so FUtld 4,&36.eOO 175 387 4,8121107 
T olol T ronolcr.; O.,t s 23,531,000 s 59,750 $ 681,627 $ s 222,936 $ 3,0?.0,263 $ 27,416,566 

A majority of the transfers ($16,588,190) was to provide funding for the Debt Service Fund for Park 
Acquisition and Development Bonds. 

Proprietary fund transfers are made up of the following: 

Montgomery Prince George's 
County County Internal Total 

Enterprise Enterprise Service Proprietary 
lnterfund Transfers: Fund Fund Funds Funds 

Transfers In 

General Fund • Park Account • $ 86,000 $ 4,162,200 $ $ 4,248,200 
General Fund • Recreation Account 388,600 388,600 
Internal Service Fund • Group Insurance 78,173 97,214 13,362 188,749 
Total Transfers In $ 164,173 $ 4,648,014 $ 13,362 $ 4,825,549 

Transfers Out 

General Fund • Administration Account $ $ $ 768,708 $ 7613,708 

General Fund • Park Account 1,540,444 1,540.444 

General Fund • Recreation 347,362 347,362 

Internal SeNice Fund • Risk Managciment 11,137 11,137 

Internal Service Fund • EOB 2,225 2,225 
Capital Projects 175,000 175,000 

Enterprise 175,367 175,387 

$ 175,000 $ $ 2,845,263 $ 3,020,263 
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The Commission's policy is to account for the construction of Prince George's County Enterprise Fund 
assets in the Capital Projects Fund until completed. Once completed, the assets are transferred and 
capitalized in the Prince George's County Enterprise Fund. 

In addition to the above transfers, tax revenues of $493,058 not needed to pay current debt service were 
transferred from the Advanced Land Acquisition Debt Service Funds to the Advanced Land Acquisition 
Private Purpose Trust Funds. 

(0) Operating Leases 

The Commission is committed under several operating leases for office space expiring at various dates 
through 2013. Each agreement provides for termination In the event of nonappropriation of funds. 

Future minimum commitments under operating leases at June 30, 2003 are as follows ($OOO's). 

Operating Leases 
Prince 

Year Ending Montgomery George's 
June 30 Total Count~ Count~ 

2004 $ 1,951 $ 363 $ 1,588 
2005 1,881 368 1,513 
2006 1,621 217 1,404 
2007 1,438 91 1,347 
2008 405 405 
2009 to 2013 535 535 

Total minimum lease payments $ 7,831 $ 1,039 $ 6 ,792 

In fiscal year 2003, expenditures in the General Fund included $932,872 (Montgomery · $105,025, Prince 
George's • $827,847) relating to the rental of office space. 

(E) Long•Term Obligations 

Notes Payable • Notes payable are only reported in enterprise funds and at the Government-wide level. 
Payments required to maturity on notes payable at June 30, 2003 are as follows ($000's). 

Montgome!l'. Count~ P(iO!::~ ~iQrgi'§ QQ!,Jnt)! 
Year Ending Governmental Enterprise Fund Governmental 
June 30 Total Prlncieal Interest Prlncieal Interest Princieal Interest 
2004 $ 2,140 $ 1,685 $ 131 $ 87 $ 9 $ 145 $ 83 
2005 1,665 1,270 80 90 5 145 75 
2006 1,241 922 36 59 2 155 67 
2007 817 547 18 27 1 165 59 
2008 805 552 5 27 1 170 50 
2009-2013 994 895 99 

Total payments $ 7,662 $ 4,976 $ 270 $ 290 $ 18 $ 1,675 $ 433 

General Obligation Bonds · The Commission is authorized to issue general obligation bonds for the 
acquisition of park land and the development of parks, designated as Park Acquisition and Development 
Bonds ("Park Bonds"); to provide resources for advance land acquisition for highways, schools and other 
public purposes, designated as Advance Land Acquisition Bonds ("Advance Land Bonds"); and to refund 
both Park and Advance Land Bonds. The general obligation bonds are issued on the full faith and credit 
of the Commission and the county for which the bonds are issued. 
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Mandatory taxes of 3.6 cents per $100 of real property assessed valuation (9 cents for personal property) 
in Montgomery County and at least 4 cents per $100 of real property assessed valuation (10 cents for 
personal property) In Prince George's County are required by Article 28 of the Annotated Code of 
Maryland to be levied in the Metropolitan District In the respective counties for the payment of Park Bond 
debt service. In 2003, debt service payments approximated 0.46 cents per $100 of real property and 1.15 
cents per $100 of personal property for Montgomery County and 2.88 cents for real property and 7.20 
cents for personal property for Prince George's County. The remainder of the proceeds of the mandatory 
taxes was used for operating and maintaining the park system of the respective counties. 

The Advance Land Bonds are payable from limited annual ad valorem property taxes which are levied by 
the respective county on all property assessed for the purpose of county taxation. 

The debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds, for each of the subsequent five 
years and in five-year increments thereafter is as follows (OOO's): 

MontQomeri Count~ General Oblig1;1iion Bonds 

Governmental Activities 
Total Total Total Total Total TOTAL 

Fiscal Park Park Park ALA ALA ALA 
Year Principal Interest Palments Prlncleal Interest Payments 

2004 $ 2,295 $ 1 ,341 3,636 $ 420 $ 175 $ 585 
2005 2,070 1,246 3,316 415 154 569 
2006 2,140 1 ,168 3 ,308 465 134 589 
2007 2,180 1 ,066 3,266 475 115 590 
2008 2,150 1,000 3,150 465 95 560 
2009 • 2013 10,740 3,603 14,343 1,680 204 1,804 
2014 - 2018 7 ,005 1,586 8,591 305 12 317 
2019 • 2023 3 ,545 31 7 3,862 
Totals $ 32,125 $ 11,347 $ 43,472 $ 4,225 $ 888 $ 5,114 

Prince George'e Count~ General Obll9atlon Bonds 

GovernmGntal Activiliea Total Commission 
Total Total Total Total Total Total G8noral 

Fiscal Park Park Park ALA ALA ALA ObllgaUon 
Y.e.fil Prlnoiea1 Interest Pa~ments PrincieaJ Interest Pa~menta Bonds 

2004 $ 7,716 $ 4,517 $ 12,232 $ 325 $ 116 $ 441 $ 16,904 
2005 7,895 4,138 12,031 320 100 420 16,336 
2006 8,065 3,805 11 ,870 320 84 404 16,1 81 
2007 8,145 3,470 11,615 315 88 383 15 ,854 
2008 B,235 3,137 11,372 305 53 358 15 ,440 
2009 · :>013 39,710 10,465 50,195 865 67 952 67,374 
2014-2018 24,180 3,841 27,801 36,709 
2019 • 2023 9,730 545 101275 14 137 
Totals $ 1131655 $ 33,736 $ 147,391 $ 2,470 $ 488 $ 2,958 $ 198 ,935 

Note: Series AA Bonds are auction rate notes, with short-term interest rates reset every 35 days. For 
purposes of the above calculations, a rate of 1 .05%, the rate in effect at June 30, 2003, was used. 
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Outstanding General Obllgatlon Bonds - General obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 2003, 
consist of the following individual issues (OOO's): 

~ 
~l!!Y 
Park .Acquisition and 
Dovelopmsnt Bonds 

1990 Mvance Refunding 
Series N-2 
SeriesQ-2 
Series R·2 Advarro Refunding 
Series LJ.2 
SeriesY-2 
Series OC-2 (Note 1) 

Advance land Acquisition Bonds 
Bonds or 1994 
Bonds of 1995 M.!ance 
Refunding 

00-2 Al.A Gen ();)Ilg. Refunding 

Total M::intgomery COUnty General 
Obligation Bonds 

Pri11C0 George's County 
Park kqulsltlon and 
Development Bonds 

Series M-2 
Series P-2 
Series S-2 M/ence Refunding 
SeriesT-2 
Series W-2 
SeriesZ-2 
SeriesAA-2 
Serles 68-2 Aovaroa Refunding 

.Advance Land Acquisition Bonds 
Bonds ol 1995 MJance Ptelundlng 

Total Prince George's county 
General Obligation Bonds 

Effective 
Interest P.ate 

at Date of Sale Dated 

6,798.1 % 06/01/90 
4, 7561 12/01 /93 
6.3600 11/1&94 
4.8972 12/01/95 
4,5346 08/01/98 
5,CZ3? 11/01/00 
3.7819 12/01/02 

Rnal FY2004 
Maturity Serial 

[)aite ~ 

07/01/03 $ 555 
07/01/03 275 
11/01104 200 
07/01114 530 
00'01/18 210 
11/01/20 170 
12101/22 355 

2,295 

Original 
Issue 

$ 6,675 
5,500 
5,000 
8,700 
7,000 
5,700 

12,15.5 
50,730 

Outstanding 
at 

June 30, 2003 

$ 555 
275 
400 

7,Z>O 
6,160 
5,360 

12,155 
32,125 

6.3609 11/16'94 07/01/04 90 2,200 180 

4.7707 12/01/95 07101/10 330 3,345 2,495 
3.4748 12/01/02 12/01/14 _______ 1,_550 ____ 1_,550_ 

5.1483 % 
4.8.382 
4.97f!7 
5.3913 
6.4000 
4.5481 
Note2 

3.3944 

4.8991 

05/01/93 
12/01/93 
12/01/95 
01/15'97 
06/25'98 
07/1&'01 
0712&'02 
12/01/02 

420 7,095 4,225 

$ 2,715 $ 57,825 $ 36,350 
==::::::::= 

07/01/00 $ 700 
07/01/03 700 
07/01/12 2,410 
01/16/17 1,300 
07/01/12 600 
05'01/21 560 
05'01/22 600 
07/01/14 845 ----7,715 

$ 15,250 
14,500 
30,025 
33,000 
7,325 

18,700 
21,200 
21,110 

161 ,110 

$ 700 
700 

20,645 
26,700 
5,620 

17,580 
20,600 
21 ,110 

113,655 

1~/01/95 07/01/10 325 3,300 2,470 

$ 8,040 $ 164,410 $ 116,125 

Notes: (1) The CC-2 Bonds include Advance Refunding and Park Development Bonds 
(2) Series AA Bonds are auction rate notes, with short-term interest rates reset every 35 days. At 

June 30, 2003 a rate of 1.05% was in effect. 

Revenue Bonds and Revenue Notes Payable - The Commission is authorized to issue revenue bonds 
and notes to finance the cost of revenue producing facilities and to refund outstanding bonds. The 
revenue bonds and notes are not general obligations of the Commission or county for which they are 
issued and are payable solely from revenues generated from revenue producing facilities. The 
Commission's revenue bonds and revenue notes payable, which totaled $10,851,668 at June 30, 2003, 
are accounted for In the Montgomery County Enterprise Funds. Debt service expenditures for the 
revenue bonds and notes totaled $1,592,998 for the fiscal year. There were no revenue bonds or 
revenue notes payable for Prince George's County. 
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The outstanding proprietary fund debt as of June 30, 2003, and the related debt service requirements for 
Montgomery County are as follows (OOO's): 

Business-type Activities 
Revenue Bonds and Notes 

Fiscal Total Total Total 
Voaf Princleal Interest Pa~m1ints 

2004 $ 984 $ 587 $ 1,571 
2005 1,019 532 1,551 
?006 1,054 475 1,529 
2007 2,800 416 3,216 
2008 2,550 203 2,753 
2009 - 2013 2,223 372 2,595 
2014-2018 222 6 228 
Total $ 10,852 $ 2,591 $ 13,443 

Restricted investments related to the Commission's Montgomery County revenue notes and bonds are a 
restricted Debt Service Reserve Fund of $589,848 for Little Bennett Golf Course. 

The Commission is in compliance with all significant restrictive covenants related to revenue bonds and 
notes. 

Outstanding Revenue Bonds and Revenue Notes Payable - Revenue bonds, net of a $288,567 
deferred amount on the Little Bennett Golf Facilities Refunding Bond, and revenue notes payable at Juno 
30, 2003, consist of the following Individual issues (OOO's): 

Serles 
Montgomery County 
Revenue Bonds and Notes 

Little Bennett Golf Course 
(not of deferred amount) 

Whoaton Ice Rink 
Cabin John Ice Rink 

Effective 
Interest Rate 

at Data of Sale Dated 

Final FY2004 
Maturity Serial Original 

Date Payment Issue 

Outstanding 
at 

June 30, 2003 

5.6350% % 11/20/97 10/01/07 $ 300 $ 4,291 $ 3,131 
6.0600% 09/18/97 05/01/07 240 3,600 2,765 
5.1600% 04/24/99 11 /01 /13 444 6,000 4,667 

$ 984 $ 13,891 $ 10,563 ======== 
New Debt Issue - On July 25, 2002, the Commission sold $21,200,000 Prince George's County Park 
Acquisition and Development Bonds, Serles AA-2, which have maturities through May 1, 2022. The 
bonds are variable rate auction notes, currently In a 35-day mode. The rates on the notes during FY 2003 
ranged from 1 .05% to 1.45%. 

On December 19, 2002, the Commission issued $21,110,000 of Prince George's County Park Acquisition 
and Development Refunding Bonds, Series BB-2, $12,155,000 of Montgomery County Park Acquisition 
and Development Refunding and Project Bonds, Series CC-2, and $1,550,000 Montgomery County 
Advanced Land Acquisition General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series DD-2. Except for $5,222,900 of 
CC-2 proceeds used for capital project financing, the bonds provided the resources to purchase U.S. 
Government State and Local Government Series Securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust for 
the purpose of generating resources for all future debt service payments on general obligation bonds 
summarized below. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has 
been removed from tho governmental activities column of the Statement of Net Assets. The reacquisition 
price in excess of the net carrying value of the old debt is being netted against the new debt and 
amortized over the remaining life of the refunded bonds, which equals the life of the new debt issued. 
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Information related to the refunding bond issue follows. 

Bond Issue title 
Amount of refunding bonds issued 
Amount of bonds defeased 
Acquisition price in excess of carrying 

Montgomery 
County 

CC - 2 
$ 6,932,100 

6,525,000 

DD - 2 
$ 1,550,000 

1,400,000 

Prince George's 
County 

$ 
BB-2 
21,110,000 
19,900,000 

value of old debt 502,743 152,004 1,355,326 
Remaining life of old bonds 12 years 12 years 12 years 
Total reduction in debt service payments 344,878 126,279 1,102,695 
Economic gain 548,519 * 1,085,052 
• Montgomery County economic gain was only computed in total for both bond issues. 

On May 12, 2003, the Commission issued a Note Payable of $2,800,000 to finance capital equipment 
purchases. This note Is recorded In the Montgomery County Enterprise Fund ($131,593) and the 
Montgomery County Internal Service Fund ($2,668,407). Semiannual payments are due until April 1, 
2008 at an interest rate of 2.46%. 
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Changes In Long•Term Liabilities - Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2003, 
were as fallows: 

General ctlllgatlon Park BaidS Payable 

General Clilgatloo />J..A Bcrds Payable 
D:!lerrad charges, net cA prerriuim, on 
General Wlgatlon Berm 

Revenue Bonds ard !lbtas Payalja 
Unarrortized Osca.nt on R1venw Bald$ 

ard !lbtes 

Nctes Payable - C:o.lelffl'8'llal 

Nctas Pa~e - Enterpise 

Estlrrated Liability fa- Lan:Jflll Oosure and 
PostdOSll'B Coots 

~ Cm'per&ned Absences: 

Govemrrental 

Enterprise Fund 

Long-term Uabllitlas 

Pr1roo George's Co.inly 

General ctlllgatlcri Park Bcrrls Payable 

General Cliigation flJ.).. Bcnis Payatje 
Deferred charges, net of l)'e!Tiurm, on 
(k>ne(al Wlgatlon 8o1ds 

Nctes Payable - GovenTrentaJ 
AcM1rces from Oher Furds 

,t,«.ruad ~ed AbsE:n::es: 
Govemrrental 

Enterprise Fund 

Long-tam, Uabilitios 

Beglmng 
Balan::e At.t:ltlons 

$ 28,700,000 $ 12, 155,0CX) $ 

4,500,000 1,550,000 

11,811 ,112 

(320,630) 

3,576,688 

217,284 

1,737,r:J:XJ 

5,732,887 

438,713 

58,393,054 

119,620,000 

2,8:XJ,OCX) 

1,765,0CXl 
3,829,363 

6,598,360 

469,770 

135, CX:l2, 493 

(545,214) 

2,668,407 

131,S!E 

16,150 

3,rxxl,379 
221 ,452 

19,757,?er! 

42,310,0CX) 

(1,383,053) 

4,3Xl,859 

217,4(9 

45,44o,215 

REduelicm 
Encing 
Balaroa 

8,730,000 $ 32, 125,0CX) $ 
1,825,000 4,225,000 

(45,435) (499,779) 
959,444 

(32,063) 

1,268,9'4 

58,477 

1,635,115 

3,361 ,701 

210,o68 

17,971,711 

48,275,000 

:m,ooo 

(108,588) 

90,000 

3,866,755 

166,364 

52,619,531 

10,851,668 

(288,567) 

4,976,191 

290,400 

118,035 

5,931,565 
44.g,597 

58,179,110 

113,655,r:J:XJ 
2,470,CXX) 

(1,7.74,465) 

1,6'-/5,000 

3,829,363 

7,032,464 

520,815 

127,9CW3, 177 

2,295,0CX) 

420,COO 

(45,43.5) 

984,444 

(32,003) 

1,685,556 

86,711 

3,692,000 

211,000 

9,37.3,443 

7,715,0CX) 

325,000 

(108,588) 
145,0CO 

4,194.~ 

166,COO 

12,437,312 

Total l.a1g Term Liabilities $ 191,475,547 $ 65,202,982 $ 70,591,242 $ 183,087,287 $ 21,760,756 

Long-term obligations are shown in the Statement of Net Assets as follows: 

Payable to Advance Land Acquisition Trust Fund 
Compensated Absences 

Due within One Year 
Due In more than One Year 

Bonds and Notes Payable: 
Due within One Year 
Due In more than Ona Year 

Estimated Liability for Closure and Postclosure Costs 
Due within One Yoar 
Due In more than One Year 

Total Long-T erm Liabilities 
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$ 3,829,363 

8,263,165 
5,671 ,290 

13,656,711 
154,548,737 

26,230 
9 1 805 

$ 186,087,301 



Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for 
them are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. For the governmental activities, 
claims and judgments and compensated absences are generally liquidated by the Goneral Fund. 

(F) Defeased Debt 

In fiscal years 1996, 1998 and 2003, the Commission defeased the callable portion of certain series of 
general obligation bonds by placing proceeds of new bonds in an Irrevocable trust to provide for all future 
debt service payments on the old bonds. The refunded bonds and their amortization dates are detailed 
as follows: 

Series 
Series tv}2 

Series N-2 
Series P-2 

SeriesQ-2 

Series &2 

PJJl.. Refunding 1994 

Redemption 
Date 

July 1, 2003 

July 1, 2003 

July 1, 2003 

November 1, 2005 

July 1, 2003 

July 1, 2004 
July 1, 2005 

November 1, 2004 

IVootgomery Prince George's 

County County 

8,750,000 

3,CY25,000 

8,000,000 

3,250,000 
570,000 

560,000 
3,745,000 

1,400,000 

Trust account assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the Commission's basic 
financial statements. 

(5) - OTHER INFORMATION 

(A) Self Insurance 

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Commission is a 
participant in the Montgomery County Self-Insurance Program (the "Program") for the purpose of 
economic pooling of risks and resources. The Program provides the Commission with self-insurance 
administration for workers' compensation (Maryland state mandatory llmlts), comprehensive general 
liability, automobile liability, police professional liability, public officials llablllty, property and fire damage, 
boiler and machinery damage, data processing system breakdown and excess liability (up to $10,000,000 
combined single limit). The Commission does not participate in risk sharing with the other participants 
and is required to reimburse the full amount of any claims paid by the Program. The Commission also 
carries honesty bond coverage for its public officials and employees. The Commission did not pay any 
claims settlements In excess of insurance coverage for fiscal years 2002, and 2003, nor were any 
insurance coverages reduced in fiscal year 2003. 

The Commission's employees have various options in their selection of health insurance benefits. The 
Commission offers an administrative services only (ASO) plan for the prescription drug program and a 
point of service (POS) medical plan. All other group health insurance plans, which include three health 
maintenance organizations (HMO's), a dental plan, and a vision plan, are fully insured. The Commission 
expended $18,282,340 for all group health benefits in fiscal year 2003. The basis for estimating incurred 
but not reported (IBNR) claims at year-end is an annual analysis pertormed by the plans' administrators. 

Premiums are paid Into the Risk Management Internal Service Fund by the General Fund and Enterprise 
Funds and are available to pay claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of the program. Claims 
paid during fiscal year 2003 totaled $2,450,898. Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss 
has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for 
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IBNR claims which is determined annually based on an actuarial evaluation. In addition, Individual claim 
liabilities are established for each case based on the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends 
including frequency and amount of payouts and other economic and social factors. Changes in the 
balances of claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows: 

Unpaid Claims, June 30, 2001 
Incurred Claims, Fiscal year 2002 
Claims Paid, Fiscal Year 2002 

Unpaid Claims, June 30, 2002 
Incurred Claims, Fiscal year 2003 
Claims Paid, Fiscal Year 2003 
Unpaid Claims, June 30, 2003 

$ 

$ 

~ 
824,926 

7,462,799 
(7,285,315) 
1,002,410 
8,301,388 

(7,657,362) 
1,646,436 

The medical column excludes expenses that are fully insured. 

(B) Related Party Transactions 

Risk 

MilnilQ!ii!II!!ii!D! 
$ 6,177,609 

2,042,867 
(1,732,352) 
6,488,324 
1,119,533 

(2,450,898) 
$ 5,156,959 

The Commission was Involved in the following related party transactions during fiscal year 2003: 

Payments and Obligations to Prince George's County -The Commission paid or is obligated to pay 
Prince George's County for the following: $738,100 Zoning Enforcement Unit, $416,500 property tax 
collection fees, $588,600 annual rental charges for office space in the County Administration Building, 
$550,000 planning and zoning functions, $208,500 Cooperative Extension Service, $200,000 Community 
College pool operation and maintenance, $340,500 Geographic Information System, $218,600 for 
people's zoning Legal counsel, and $348,900 of other mandates. In addition, the County has directed 
payments of $846,326 to other parties for legislative mandates. 

Employees' Retirement System - The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 
Employees' Retirement System paid the Commission $71,626 in fiscal year 2003 tor annual rental of 
space in the Executive Office Building, and $30,000 for computer services. 

(C) Contingencies 

Grant Program - The Commission, as grantee or subgrantee, participates in several Federal and State 
grant programs, which are subject to financial and compliance audits. The Commission believes it has 
complied, In all material respects, with applicable grant requirements and the amount of expenditures that 
may be disallowed by the granting agencies, if any, would be immaterial. 

Litigation - The Commission Is a defendant in various legal actions that fall into three major categories -
those arising from the Commission's planning and zoning powers, those arising from incidents occurring 
on the Commission property and those arising from personnel actions. The Commission's management 
and Its General Counsel estimate that the resolution of claims resulting from all litigation against the 
Commission not covered by Insurance will not materially affect the financial position or operations of the 
Commission. 

(D) Employees' Retirement System and Pension Plans 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Plan Description - The Commission contributes to The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 
Commission Employees' Retirement System (the "System"), a single-employer defined benefit public 
employee retirement plan. Benefit provisions and obligations to contribute to the plans and all other 
requirements are established by a Trust Agreement between the Commission and the Board of Trustees 
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of the System which has been periodically amended since the System was established July 1, 1972. 
Accounting and financial reporting for the system is performed by non-Commission employees who are 
employed directly by the System. The System's financial records are not maintained on a separate 
county basis. The assets of the System are invested with the objective of ensuring sufficient funds will be 
available for meeting benefit payments. As the System's investment asset pool provides collectively for 
benefit payments of all four plans the System is considered a single "pension plan" for purposes of 
financial reporting in accordance with GAAP. Publicly available Financial Statements that includes 
management's discussion and analysis, financial statements and required supplementary information for 
the System can be obtained at the administrative offices of The Maryland-National Capital Park and 
Planning Commission Employees' Retirement System, 6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 100, Riverdale, 
Maryland 20737. 

Active plan members In Plan A are required to contribute 6% of their base pay. Plan B members 
contribute 3% of their base pay up to the maximum Social Security Wage Base and 6% in excess of the 
maximum Social Security Wage Base for the calendar year. Plan c members contribute 8% of their base 
pay and Plan D members contribute 7% of their base pay. 

Method Used to Value Investments for Defined Benefit Pension Plan · Marketable securities are 
carried at fair value based on quotes from the active market. 

Actuarial Methods for Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The actuarial value of assets calculates gains or losses on the basis of the actuarially assumed interest 
rate and recognizes one-third of the cumulative gains or losses not yet recognized. This year's asset 
value is based on the July 1, 2002 actuarial valuation. 

The Entry Age Normal Cost method is used, with level dollar amortization of the unfunded actuarial 
liabilities over a closed 14 year amortization period. 

The actuarial accrued liability was estimated as part of an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1 , 
2002. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on the 
investment of present and future assets of 7.5% a year compounded annually, (b) projected salary 
increases of 4.25% a year, (c) cost of living increases in benefits after retirement based on the Plan's 
provision for annual increases of 100% of the first 3% of change in the CPI-Urban Index for major U.S. 
cities plus half of the change in excess of 3%, but no more than 5% in total. The assumed post-retirement 
cost of living adjustment is 3%. 

The net assets in excess of the total actuarial accrued liability are $75,014,637 as of July 1, 2002. The 
net assets available for benefits at June 30, 2003, totaled $451,579,126. 

The Commission's contributions to the System, made In accordance with actuarially determined 
requirements presented as a percentage of annual covered payroll for the year ending June 30, 2003 was 
0.5% 

The Commission's annual pension cost (APC) and net pension obligation (NPO) to the System for fiscal 
years 2001, 2002, and 2003 are presented below: 

2.QQ1 2QQ2 ~a 
Annual Pension Cost (APC) $ 1,102 $ 480 $ 540 
Percentage of APC Contributed 100% 100% 100% 
Net Pension Obligation (NPO) o o o 

The Commission contributes 100% of the adjusted annual required contribution and has no NPO at year­
end. 
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Investment Concentration - The System has invested in one commingled trust with Putnam Institutional 
Management, which has more than 100 international securities. This Investment, along with a value index 
commingled trust with the Barclays Global Investors, which has approximately 500 domestic securities 
and a small cap value Mutual Fund with Artisan Partners, which has more than 80 domestic securities, 
exceeded five percent of not plan assets of the System at June 30, 2003. 

Deferred Compensatjon Plans - The Commission offers its employees deferred compensation plans 
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. One plan, available to all career 
Commission employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary to future years. The deferred 
compensation is not available to employees or beneficiaries until termination, retirement, death or 
unforeseeable emergency. The Commission also offers a separate deferred compensation plan to its 
officers and to the staff of the Employees' Retirement System. 

(E) Other Postemployment Benefits 

In addition to the pension benefits provided by the System, the Commission itself provides postretirement 
health care benefits, in accordance with Commission approval, to all full-time and part-time career 
employees, directors appointed by Montgomery County and Prince George's County Planning Boards, 
Merit System Board Members, Commissioners and appointed officials who retire under a Commission 
Retirement Plan or the State of Maryland Retirement Plan and who have been insured under any 
Commission-sponsored group medical plan during the three years immediately preceding the date of 
retirement. Currently, 569 retirees meet those eligibility requirements. Continuance of medical, dental, 
and vision benefits requires a minimum of three years' participation in a Commission-sponsored plan or 
ability to prove similar coverage in another plan immediately prior to retirement. The Commission 
contributes 85 percent of the amount of medical, prescription drug, and dental insurance rates and 80 
percent of vision benefit rates. The System contributes the same percentages tor its full-time and part­
time employees. 

Expenditures for postretirement health care benefits are recognized on the accrual basis as retirees' 
Insurance costs are incurred. The Commission's net expense was $2,757,165 for the year ended June 
30, 2003 for the retirees' benefits. 

On July 1, 1999, the Commission transferred $7,056,000 to a newly established 115 Trust account for the 
purpose of pre-funding a portion of retiree insurance costs in the future. The Commission executed a 
Discretionary Investment Management Agreement with Legg Mason Mutual Solutions as the Financial 
Advisor (Custodial Trustee) of the account. Per the Post-Retirement Insurance Benefits Program Trust 
Agreement I - Contributions, the Commission may elect to contribute additional amounts as deemed 
necessary to meet its benefit obligations. The Commission is not required to make additional 
contributions unless obligated to do so by resolution, and the Trust account is not funded based on 
actuarial information. In June 2001 , the Commission transferred $1.489,91 O to the Internal trust fund. In 
September 2001 , the Commission approved transferring this amount to tho custodial trustee. In f iscal 
year 2003, the net cost of postretirement health care benefits, net of the retiree contributions, was 
transferred from the from the custodial trustee. A similar transfer is expected again in fiscal year 2004. 

The 115 Trust is reported by the Commission as a pension trust fund, the Employees' Postemployment 
Benefits Fund. 

(F) Maryland State Retirement System (MSRS) 

Pension costs for certain employees/retirees who elected to remain in the MSRS was $94,183 for the 
year ended June 30, 2003. A total of 39 employees/retirees and beneficiaries are covered In the MSRS. 
This amount includes the current service costs plus an amount sufficient to amortize the prior service cost 
over a 40-year period ending June 30, 2020. 
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(6)- COUNTY FINANCIAL DATA 

The following financial data pertains to both Montgomery and Prince George's Counties. 
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Note 6A 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Summary of Assets, Liabllltles and Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds and Accounts 

June 30, 2003 

OtllOr Total 
General Fund Accounts Capital Governmental Governmtntal 

Administration P11rk Total 
ASSETS 

Prolacta Funda Funds 

Equity In Pooled Cash and Investments $ 4,244,002 s 9,492,281) $ 13,737,191 $ 3,000,241 $ 849,354 $ 17,586,786 
Receivables - Taxes (net of allowance 

for uncollecllbles) 264,504 593,510 5,18,014 848,0111 
Receivables • Other 3,921 2!!,098 20,019 420 29,439 
Due from County Government 190,660 521l,321 719,871 2,328,851 374,323 3,423,145 
Due from Other Governments 113,558 113,556 393,044 50e.eoo 
Restricted Cash - Unspent Debt Proceeds ,4,824,373 4,fl24,373 
Other 21811 2198 2 198 

Total Assets $ 4,698,07!5,_ $ 10,753,774 $ 15,449,849 $ 10,348,609 $ 1,2241097 $ 27.020,555 

LIABUTIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable $ 485,929 $ 1,482,387 $ 1,968,316 $ 610,140 $ 160 $ 2,578,618 
Accrued Liabllllles 384,811 898,329 1,290,040 24,042 1,314,982 
Retainage Payable 903,031 903,031 

Due to County Government 5,002 6,002 
Deposits and Deferred Revenue 268,518 733,730 993,248 376 908 1,370,15!1 

Total Llabllltie& 1,140,056 3,112,440 4,262,602 1,613,171 406 113 - 6,171,786 

Fund Balances; 
Reserved for Encumbrances 1,252,887 2,152,000 3,404,657 7,674,722 200,023 11,179,432 

Reserved for Debt Service 29,259 29 ,269 

Unreserved, Designated for Subsequent Years 1,673,900 4,013,400 5,687,300 5,887,300 

Unreserved, Undeslgnated, Reported in: 
General Fund 820,432 1,475,928 2,105,360 2,105,360 

Special Revenue Fund 650,702 588,702 

Capital Projects 1,258,716 11258,710 

Total Fund Balances 3,!558,010 7,641,328 11 ,1971347 8,833,438 817,984 201848,760 

Total Llabllities and Fund Balances s 4,696,071:i $ 10,753,774 s - 15,449,849 $ 10,346,8.Q!_ $ 1,2241097 $ 27,020,555 
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Note6B 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures, end Changes In Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds and Accounts 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Other Total 
General Fund Accounts C1pltal Govommontal Govornmontel 

Administration Park Total Projects Funds Funds 

REVENUES 

Property Taxes $ 18,1514,351 $ 50,733,921 $ 68,248,272 $ $ 9152,256 $ 70,200,528 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal 4,181 98,037 102,218 102,218 
Stele 28,981 28,981 1,415,781 1,444,762 
County 101 ,311 101,31 1 6,037,401 479,793 5,618,505 
Local 28,483 26,483 33,380 59,843 

Charges for Servlees 1,150,406 464,821 1,815,227 96,818 1.711,045 
Rentals and Concession& 4,831 1,385,332 1,389,983 1,389,963 
Interest 77,924 97,821 175,745 59,750 11,820 247,416 
Mlsconancous 5 230 2981165 3031416 70,405 373,820 

Total Revenues 19,858,034 53,133,581 72,991,615 a 1s121aa2 1 ,1343,6~2 81,146,099 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General Government 5,983,250 5,983,250 6,983,260 
Planning and Zoning 14,045,730 14,045,730 108,097 14,243,827 
Park Operations and Mainlenance 47,663,821 47,683,821 641,740 46,20~,501 

Debt Service: 
Prlnclpal 2,830,000 2,630,000 
lnlarest 1,640,686 1,640,666 
Bond Issuance Costs 145,734 146,734 

Capital OuUey: 
Park Acquisition 763,419 763,419 
Park Oevclopmont 6,2751577 612751577 

Total Expenditures 20,0281960 47,863,821 87,692,801 7,038,996 S1156,237 79,888,034 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over (under) 

Expenditures (170,946) 5,469,760 5,298,814 (528,084) (3,512,685) 1,260,065 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from General Obllg1tlon Bonds 5,222,900 5,222,900 
Refunding Bonds Issued B,482, 100 8,482,100 
Premiums on Bonds Issued 109,534 109,534 
Payment to Refunding Bond Escrow Account (e.44?.,494) (8,44:!,494) 
Transfers In from Private Purpose Trust Funds 7,296 7,298 
Transfers out to Private Purpose Trust Funds (332,333) (332,333) 
Tran,lel'$ In 389,331 874,966 1,284,288 185,000 3,891,157 o, 140,443 
Transfer Out (3,787,157) (3,787,157) (59i750l (3,846,907) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 389 331 (21912,202) (2,522,871) 5,348,150 3,515,280 6,3401539 

Net Chango in Fund 0a1ane11s 218,385 2,557,558 2,775,943 4,822,086 2,575 7,600,604 

Fund Balances - B~ginning 3,337,634 S,083,770 8,421,404 4,011,352 815,409 13,248,165 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 3,5561019 $ 7,641,328 $ 11,197,347 $ 8,833,438 $ 817,984 $ 20,848,769 
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Note SC 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

ADMINISTRATION ACCOUNT- GENERAL FUND 
Summary of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes In Fund Balance 

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -

Positivo 
Original Final 

Revenues: 
~u.L_ (Negative} 

Property Taxes $ 18,268,360 $ 18,268,360 $ 18,514,351 $ 245,991 
Intergovernmental -

Federal 4,181 4,181 
State 150,000 84,056 {84,056) 
County 65,944 101,311 35,367 

Charges for Services 1,025,000 1,025,000 1,155,037 130,037 
Interest 140,000 140,000 77,924 (62,076) 
Miscellaneous 5,230 5,230 

Total Revenues 19,583,360 19,583,360 19,858,034 274 674 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Commissioners' Office 1,035,400 1,035,400 999,423 35,977 
Central Administrative Services -

Department of Human Resources and Management 1,688,800 1,688,800 1,635,016 53,784 
Department of Finance 2,121,600 2,121 ,600 2,043,360 78,240 
Legal Department 701,900 701,900 681,533 20,367 
Support Services 485,300 485,300 496,878 (11,578) 
Merit System Board 41,800 41,800 28,755 13,045 
Total Central Administrative Services 5,039,400 5,039,400 4,885,542 153,858 

Planning Department -
Park and Planning Director's Office 245,427 245,427 258,599 (13,172) 
Management Services 1,026,530 1,026,530 876,764 149,766 
Strategic Planning 412,496 412,496 408,015 4,481 
Community-Based Planning 3,467,020 3,467,020 3,269,756 197,264 
County-wide Planning 3,162,841 3,162,841 3,066,831 96,010 
Development Review 1,790,683 1,790,683 1,494,605 296,078 
Research and Technology 3,312,620 3,312,620 3,361,594 (48,974) 
Support Services 1,272,283 1,272,283 1,239,531 32,752 
Grants 150,000 150,000 105,492 44,508 
Total Planning Department 14,839,900 14,839,900 14,081,187 758?13 

Non-Departmental (6,533} 6 533 
Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 20,914,700 20,914/00 19,959,619 955,081 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
ExPenditures/Encumbrances (1,331,340) (1,331,340} (101,585) 1,229,755 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Opereting Transfers In (Out) • 
Internal Service Fund - Group Insurance 379,800 379.800 389,331 9 531 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3791800 379,800 389,331 9,531 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ (951,540) $ {951,540) 287,746 $ 1,239,3{,i(L 

Fund Balance. Budget Basis, July 1 
Fund Balance - Budget Basis, June 30 $ 

2.015,586 
2,30~.~~2 
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Note 60 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

PARK ACCOUNT- GENERAL FUND 
Summary of Revenues, Expendltures/Encumbrances

1 
and Changes in Fund Balance 

BudgetJNon-GAAP Budgetary Bas s) and Actual 
or the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Variance with 
Bud9eted Amounts Final Budget -

Positive 
Original Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Property Taxes $ 50,011,450 $ 50,011,450 $ 50,733,921 $ 722.471 
Intergovernmental -
Federal 120,627 98,037 (22,590) 
State 425,000 277,912 28,981 (248,931) 
Other 26,461 26,483 22 
County 116,330 116,330 (1 16,330) 

Charges for Services 505,620 505,620 464,821 (40,799) 
Rentals and Concessions 1,146,650 1,146,650 1,385,332 238,682 

Interest 190,000 190,000 97,821 (92,179) 
Miscellaneous 211,000 211,000 298,185 87 ,185 

Total Revenues 52,606,050 52,606,050 53,133,581 527,531 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Director of Montgomery Parks 2,577,230 2,577,230 2,483,061 94,169 
County-wide Planning 1,322,104 1,322,104 1,318,837 3 ,267 
Research and Technology 1,213,251 1,213,251 1,274,140 (60,889) 
Park Development 1,966,494 1,966,494 1,857,413 109,081 
Park Police 8,659,592 8,989,592 8,843,332 146,260 
Natural Resources 4,238,241 4,238,241 4,204,062 34,179 
Central Maintenance 8,246,462 8,246,462 7,257,344 989,1 18 
Northern Region 6,909,232 6,909,232 6,578,066 331,166 
Southern Region 9,210,066 9,210,066 9,015,268 194,798 
Support Services 5,671,228 5,341,228 5,183,400 157,828 
Grants 425,000 425,000 153,501 271,499 
Property Management 810,000 810,000 748,894 61 ,106 
Non-Departmental (61 ,597} 61 597 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 51,248,900 51,248,900 48,855,721 2,393,179 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances 1,357,150 1,357,150 4,277,860 2,920,710 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In (Out) -
Capital Projects Funds - Interest 110,000 110,000 59,750 (50,250) 
Debt Service Fund (3,823,000) (3,823,000) (3,641.157) 181,843 
Capital Projects Funds - Development (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) 
Internal Service Fund - Group Insurance 920,200 920,200 815,205 (104,995) 
Special Revenue-Historic Preservation (50,000) (50,000) 

Enterprise Fund (86,000) !861000l (86,000~ 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,888,800) (2,888,800) (2,912,202) (23,402) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ (1,531,650} $ (1,531,650) 1,365,658 $ 2,897,308 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, July 1 4,123,670 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, June 30 $ 5,489,328 
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ASSITI 
Eqv~y 11'1 POO!od C•$n and lnv;1lmtW1ta • Recelvables - TIIXOS (net of allow~nee 

ror U11COllecl1blea) 
Recelvobln • Other 
Duo lrom County Govemment 
DUQ from Other Govommenta 
Resw,1ed Ca&h • unspent Dobt Proceeds 
Otr.nr 

Total A1tets $ 

UAlilLITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabildtes: 

Account& Pay,bla s 
Accruod Ll•bllltles 
Ratalnago Payable 
Dapollls ;ltld Dalorrad Revenue 

Total Liabiltlaa 

Fund eat.~nces: 
Ro~1irvad for E11¢t.1mbranco1 
Roserved /or O<lbl Ser,~ 
Unresorv,d, Dealgnatad for Sobsequenl Yea111 
Unrostrved, Unoo~lgnated, Reported In: 
o,noraJ Funo 
Special Revanut Fund 
capne1 Projects 
Total fund e,1ancas 
Total Llabihtlas and Fund B0lance1 s 

PRINCE OEORGE'S COUNTY 
Summary of Assets, Llabllltlu and Fund BalancH 

Governmental Funds and Accounts 
June 30, 2003 

C..~[!I Fund Acc:OP!J!! C,,pllAI 
Adm1gkt, ... i0n PIH1< Rurt:ritfun.: Total ProJum 

10,1GG,214 $ 22,031,866 s 13,553,222 $ 45,740,302 $ 9,660,0$7 

570,000 799,606 eei.ooo 2,051,598 
10,301 140,$11 13,5~8 1&4,740 194,396 

138,0&2 230,477 368,539 
6,800 5,606 502,44e 

17,360,874 

J O,B73167I., $ 23,202.W., $ 14,?a~656 $ 42J~\083 S .J£i71B1B8~ 

1,262,214 s 1,088,Me 5 803,167 5 3,243,959 $ 660,539 
393,872 955.082 890,568 2,246,302 

02·,.ooa 
~e.QL 1,Qlj,928 ---l.Za,6,847 ~,382,282 

2,250,1!23 ~ 106,378 4,615,572 9,672,541., 1,381 §38 

2,843,984 2,615,337 1,004,308 6,423.929 8,468,341 

665,300 8,270,200 3,101,700 12,057,200 

l,,003,700 9,311,035 s.sn,o7e 19,977,711 

~,022,911<1 ~(i.W_ _!1!&98.L i§,468,640 
-li.,862, 706 
__2!1,331,D<IZ 

Part. 
Dobl 

hryj£• 

$ 706,396 

S ~,396 

s 
3.1,523 

33".52I: 

6/2,873 

67~ ~£3 
10,013,57.1,. $ - 23,202,060 $ 3~,a64,ssa s 48133,.083_ t 27,718,~ ,_ Z~1395 
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Note6E 

Othor To1•1 
G6Vllmm,mtwl GovemnMntl'II ~·- Funds 

5 5,733,166 $ 61,840,830 

2.0~1.69G 
36,813 395,Q49 

(26) 308,513 
508,254 

17,380,874 
6,130 5,l~ 

s~1ns,2e~ ~ .,!!?1G3j124B 

s 140,8$8 5 3,945,168 
84,361 2,384,176 

827,099 
,9,130 ~11,412 

.......11i4.149 ..J1M!M!, 

218,815 13,110,685 
2,763 676,628 

12,057,200 

19,i77,711 
5,209,566 e.200.ses 

-li!B2,700 
~:&. zo,eoJ,a93 

$ S,7768~ S 821531.J.~ 



Note6F 
PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Summary of Rev1nu1s, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances 
Govemment,I Fund, and Accounts 
For tho Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Park Other Total 
General ,u"d Aooounts capu_, Debt Gov1mm1ntal Oovommental 

Admlnlatrallon PG'1c Rtore1tlon Total Projects Sorvlca Funda Funds 

REiVENUES 

i='mportv Taxes $ 21,808,858 $ BM00,27? $ 26.057,303 
lntorgovommental! 

$ 111.358,4133 s $ s 623,803 $ 111,980,326 

Fodera! 2,131 M,715 10,000 63,848 2,709 &o.os, 
Si.t• 32.124 •14,500 251,671 328,295 s,ae,.s30 e,210,s26 
County 346,139 56,602 401,741 358,250 769,991 
LOC*I 8,984 8,984 1u12 28,896 

Charge, tor Sfrvl~1 923,943 3~7.811 4,698,422 5,980,176 10.972 583,040 6,574,180 
RMl81S end Co~ulon& 1,024,393 308,929 1,831,322 3,341,611 5,172,933 
1n101os1 156,775 31M93 101,127 664,395 3ee.0~8 83,495 1,113,948 
Contribution& 20,000 9,121 29,121 
Mlaccllaneoua 16i!e 176,950 100626 278.232 08851 348462 726,636 

'1'otal Aevenue1 23,279,610 iis,002,134 31 ,672,680 120,914,424 e1co11032 6,347,862 132,663,318 

EXPENDITURES 
Cutrent' 

Gcnot•I Govtmmtnt 6,715,060 8 ,715,060 6.71~.0GO 
Pl•nnlng and Zoning 15,143,747 15,143,747 15,143,747 
Por11 OPtr•t1on1 mnd Malntonanco 60,965,169 50,055,159 305.439 !1.2G0.608 
Roet0•t10n 32,&02,831 32,GD2,831 4,8G4,677 37,4137,600 

Debt $0/Yic,e; 
Pllneipol 28,376,000 330,000 28,706,000 
lnteroat 4,865,785 132,482 4,098,267 
Bond luuaneo Costt 406,056 1,840 407,800 

Capitol Qulloy: 
PM< AequlSIUon 4,033,G98 4,033.688 
Pork DtvtlOpm,nt 5

1
31419?9 M14,929 

Total Exp,ndlturaa 21,868,807 50,955,1~9 32,602,831 1M1416,797 9 ,348,627 33,646,841 (1,634.438 1 !14,048,&03 
Exooas (doncloncy) ot Aavanues ovar (under) 

Expenditures 1420803 151ooe,01s (930,151! 15,497,627 (2 ,1347,495! {33,&<l&,841 l {288.576! !~1.383,28.ru_ 

OTHER FtNANCtNG GOUftees (USES) 
Proceeds f1'0m Gtn<lrul Obligation Bonda 21,200,000 21,200,000 
Relundino Bondi tnued 21 ,110,000 21,110,000 
Ptemium, on Donds IHI.ltd 172,273 172,273 
Pe~nt to Rtlundin11 Bond Ewow Account (21 ,109,592) (21,109,592) 
Tronst•,.. in from Pnv,t, Pu!po;e Tru&t Funds 2,578 2,578 
Tron•<•,.. out lo Pnv.i, Pul]X)R Tru&t Fund a (160,725) (150,725) 
r....,,r.,.. tn 379,377 1,306,866 347,362 2.033,&0~ 2,460,938 12,94'/,033 17,4b0,574 
T ronsftr Out (19,358,233! (388,(lOO) (19,744,833} {581,6271 !222,936! 120,549,396) 

Toi.I 01/ltr Financing Sourcu (Usos) 379377 (18,049,367} !41,;!38) (17,711,228} 118881309 34,319,714 !381,0831 18,115,712 

N,t Chang, In Fund Belancoa 1,800,180 (a.042.392) (971,389) (2.213.601) (1 ,059,186) 672,873 (667,859) (3,287,573) 

Fund Bnlancaa . Beginning 618~2,804 23,138,964 10,710,373 40872 141 27,390,233 6,188,602 74,?.60,006 

Fund Balances Ending $ ll&?,2.984 $ 20.09M72 $ 9,738,984 s 38.4SM40 $ 26,331,047 $ 072,.873 $ 
I 

6,62,!!,~ $ 7'1,083,303 
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PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATION ACCOUNT - GENERAL FUND 

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes In Fund Balance 
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Budgeted Amounts 

Revenues: 
Original Final Actual 

Property Taxes $ 21,350,900 $ 21,350,900 $ 21,808,858 
Intergovernmental -
Federal 2,131 2,131 
State 32,124 32,124 
County 377,600 377,600 345,139 
Local 8,984 8,984 

Charges for Services 450,000 450,000 923,943 
Interest 280,000 280,000 156,775 
Miscellaneous 1 656 

Total Revenues 22,458,500 22,501.739 23,279,610 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Commissioners' Office 1,777,900 1,777,900 1,777,702 
Central Administrative Services -
Department of Human Resources and Management 1,688,800 1,688,800 1,635,016 
Department of Finance 2,121 ,600 2,121,600 2,043,361 
Legal Department 701,900 701,900 681,534 
Support Services 485,300 485,300 496,878 
Merit System Board 41,800 41,800 28/54 
Total Central Administrative Services 5,039,400 5,039,400 4,885,543 

Planning Department 16,066,800 16,110,039 15,703,936 
Non-Departmental (48,178) 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 22,884,100 22,927,339 22,319,003 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances (425,600) (425,600) 960,607 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In (Out) -

Internal Service Fund - Group Insurance 379 377 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 379,377 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ _ (425,600.). $ ,~,~.600) 1,339,984 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, July 1 4,439,016 
Fund Balance - Budget Basis, June 30 $ J,779100.Q.. 

84 

Note 6G 

Variance with 
Final BudQet -

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 457,958 

(32,461) 

473,943 
(123,225) 

1656 
777 871 

198 

53,784 
78,239 
20,366 

(11,578) 
13,046 

153,857 

406,103 
48 178 

608,336 

\386,207 

379 377 
379,377 

$ 1 ,76~11,i_ 



Note 6H 
PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

PARK ACCOUNT- GENERAL FUND 
Summary of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes In Fund Balance 

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basts) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budi:iet 

Positive 
Original Final Actual -1!:!_egatlve) 

Revenues: 
Property Taxes $ 62,249,500 $ 
lnter!:jovernmental -

62,249,500 $ 63,490,272 $ 1,240,772 

Federal 17,600 51,715 34,115 
State 44,500 44,500 

Charr:ies for Services 467,700 467,700 357,811 (109,889) 
Rentals and Concessions 1,310,000 1,310,000 1,524,393 214,393 
Interest 1,020,000 1,020,000 316,493 (703,507) 
Miscellaneous 111,800 111 800 176 950 __ 65,150 

Total Revenues 65,159,000 65,221.100 65,962 134 741 034 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Director's Office 2,920,411 2,920,411 2,720,935 199,476 
Park Police 8,460,961 8,460,961 8,571,355 (110,394) 
Support Services 8,965,600 8,515,600 8,509,899 5,701 
Park PlanninA and Development 3,307,356 3,227,356 3,166,511 60,845 
Facility Operations -
Associate Director 368,272 368,272 311,623 56,649 
Maintenance and Development 13,125,685 13,475,685 13,732,754 (257,069) 
Natural and Historical Resources 1,729,674 1,709,674 1,613,060 96,614 
Arts and Cultural Heritage 1,132,340 1,132,340 1,155,008 (22,668) 
Park Permits 181,204 181,204 180,794 410 
Total Facility Operations 16,537,175 16,867,175 16,993,239 (126,064) 

Area Operations -
Northern Area 4,202,982 4,107,982 4,067,276 40,706 
Central Area 3,431 ,578 3,311,578 3,227,623 83,955 
Southern Area 3,014,237 2,979,237 2,870,995 108,242 
Child Care/Special Projects 37,750 37,750 37,197 553 
Total Area Operations 10,686,547 10,436,547 10,203,091 233.456 

Grants 62,100 62,100 
Non-Departmental 588.550 588,550 279,942 308,608 

Total Expenditures/Encumbrances 51,46~.600 51,078.700 so,5a1.012 571,628 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances 13,692,400 14,142,400 15,455,062 1,312,662 

Other FinanclnQ Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In (Out) -
Capital Projects Funds - Interest 380,000 380,000 581,627 201,627 
Internal Service Fund - Group Insurance 725,239 725,239 
Debt Service - Park Fund (13,687,000) (13,687,000) (12,947,033) 739,967 
Special Revenue Fund 
Internal Service Fund - Risk Management 
Enterprise Fund (3,712,200) (4,162,200) (4,162,200) 
Capital Projects Funds - Interest (150,000) (150,000) (150,000) 
Capital Projects Funds - Development (2,097,000~ (2,097,000) i:2,097,000) 
Total Other FinancinA Sources (Uses) (19,266.2001 ( 19, 716.20_fil_ (18,049,367) 1,666.833 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financin!'.l Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and other Financing Uses $ (515731800l $ i5,573,800) (2,594,305) $ J9791495 

Fund Balance - Budi:iet Basis, Julv 1 20,175,540 
Fund Balance - BudAel Basis, June 30 $ 17,§§l.,~5 
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Note 61 
PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

RECREATION ACCOUNT- GENERAL FUND 
Summary of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basl&J and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 301 003 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final BUdAet 

1-1os1t1ve 
onginal F-1nal Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Property Taxes $ 25,517,600 $ 
Intergovernmental -

25,517,600 $ 26,057,303 $ 539,703 

Federal 10,000 10,000 
State 251,671 251,671 
County 50,000 56,602 56,602 

Charges for Services 5,975,600 5,975,600 4,698,422 (1 ,277,178) 
Rentals and Concessions 364,500 364,500 306,929 (57,571) 
Interest 400,000 400,000 191 ,127 (208,873) 
Miscellaneous 184,400 1MAQQ_ 100,626 (83,774} 

Total Revenues 321492,100 32,760,373 31,672,680 (1,087,693} 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Director's Office 213,279 213,279 199,972 13,307 
Support Services 4,139,946_ 4,264,946 4,063,423 201,523 
Total Director's Office 4,353,225 4,478,225 4,263,395 214,830 

F acllltv Operations: 
Sports/Athletic/Outreach Program 3,578,947 3,578,947 3,664,202 (85,255) 
Natural and Historical Resources 3,005,828 3,005,828 2,800,494 205,334 
Arts and Cultural Heritage 2,537,469 2,537,468 2,344,067 193,402 
Grants so.coo 318,273 318.273 -
Total Facility Operations 8,172,244 9,440,517 9,127,036 313,481 

Area Operations: 
Deputy Director 306,082 306,082 228,411 77,671 
Northern Area 5,604,817 5,604,817 5,569,307 35,510 
Central Area 5,019,065 5,019,065 4,853,461 165,604 
Southern Area 5,033,160 4,908,160 4,491,630 416,530 
Child Care and Special Projects 3,580,096 3,580,096 3,173,349 406,747 
Special Populations 
Total Area Operations 19,543,220 19,418,220 18,316,158 1,102,062 

Non-Departmental 
Total Operating Expenditures/Encumbrances 

1,082.311 
34.15\000 

1,082,311 
34,419,273 

868,640 
32.57!:,j,229 

212,671 
1.843,044 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances (1.658,900) (1,658,900) (903,549) 755,351 

Other Financing Sources (Uses}: 
Operating Transfers In (Out) • 
Internal Service Fund - Group Insurance 347,362 347,362 
Enterprise (388,600} (388,600) (388.600} -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (388,600} {388,600) (41 .238) 347,362 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ ,21o~z,~gg). $ (2.047,500} (944,787) $ .,.,J, jQ2,713 

Fund Balance - Budget Basis, July 1 9,619,463 
Fund Balance - Budget Basis, June 30 $ 8,674,676 
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Required Supplementary Information {Unaudited) for Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Schedule of Funding Progress for Defined Benefit Pension Plan (the System)- The actuarial accrued 
liability at the valuation date shown on the Schedule of Funding Progress Is a measure of the present 
value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and step-rate benefits, 
estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is intended to 
help users assess the funding status of the System on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in 
accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among employers. 

Funding activity for the last six years is summarized as follows: 

July 1 July 1 July 1 July 1 July 1 July 1 
1997 1996 lll~ 2QQQ ~ 2002 

Acturial Valuation of Plan Assets $ 311,854 $ 363,632 $ 407,073 $ 4'16, 125 $ 468,728 $ 475,870 
Actuarial Accrued Liability 285,536 307,360 328,072 348,512 360,865 400,855 
Funded Ratio 109.2% 118.3% 124.1% 128.0% 129.9% 118.7% 
Actuarial Value of Assets in Excess of 

(Unfunded) Actuarial Accrued Liability 26,318 56,272 79,001 97,613 107,863 75,015 
Annual Covered Payroll 71,102 75,368 78,849 8?,540 88,338 94,183 

Actuarial Value of Assets in Excess of 
(Unfunded) Actuarial Accrued Liability 
as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 37.0% 74.7% 100.2% 118.3% 122.1% 79.6% 

Schedule of Commission Contributions to the Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Information related to 
the Commission's funding of the System for the last six years follows: 

TREND INFORMATION !OOO'sl 
~ ~ 2QQQ ~001 2002 2003 

Annual Pension Cost (APC) $ 5,337 $ 2,972 $ 2,5'17 $ 1,1 02 $ 480 $ 540 
Percentage of APC Contributed 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 
Net Pension Obligation (NPO) 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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• PART IIB • 
FINANCJ/\L SECTION 

Combining 8Lat,cmenLs and Schcrtules 

Nu.!JJJHljOI' GOV(~l'lllTH~nl,al fi'unrls 

'l'hcsr f1111cts lwve Hrr1.1llcr Lotnl ctoll1-1r aettvit,v lh,-in Lhose Hllown :wparnldy In Lhr Bm;I<' Flnunclal 8l.nl<·1m·11ts 

Wheaton Station welcomes thousands of visitors to the popular miniature train and antique carousel 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

The Special Revenue Funds account for certain revenues whid) arc dedicated by Lhe 
Commission to certain purposes other than debt service, and are used in general 
operations comprised of park operation and maintenance, rccreaLion (Prince George's 
County only), and planning and administration. 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

The Debt Service Funds arc used to accounl for lhc accumulation of resources and Lile 
payment of general obligation bond principal, interest, and related costs. Th<.\ 
Com mi ssion mainlains Park D!.!bl Service and Advance Land Acquisition Debt Scl'vice 
Funds for each Cou nty. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Schedule 1 

Combin.ing Balance S hee1 
Norunajor Gov•mmantal Funds 

June 30, 2003 

MONTGOMERY COUITTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Advanca Advance 
Special Revenue Fumds Land Seec:ial Re""'11Je Fun~s land Total 

Total Pan; A.cqo;i5'!lon T01Bi Ar:qLEition Nonmajor 
Special Debi Debt Parts arul Special Oebl Gcwemmemal 

ASSETS 
Plannillli Part;s Reverue Serw:ie Sef\l,ce Tc::al ~ Reaeation Revenue Service T"'8l Funds 

Equ,ty ir1 Pooled Cash and lriveslments $ 750,130 $ 57.059 $ 807.189 s 21,031 s 21 .084 s 849,354 $ 4@,606 $ 5,269,780 $ 5,730.386 $ 2,779 s 5,733,165 s 6,5B2,519 
Accounts Rece,val*! 420 420 420 36,813 36,813 36,813 37,ZJJ 
Due from CoLnly Govenrne<1l 363,497 363,497 10.826 374,323 (26) (26) 374,297 
0,,- 5.130 5,130 5.130 5,130 

To1al Asse1s s 750,130 s 420.976 s 1,171,106 $ 21,081 $ 31 ,910 $ 1.224,097 $ 440,606 s 5.331.7~ $ 5,772,329 s 2,753 s 5,775,082 $ 6.999,179 

LIABILITIES 

Acaltds Payab!e s 160 $ $ 160 $ . s - s 160 s $ 140,668 s 1~0.668 $ $ 140.~ s 140,.!128 
Accrued Uabiities 3 10 310 21 ,031 2.651 24,042 84,351 S4.351 84,351 108,.393 

CX) Due l:> Ccut.'y Govemmen1 5,002 5.002 5 ,002 5.002 (0 
Deposits an:! Defene:I Revenue 346.909 J:>,000 376,909 376,909 29,130 29.130 29,130 406,039 

T Ola! Liabll.'5es 352,381 30.000 362,381 21 ,081 2,651 406,113 ~149 234.149 254,149 660.262 

FUND BALANCES 

Reserved lcr EnarnlJranoes 113,098 86,925 2C0,023 200.023 2,850 215.765 218,615 218.6 15 418,638 
Reserved lcr Debt Service 29.259 29,259 2,753 2,753 32,012 
Uroesen,Bd, Undesignated 284.651 304,05 1 588.702 588,702 437,756 ~ ,861 ,130!1 5.299,565 5.299.565 5,.888,267 

TD1al Fwut Balances 397.749 390.976 788 725 29.259 817 984 «o,606 s.on.574 5.518.160 2.753 5 ,520,933 6,.338,917 

Tomi Liabilll!!s and Fund Balalloes $ 750.130 s 420.976 $ 1.171,106 s _ 21,0ill $ 31.910 s __ l ,224,097 $ 440.606 $ 5,331,723 s 5.772..329 _ $ -- 2,753 $ s ,n5.os2 $ __!..999, 179 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
SChedule2 

Combining Stata,,,_ of R.venuas, Expenditures, and Cttanaes in Fund Balances 
1NDnmajor Gow1mm1ntal FI.Wlds 

Jun, 30, 2003 

t/ONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Ad\laooe Advance 
Special Revenue funds Land ~cial Revenue Funds Land Tola! 

To1al Pad: Acquisition Parlts Tola! Acqiisiion Nofmajor 
Special Debl Debt and Special Oel>l Governmelllal 

P1anran9 Palis ReW!lllle Service Servi::>e To1al Plarril'lf1 Reaeation Revenue Se,v:ica Tola! Funlis 

REVENUES: 
Property Taxes s • $ . s . s • $ 952.256 S 952,256 $ . s • $ . s 623,393 S 623,893 $ 1,576,149 
imergovemmenal • County 479,793 479.793 479,793 358,250 358,250 358,250 838.1)43 
lnlergovemmenlal. OU- 33,.360 33,.360 33,.360 33,.360 
Chafges for Setvices 95,818 95,818 95,818 583,040 583,040 S8l.040 678.858 
Reaeation Aciilriies 3,341,611 3,34f,611 3,341.611 3.341.611 
lr.lerest 8,184 3,736 11.920 11,920 2,996 80,499 83,495 83.495 95,415 
Contr!Juti:ms 9,121 9,121 9,121 9,121 
Mlsoefaneaos 24,331 46,074 70.405 70.405 348,452 348..452 348,452 418.857 

Total Revenue,s 128,333 562.963 691.296 952,.256 1,643.5!>2 361.246 4 ,362,723 4,723.9$9 623,893 5,347,852 ~ 1.414 

EXPENDITURES: 

(0 Princ:pal Refrements 2.205.000 425,000 2,630,000 330,000 330,000 2,,980.000 
0 lnlernsl 1,425,240 215,426 1,640,66& 132,,482 132,482 1,773,148 

Bond lswance Costs 137,41 0 8,324 145,7:34 1,840 1,840 147.574 
Pla,nng and Zooing 198.097 198,097 198,097 198.1197 
Par1< Operations arid Maiitenance 541,740 541,740 541,740 305,439 305.439 305,439 847,179 
Recreation 4 864 677 4,884,677 4,864,677 4,864,677 

T01al Expendi111res 198,097 541,740 739,837 3,71;7.650 648.750 5,156,237 5,170,116 5,170,116 464.322 5,634.~ 10,790,675 

Excess (<leficiency) of revenues over 
(under) experdllres 

!69,764) 21.223 {48.541) ~ .767,6501 303,508 p ,512.~ 361,244 !,!!07,39~ !446,1-4!} 159,571 !2BB,57~ ~.799.2S1l 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Relundif'WJ Bond$ Issued 6,932,100 1,.550.000 8,482,100 8 ,482.100 
Premit.mS on Bonds Issued 89,959 19.575 109.534 109,534 
Payment le Refun!Dl(I Bond Escrow Aoc:owll (6.895,566) (1,546,928) (8,442,494) (8,442.4!.4) 
Transfers In - Trusl Fund 7,296 7.296 - 2 ,578 2 ,578 9,874 
Transfers 0-A - Trust Fund {332,333) {332.333} (160,725) (160,725} (493,058) 
Tnwislers In 50,000 50,000 3.641,157 3,691.157 3,691.157 
Transfers OIA (222.1136! ~22.9~ {222.~ !222,9361 

Total Other Financing Solne5 (U5e$) 50,000 50,000 3,767,650 ~,390) 3.515260 ~2.936) (222,9~ {158,14!} @81,0832 3,134.177 

Net dlalli!e in fund ba!lmces {69.764) 71,223 1,459 1,116 2,575 361,246 (1.000.329) (669,083) 1,424 (667,659) (665,1184) 
Fwid B.danoes • beJljrnhg 467.513 319,753 787,265 28,143 815,409 79,.360 6.107.9()3 6.187,263 1,329 6,188,592 7,004.001 
Food Ba:arioes - endiig s 397,749 S 390,976 $ 788.725 $ -- . s 29,259 $ 817.984 _$ 440,606 $ 5.077,574 S 5,.51 B . .1.IIQ_ $ 2.7~$ 5,520,933 $ __ 6,338.917 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Schedule2a 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures/Encumbrances, and Changes In Fund Balance 
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual • Special Revenue Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Mont~ome~ Coun!x Prince George's Coun~ 
Variance Variance 

Budgeted Amounts Positive Budgeted Amounts Positive 
Original Final Actual {Negative} 

Revenues: 
Original Final Actual (Negative} 

Intergovernmental $ 847,203 $ 847,203 $ 513,153 $ (334,050) $ $ 358,250 $ 358,250 $ 
Charges for Services 142,800 142,800 95,818 {46,982) 756,360 756,360 583,040 (173,320) 
Recreation Activities 3,750,000 3,750,000 3,341,611 (408,389) 
Interest 11,920 11,920 226,240 226,240 83,495 (142,745) 
Contributions 9,121 9,121 

· Miscellaneous 17,597 171597 701405 521808 2201500 2201500 3481452 1271952 
Total Revenues 110071600 110071600 6911296 {3161304} 41953!100 513111350 4?231969 {5871381} 

Expenditures/Encumbrances: 
Current-

((l County Planning and Zoning 163,321 163,321 44,977 118,344 131,925 490,175 490,175 _. 
Park Operations and Maintenance 902,779 902,779 617,015 285,764 1,107,100 1,107,100 326,541 780,559 
Recreation 4,8361975 418361975 416331959 203,016 
Total Expenditures/Encumbrances _1,0661100 110661100 6611992 4041108 610761000 6,4341250 419601500 114731750 

Excess of Revenues over (under) 
Expenditures/Encumbrances (58,500) (581500) 291304 87!804 (1 I 1221900} {111221900} (2361531) . 8861369 

Other Financing (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In 50,000 50,000 
Operating Transfers Out (2221936} (2221936) 

Total Other Financing (Uses} 
-~--- --- 50,000 501000 (2221936) {2221936) 

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
over (under) Expenditures/Encumbrances 
and Other Financing Uses - Budget Basis $ (58,500) $ (58,500} 79,304 $ 137,804 $ (1,122,900) $ (1,122,900) (459,467) $ 663,433 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, July 1 509,398 ~032 

Fund Balances - Budget Basis, June 30 $ 588,702 $ 5,2991565 

The funds budgets are approved by the respective County Council only for the total of both funds 



Horse and rldor compete at the Prince George's Equestrian Center and Showplace Arena 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enterprise runds arc used lo account for recreational and cultural f acililies 
that c1re operated in a manner sim ilar to privale business enterprises, where 
the Commission's intent is lhal the costs of providing goo<ls or services to the 
general public will he recovered primarily lhrough user char14cs. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Schedule 3 

Schedule of Net Assets 
EnterprlH Funds 

June 30, 2003 and 2002 

Bl',aa1&2a1111m~ ;Mnmi:e.lfifil!1_M"• 

Montgom1ri Co11Qlx e!JnU ~!!,'!fQA._ Coun!Y Tota~ 
Jun• 30, June JO, Juno 301 Juno !30, Juno JO, Juno 30, 

2003 2002 _--W_3 __ 2002 2003 200, 

ASSETS 
Currilnl Assets: 
Equity in Pooled Cash 11nd lnvestmants $ 1,455,11 3 $ 3,312,016 $ 
Restrich1d Cash, Cash Equivolents and Investments: 

1,760,871 $ 1,709,476 $ 3,2Hl,984 $ 6,021,402 

Revenue Bond covenant Aeeounto 589,848 583,286 589,848 083,266 
Unspent Equipment Flnonelng Proceeds 51 ,717 51,717 

Accounts Receivable 3,647 372 2,388 2,327 6,035 2,609 
Inventories 854 621 842,706 537 251 ~6079 1,391 .872 1,388,78~ 

Total current Assets 2,954,948 4,738,380 2,300,510 2,257,882 51255.4S6 6,996,242 

Copital Assets: 
L,nd 11,! 84.408 11.564,468 7,779,131 7 ,779,131 19,363,599 19,363,509 
Bulldl11gs and Improvements 26,132,269 26,306,606 65,055,716 85,055,716 91.187,985 90,36;;>,322 
Maehlnery 11nd Equipment 4,720,278 4,668,388 4,295,454 4,129,137 9,015,732 8,668,525 
conslrue1lon In Progress 1,583,216 ......l.ZW.ll.. 1,583,216 1 773131 

44,020,231 43,22M93 77,130,301 76,963,964 121 ,150.532 120,187,517 
Less - Accumulated Oepreclallon (10.193,409} (81624 I 158) (16,928,481} (13,759,042! (26,121,890} (?2,383,200) 

Total CopittJI Assets (net of depreciation) _E,828,822 34 ,599,435 61,201 ,820 63,204,942 95,026,64?. 97 804 377 
Total Assets 36,781,768 39,337.795 83,602.330 BS.462,824 100,284,098 104,800,619 

UABIUTIES 

Currant Liabilities: 
Aeeounta Payabll'I 299,065 388,098 243,713 288,538 542,778 676,636 
Accrued S1111~e, and Benefits 154,631 136,261 231,30-4 202,638 385,935 338,797 
Compensated Absences 210,050 200,096 166,364 168,223 376,414 358,319 
Interest Payable 116,240 126,400 118,240 126,400 
Revenue Collected In Advonco, 540,900 43S,70! 138,897 154,766 687,587 590,471 
Currilnt Portion of Revenue Bonds Payiiblo 300,000 285,000 300,000 285,000 
Current Portion or Revenue Notes Payable 664.444 874,444 684.444 674,444 
Current Portion of Noles P11y11ble ___ 8_0,lli_ 58477 86,711 58 477 

Totnl Current Liabiltties 2,400,041 2,304.481 780,0 /6 804,063 3,180,119 3,108,544 

NoncurrQnl Ll:ibllllles: 
Revenue Bonds Payable 2,631.433 3,009,370 2,831.433 3,099,370 
Revenue Notes Payablo 8,747,224 7,431,668 6,747,224 7.431,668 
Notes Payable 203,888 158,807 203,688 168,1.107 
Componseted Absences 239,547 238,817 354,451 311 ,547 593,986 550,164 
Payable to Advance L11nd Acqulsttlon Trust Fund 3,829,383 3,828,383 3,829,363 3,829,383 

Total Noncummt Liabilities --1.Q.Q.21,892 10,928,462 4,183,814 4 140 910 ~ 05,706 15,069,372 
Total LlablUllss 12,421,933 13,232,943 4 ,863,89? 4,944 973 17,385,825 18.177,916 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in Capital Assets, Nat al F!olalod Debt 23,0~5.039 22,891,669 57,372,457 69,375,579 80,397,496 82,267,248 
Restricted for Debi Scrvlec 588,848 583,266 589,848 583,268 
unrestrlclad 744 948 2,629,917 1,185,981 1142 272_ 1,910,929 3,772,109 
Total Net Assets $ 24,359,835 $ 26~ 104,852 $ 681538,438 $ 801517,861 $ 821898,273 $ 86,622,!Ql. 
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THe MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Schedule4 

Schedule of Revenun, Expenses, and Changes In Fund Net Assete 
enterprise Funds 

For the Yearr; Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 

Recreational and Cultural Facllltlcs 

Mont11ome!J: Coun!}: Prince Goor11e's Coun!}: Totals 
Year Ended June 301 Year Ended June 30, Year Ended Juno 30, 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 7002 

Operating Revenues: 
Selee $ 1.343,789 $ 1,832,353 $ 1,288.004 $ 1,485,388 $ 2,811,773 $ 3,117,719 
Chergos for Services 8,730,839 10,017,145 3,789,223 4,428,115 12,519,862 14,443,260 
Rentals and Concessions 2,811 ,242 2,588,223 1,998,982 2,271,056 4,608,224 4,859,279 

Total Operating Revenues 12,885,650 14,237,721 7,054,209 8,182,637 19.739,859 22,420,258 

Opereting Expanses: 
Cost of Goods Sold 815,033 991,372 998,229 1,075,366 1,813,282 2,066,727 
Personal Services 6,837,641 5,889,384 7,464,442 6,893,854 13,102,083 12,563,218 
Supplies and Materials 1,678,246 1,817,310 1,230,011 1,214,659 2,908,257 3,031 ,969 
Communlcetions 131,142 116,996 205,794 245,438 336,936 382,434 
UUIIUes 737,127 645,292 4,835 741,962 646,292 
Maintenance 307,010 353,140 434,186 892,876 741 ,176 1,046,018 
contractual Services 1,501,624 1,283,108 813,649 588,236 2,316,273 1,849,344 
Other Services end Chsrges 259,463 321,034 381,489 871.813 640,952 992,847 
AdmlnlMratlve Services 1,195,419 1,1S0,389 1,196,418 1,190,389 
Depreciation 1,592,080 1,471,882 2,101,239 2,238,205 3,773,319 3,710,087 

Total Operating Expenses 13,854:785 13,839,887 13:713,854 13,818,436 27,668,838 27,458,323 
Operating Income (Loss) (1,169,13!!1, 397,834 16,659,645) !5,435,899l !7,82S.780l !5,038,085l 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses); 
Investment Earnings 91,593 231,041 32,218 30,771 123,811 261 ,812 
Interest Expense, net of Amortluition (874,407) (730,809) (674,407) (730,809: 
Loss on Salo of Asset !13,938) !13,938; 

Total Nonoperatlng Revenue (Expense) ,s02,014i (513,706) 32,218 30,771 !550,696) (482,935; 
Income (Lo&&) before Transfers (1,761,848) (115,872) (6,827.427) (5,405,128) (8,379,376) (5,521,000: 

Transfers or General Government LenCI 3,793,139 3,793,139 
Transfers In - Park Account 86,000 88,000 4,162,200 3,854,107 4,248,200 3,940,107 
Transfer In - Recreation Account 388,600 388,586 388,600 388,5G6 
Transfer In - Internal Service Fund • Group Insurance 78,173 97,214 175,387 
Transfer In - Private Purpose Trust 17,759 17,759 
Transfer Out- CIP Fund (175,000) 1175,000l 

Chengo In Net Assets (1 ,745,017) 3,763,287 (1,979,413) (1,162,455) (3,724,430) 2,600,812 

Total Net Assets - Beginning 26,104,852 22,341,686 60,517,851 81,680,308 881e22i703 84,021,891 
Total Net Assets - Ending $ 241359,835 $ 2811041852 $ 58,538,438 $ 601517,851 $ 8218881273 $ 881822i703 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Schedule f 

Schedule of Cash Flows • Enterprise Funds 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 

Recre11tionel 11nd Cultural Facilities 

Montgome~ Count~ Prince Georae's Coun~ 
Year Ended June 301 Year Ended June 301 Year Ended June 30, 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 
Cesh Flows rrom Operatlnc, Activities: 

Receipts from Customers and Users $ 12,796,670 $ 14,188,938 $ 7,038,079 $ 8,230,888 $ 18,83M48 $ 22,398,624 
Payments to Supptlers (4,680,753) (4,431,749) (3,861,070) (4,239,880) (8,541,823) (8,671,73S 
Peymenw to Employoos (!5,608,387) (!5,733,422) (7,:384,629) (8,841,755) (12,993,016) (12,575,177 
Payments ror Jnterfund Services Used (880,000) (860,200) (243,100) (233,800) (1,103,100) (1,094,00C 
Payments for Administrative Charges p,185,419! !1, 190,389) (1.185.418! (1 .180,366 

Ne! Cash Provided (Ueed) by Operating Activities 451,011 1,953,176 (4,450,720l (3,084,067l ,3,989,708! ,1 , 131,681 

cash Flows rrom Noncapital Finencing ActlvlUes: 
Oper11t1ng Transfers In from Other Funds 181,931 85,000 4,848,014 4,242,873 4,629,845 4,326,67~ 
Operating Transfers Out to Other Fund~ (17!5,000~ --~~ 

Net cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital 
Financing Acllvltles 6,931 86,000 4,&48,014 4,242,873 4 8$4 945 4,328,871 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities; 
Acquisition 1md Construction of C11pltel Asscta (819,468) , (2,469,831) (178,117) (350,177) (997,585) (2,810,00! 
Principal Paid on Notes Payablo (732,920) (715,235) (732,820) (715,23! 
Principal Paid on Revcinue Bonds (28!5,000) (270,000) (206,000) (270,00( 
Interest Paid (842,344) (898,748) (642,344) (698,74! 
Proceeds from Finencing - Notes Peyeble 131,683 131,593 

Net Cuh Provided (Used) by Capital and Relatod 
Financing AcUvllies !2,348, 139) (4,143,812) p78,117l '350,177) i2,s2812sei (41493,981 

CPSh Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest on Restricted Jnve$lments 104,895 191,!501 104,895 H,l1,50' 
Interest on Investments ,1 3,3021 ~~ 32,218 30,771 18,916 70,31" 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 91 593 231 041 32 218 30 771 123 811 2e1 e1: 

Net Increase (Occrc:tSe) In Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,798,504) (1.873,696) 51,395 838,410 (1,747,209) (1 ,035,18! 

Cash, Cash l:qulvalcints and Restricted Cash, July 1 3,895,282 6,768,877 1,709,478 871,0615 5,604,758 6,639,941 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, Juna 30 $ 2,098,878 $ 3,895,282 $ 1,780,871 $ 1,709,478 $ 3,8!57,549 s !5,604,75! 

Displayed as: 
Equity In Pooled Cesh end Investments $ 1,455,113 $ 3,312,018 $ 1,780,871 $ 1,708,476 $ 3,215,984 $ 5,021,49: 
Restricted for Revenue Bond Covenants 589,848 683,266 589,848 583,26! 
Restricted Revenue 11nd Equipment Financing Proceeds !51 717 !51 ,717 

$ 210861878 $ 3,895,282 $ 1,760,!ll $ 1,7091478 $ 3,esz_s_g $ _s,~04,75! 

Roconclllatlon ol Operating lncome/(LoH) to Not Cash 
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Operating Income (loss) $ (1,169,135) $ 397,834 $ (El ,65g,s45) $ (5,435,899) (7,828,780) s (6,038,00f 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operetlng Income (loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Deprecietion 1,592,080 1,471,582 2,181,239 2,238,205 3,773,319 3,710,08i 
Chenges In Assels end Liabilities; 
(Increase) Decrease In Accounts Receivable (3,275) 1,335 (81) 3,501 (3,338) 4,83E 
(lncreasa) Dl!lcrease in Inventories. at cost (11,915) (55,086) 8,828 32,587 (3,087) (22,49E 
Increase {De0fe11Se) In Acco1mts Payable (89,033) 184,7!52 (44,B2!5) (20,000) (133,858) 164,75; 
Increase (Decrease) In Accrued Salaries and Benefits 18,370 14,641 28,768 10,548 47,138 2!5,19( 

lncreillie (Decrease) In Comperisated Absences 10,884 17,734 51,045 41,550 61,929 S9,26t 
Increase (Decrease) In Interest Payable (10,160) (9,787) (10,180) (9,79i 
Increase (Decrease) In Revenue Collected in Advance 113,195 !70,120) (15,069) 44,860 97,126 ,25,47( 

Total Adjustments 1,820,148 1,555,342 2,208,92!5 2,351,042 3,829,071 3,906,3St 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Oporatlng Activities s 451 ,01 1 $ 11953,178 $ (4,450,720), $ (3,084,8571 $ (3,999,709) s 11,131,681 

Noncash Investing, capital and financing actlvltlos: 
In fiscal year 2002. land with a historical cost 01 $3,793.1311 was trans~rred rrom the Gonoral 
Government to the Montgomery Enterprise Fund 
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Commission workers at Popa Farm Nursery grow hundreds of trees for planting in the park system 

INTERNAL SERVICE .FUNDS 

Internal Service funds arc used to account for the consolidated financing of certain goods 
or services provided to other Commission runds on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

Capital 8quip111ent Funds 

The Montgomery County Capital Equipment Fund is used to account for the acquisition 
of equipment through the use of tax exempt financing and the leasing of the equipment lo 
other Commission funds . 

l:.'.wcwiw~ Of{ice Hui/ding Fund 

The Prince George's County Executive Office Building Fund is used to account for the 
cost or operating the Executive Office Building and was used lo account for the 
renovation costs or that building which was acquired in February of 1992. 

F.111plnvee Benefits Funds 

The Employee Benefits runds arc used lo account for the costs related to employees' life 
and health insurance coverage, and the flexible spending program. The rund is also used 
lo charge various programs and projects in the governmental funds for annual leave 
earned and cstimales of sick leave that will be taken in order lO better measure their costs. 
The Fund includes the total compensated absences liability an<l the assets avuilublc to 
pre-rund compensated absences. 

Risk Ma11(i_g_e111e111 Funds 

The Risk Management Funds are used to account for the uclivity related to general 
liability, property damage, and workers compensation. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK ANO PLANNING COMMISSION 
SchGdule6 

Internal Service Funds 
Combining Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 2003 

MOffl"GOII.ERY COUNTY -= GEORGE'S COUNTY TOTALS 

TOTM.S Execwwe TO"'"AI.S 
~ Emp",>yee Risll Jln>JO. June 30. Office EmpiO)'ff R'.sk June 30, Jur:e 30. .lune30, June:?;!) 

E.<Ronent Benerb t.!anagetr .. utt 2003 2002 B.1M,!!:9 
ASSETS 

eererts ~-nett ~ 2lJ0/2 2003 2".:2 

CuITft"t Asseb 
~ .,Pcd!dC2sh.ar..a lnve~ s 2,045,311 s 9,315,242 $ 4,628.248 s 15,989,661 ! f;;J81~ $ 
RIBLid.ed Cash. Casn ~·-a.xi lllHestments 

356,450 $ 9,550.- s tC 038.354 s 19,945,733 $ 19.156,728 $ 35,935.EOO $ :15,.14$.672 

Onspe=I ReRn..t B:.ad and Ei;u1p-nerrt Fnanrc.g 
Praceeds I.CC9.,3,5< l, lll9,3S4 1,C-49,:554 

Accoun!s Rectt,able = 250 250 250 2S~ 50CI 
Ouef.-c«.t::JGo,,-.mmMi !13~ !i3,543 82.232 !i3,543 !D..543 82232 187,oeG 164,464 
Due l'rcmOttterfun<Js-115 Tr.st 456.351 *6.~-s, 4ES,.3St - .~1 932,.702 
Oepos:.ts aid Other ~.680 19.991 21.561 2&.SM 1~ 19.891 21561 28558 ~ 122 !;7 '15 
T_ C<r.,ml Assez 3094725 ve• 273 • 741922 1762D.!12D 16,l~ 356,SO 10018~5 10 t51 .BD8 20,527,194 19~,7E8 ~ .1•a.1,, 33 370,752 

lbxlJnnt Assets ~-. Lor$ 7~.497 743.497 748,"97 70.~97 14,4$1 
(!) ~-.......,,._-- Hl2,4E9 102..<9 ·02.c59 2.-.665 2.649..!65 2 .lltt.865 2.752,334 2,752.3:M 
-...J -.e,yordE~uipne,r:t 17.455,1!54 154,204 17.61S,2U 15, IC3,aes 26.325 19!1.ll:3 Z25,1::S 95,73S 17,8(5,377 16,238.-

les:s-.Ac:cum&:tr.ec! :lei;:rec..zS::M, jl2~323I!J j52.C!!!) ,12.25071] [!0,860725] {1.02\ 0•1 {g~ , 1 C78.<S1'1 j!'9,99;!1 [!J.i36333e~ {11.81H1fil 
TCIOl~Asul5 [helora~cep,ec,.-J 5,33.~.156 IOI 71C 5 C35,565 ~.510 2 CD3,274 142,730 2~.- 25UUt 7~70 7 929.921 ,_As,m a.429.6!1 9.7!4.27$ •8'3.632 23.C57.785 2 1.-?94 2,759,724 10,01a,!!S U~29C,538 23.073.19!1 21.&II !79 E ,1:n.9$4 ~613 

lULB.UTES 

Cwrffl~: 
~ Paro2* 107,949 120,91 • 5,597 =-~ I.S.C.894 9,925 120.,914 sa= •119_.n7 44.009 423.697 1n..-
CUl'rent P:ut.cn ct Cclims Paya~ 332.09 642.763 975,182 764,415 ~Ii 646,4M ..nms 1,!55,116 1,554,077 2,120,SJ2 
A.ccr-Jed saane:s a."ld Bener.1S 113..&76 7,585 121,461 = 3.111 112,96< 7,585 123,660 104,887 24S.121 187,4«2 
c..re.: ....,_., Na'.os Paya?r.e 1.6!5,556 1,685,555 1.2158,5'05 14$,,COO 145,000 90.J)CO 1.83!>.566 1,358,905 
Ocrrnt Pof"..ga d CompeRSill!d ~er.ces 3.U,.:00 <,547 3.632..IM7 3,652,290 2.7'S1 4,187,400 4.5•7 4,134.70. 3..9M,663 1.-.751 7 El!7,953 
Due 10 Coonty G.,,,re ....- 5 ,0l2 5,.ca.2 S..D32 5,032 10.-
1'1'.eresl Parx* 27,932 27~2 44.3114 (4.304 11.,674 72.235 11.117' 
TOC:,, c-tet UaoU,es I 821437 4 254 709 fi65,52C 67"1E'W 5,903060 205,097 4 733697 nz.0:33 S.680..o32 5,~~ 12.~.- 11.472.409 

N!xa::urrent L.ab:!".fl 
Claims f>zpble- l'tll cl CWeat p...., 4S0,,7SISI l,.9'2a.2a7 2,419,085 2.200.628 •~.- 1,939,'33 2 .=..232 3,371,014 4.,8,19,318 5 ,571,102 
~ Pa,-atle - Net ol Curret'J. Por:.cr. 3,290,635 32S0,63S 2.307,783 1..5-».= 1~:?;0.0!>J 1,675.CC3 4.820,635 3.9!!2.7S3 
Co'1lpen..r!ed Abseaas . t,;el of c.mnt PO<ton 2219100 20432 2..239.s32 2 .~!ID 531 ·o:zzr 2,801.100 20 ~33 2 ,837.700 2.642 657 SJJn.DZ C 723.294 

Total Noncurred l.Rt:il..es 3.29116$ 2 709.899 1S;!,71S 7..94~.25; 6 589,008 1~m 3 297,899 l~,BE& 6 .791.992 1..-n, 1',747.24S U .217.779 
Tobi Lial!Clies 5 11~72 5-554.SCB 2614.243 14,6'50,923 12 CS2.CE8 , 1,5 :t2• 11,os1,sss U,Sl..904 , 2,•1a,a2• ' 3~.120 • 27,1591,1 --~3sa.1ee 

IETASSETS 
&:Y;ested in Capl!al "5"--. - .. -Delli 1,«la,319 101,711) 1,510,029 1.=.122 7211,274 142,7.11) &Tl.CCC 719,111 2,38 1.033 z.=,.233 
Unrest.;a!d 19!JU90 2.819~ 2.127.679 6 856.1134 7 .187,e,:i, 286.126 1!!51~ 7.46~.- 9,723.370 1,114.648 11i\58C;204 14$22'52 

Tclat ~elASM!S s 3.317_,!t:~ $ 2.~13.665 $ ==s II.Je6.S63 $ a .99572ii 5 1..1114.4CO $ _ 1_.957.3CO $ 7 512,634 s 10$4,374 s 11.553.753 $ 11!,561,237 $ 17,54S,Q5 



lllE lllAll'YLAIID-NATIOHAL CAl'ITAL PARI!. Al'ID PLAICNING COMMISSION 
Schedule 7 

lnlemll knhe fimds 
ecm111n11111-cf Rnoa,u, E.<porues,-CNnps in,..,..,_ Assata 

For 1111e Yea, Eo1*d .,,_ ~. 200a 

LIOffTGoe/ERY COUl"1Y PlmlCE GEORGE'S COIJ~tv TI>TALS 

TOTALS &e- TOTALS 

c..- Emp:o,yeo R.'* -30. .JmlelO. ~ Emplopo - .Aa>e30. June 3= . June 3). J,.ne 3:1, 
E<pp<r.ent -- Yana;1ement 2003 2002 IWJdaq B1nelib Yaragemer.t = 2JOl2: 2003 ~ 

Op!satq R1M1nuas. 
Ch~bServiOIS $ 1~,)6~ S 15,001 ,78 1 $ 1PTOJ.00 I 17.,555. 141 s 17.7:IS.048 S 758.50n s 16,il1-0,65!1 $ 2..111..= $ 19.007.353 $ 1S.,000,358 $ !S,562.499 S 35.a:!9.-
Cla_imReCDWfies 110.192 110,192 101.247 10l 11!::1.Z:S 180,309 129,010 2SO,S01 ZJ6251 
T-Oporat:n9-- 1.4U.360 15,001.7'1 1,1t11.1S2 17.ES5~ 17,Ul.2SJ 7S8,&0D 15 07-0 858 2 ,35&.2Q9 19.187,667 11.,222,368 36853,000 36,065,661 

~E:lpomes: 
Persor.aJ Services S,397.BB8 2S1 ,848 S,859,736 5,122,320 123,781 6,5U257 261.52 6..8$S.,900 5.189.156 12.S55,6$ 11,311,-06 
Suppln-- 15s.,&& 29,710 185,171 63,66a n.e,5 21,1311 lin.784 80,212 223,962 143,NIO 
~-Se.:ri::e1 -
...,.,._,.,CCU!!Js.tr 
......... ~rtlt 1,436.593 1,436,593 1,SJ1,590 399.547 399,547 1.2$9.oCn 1,836,UO 2,761,082 

Cll,n,slncaned 4.221,761 4227,Nl1 4,039,095 4.227,761 4.227.761 4.,580.,5116 8,455.522 8,619,690 -- S,ll6o.2S2 3,66f 5,059.926 4 ,587201 S,056,262 f'5,7is] SJHM76 4J;91.Jl69 10,070,olOC! 9,2<14,2111 
01her Sefttces and Chatges 25,.9,l:J 59,741 214,llil 3ll,351 395,1153 H9,0?o 59,7'0 '5,303 SSS.119 676,39G B5S,A70 1,il72,255 
~ 1.S02.2:J;Z 16,167 1,518 399 1,485 394 107 7SO 20125 l :ZS.475 •12.S():2 l,646,S74 1,599~ 

Toto! Ope<a1iag Elq>enses l,683~ 14741,E!:2 1,9o"2,692 18387.944 11.H6.131 163 2SZ 15,854.0211 703,19) 17~~ 17..SSS,.S19 35.709,006 34,791.95() 

Operali1gb:a<m flaUI ~2~ 260.129 Q112,5C!!j ~ .611! 6'7,162 {'.&g 218,838 1,6SC419 11166 605 =9 1143.994 _ 1273.711 

(0 
-.Opo~9 -. (Expenses~ OJ 
-.stlnoome 73.,1:53 119.425 76,5SC 269,832 332,154 S,564 132,185 162,M,3 300.592 4~1S7 570,424 801,321 _, .. ,~ l!S7a (!37.5031 ~23,l!m ~0.32Il i!!g/2 ~4~ :@:7,9~ (447.BIJ 

TOGI N0<1ope:alllgR- ('Expo'l5tSl 87SC.J 119.425 76.SSC 132.229' 108 952 ~.763! 132185 162~ 210.26S z;o.522 ~42.494 359~ 

lnc:lale(µss)6el!>~~.s81'11 T~ (2l!3.990I S79..5M (!06.9-461 !,1!S0,3821 75S,12C ~ .415! 3"9023 1.anag 2,C76..S70 877.171 I 4!6.488 1,633~ 

CpoatqT=st.,s lo (OIII): 
lnte.-T....-ln-T-- 1.371LSSl 1,378,.583 400~000 1.$78.5112 l.$7'&..5SZ 4COJ)OI) 2.757.16$ 600!/00 1n1-.-,,__ 1n S.568 S.568 2.225 5,569 7.754 U,362 
tmlfa<f Trama ('Ol;I) 11,422~ (!,422,63-2) (!.422..ll31j 11 .422.6:!1! ~845~ 
Net Operan; Tnnm,s ~-~ 5..563 @!.4811 400~ 2.225 '"~ 5,569 PS255l ~.000 [!4.~ 800,000 

~ii l't!IAsso'ls lll!!l,990! 335.505 ~~7Sl l'Ei2U6lll 1.156124 (!!.1~ !:4.9'74 J.822.831 2~.615 1m.111 1.411.7SZ 2.'*33~ 

TclllNdAss!l3, .a.t, 1 3,581 799 2484,160 2.5'2S.757 s~~7211 1.'5J3/iU1. 1/01,590 1..E62.366 5 .789,803 8,553,759 1.216..5M 17,549483 15.116,l SO 
Tolal ~ AsS<!ls, Jan 30 s 3,317.809 $ 2.819.665 S - _2.22S.,J;n $ 8.J66,.!63$ ~~$ 1..014.-«)0 $ __ 1~.3e $ 7.6_12.63C $ 10-594,374 $ __ 6_,553.7S9 $ 16,961.237 $ ~-
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Schedukl 8 
Combining Statement o f Cash Flows - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

For ttte Year Ended June 30, 2003 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 
Executive 

Capilal Em~e Rist Office Emp~e Risi( 

EQUi~'llent Benefits Managemem TOTAL Building Benefits Management TOTAL TOTAL 
Cash Flows from Opera1ing Activities: 

Receipts from Ctlstomersand Users $ 1,483,360 $ 14,538,218 $ 1,173,090 $ 17,194,668 $ 758,600 $ 15,607.295 $ 2,351,357 $ 18.717.252 $ 35,911,920 
Payments to Suppl1e!S (150,408) (8,864.737) {1,468,610) (10,483,755) (533,839} (8,864,736) (1 ,900,784) (11,299,359) (21,783,114) 
Payments to Eml)loyees (5,153,9n) (268,161) (5.422, 138) (11 8.563) (6,056.285) (268,175) (6,443,023) (11,865,161) 
Payments for lnterlwld Services Used ~5.900} {35,100) (102,3001 {164,3001 11.1001 {36,100} {102.300) {139,500} {303,800) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Actrviies 1,307,052 483.404 (665,9811 1,124,475 ~098 650,174 8 0,008 835,370 1,959.845 

Cash Flows from Noncapilal Financing Ac:livities: 
Operating Transfers In From Otha, Fl.l'lds {44,049) 5568 (38,4811 2.225 {44,049} 5,569 {36,2552 Q'.4.736) 

Ne1 Cash Pl'OVl(jed (Used) by Noncapital 
Financing Activities {44,049) 5,568 (38,481} 2.225 {44,049} 5,569 (36,255} Q'.4,736) 

Cash Flows rrom Capital and Relaled Finanaig Activities: 
Acquisiion or Capilal Assets (1,485,664) - (84,791) (1,570,455) (130,370) (130,370) (1,700,825) 
Principal Paid on Notes Payable (1 ,268,904) - (1,268,904) (90,000) (90,000) (1,358,904) 
Interest Paid on Notes Payable (137,603) - (137,603) (90,325) (90,326) (227,929) 
Proceeds from FincD:ing- No:es Payable- Net 2,668,407 - 2.668,407 - 2,668,407 
Net Casll Provided (Used) by Capital and 

(0 Re!ated Financing Activilies (223,764} - {84.791) (308,555) (180,325) (130,370) (310,696) (619,251) (0 

Cash F1ows rrom Investing Activities: 
ln1erest on lnve:slments 73.853 119.425 76,554 269,832 5,564 132 185 162.843 300,592 570,424 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
lnvesling Activities 73.653 119.425 76,554 269,832 5,564 132,185 162,843 300,592 570,424 

Net Increase {Oeaease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,157,141 5 58,780 (668,650) 1,047,271 (67,439) 738,310 118,140 789,011 1,636,282 

Cash a!Y.I Cash Equivalents. July 1 1,937,584 8,757.462 5,21'6,898 15.991,944 423,889 8.812,595 9,920,244 19,156,728 35,148.6n 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 3,094,725 S 9,316,242 $ 4,628.248 $ 17 .039,215 $ 356.450 $ 9.550.905 $ 10,038,384 $ 19,945,739 $ 36,984.954 

Operating Income (los.s) $ 
Adjustmer,ls to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 

{200,240) $ 260,129 $ (782,500) $ {722,611) $ (4,652) $ 218,838 $ 1,654.419 $ 1,866,605 $ 1,143.984 

Nel Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 

1,502,232 16,167 1,518,399 107,750 20,725 128,475 1,64S,874 

(Increase) Oecrease in Accounts Recei\lllble 250 250 250 
(lnaease) Decrease in Oue rrom County Government (11,311) (11,311) (11 ,311) (11,311) {22,622} 
(Increase) Deaease in Deposits and OUler - 2,788 4.200 6,997 2,788 4.209 6,997 13,994 
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Other F1.11cls (466,351) (466,351) (466,351) (466,351) (932,702} 
Increase {Decrease) in Accoun!s P~ {22,872) 120,914 1,524 99,566 (28,848) 120,914 53,163 145.229 244,795 
Increase {Decrease) in Claims Payable 137,803 (49,858) 87,945 137,803 (859,1 82) (721,379) {633,434) 
Increase {Decrease) in Accrued Salaries and Benefits 36,811 2,095 38,906 1,707 14,972 2,094 18,773 57,679 
lnaease {Decrease) in Compensated Absences 207,100 (8,408) 198,692 3,511 439,000 (8,407) 434,104 632,796 
Increase {Decrease) in Interest Payable 27,932 27,932 25.630 25.630 53,562 
Jnaease (Decrease) in lnaared But Unreported Cms 184,210 157,069 341,279 184,210 (579,394) (395,184) (53,905) 
Increase (Decrease) in Other Accrued llabililies (201,500) (201,500) (201,500) 
Increase (Decrease) in Dee to County GoYemmenl 5.032 5.032 5032 5,032 10064 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Opera!ing Activities s 1,307,052 $ 483,404 $ {665,981) S 1.124,475 S 105.098 $ 650,174 $ 80,098 $ 835.370 $ 1,959,845 



Avid bird watchers take In the sights on the Chosapeake walking/driving tour at Jug Bay natural area 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Commission m a trustee 
capacity or as an agent for employees, individuals, private organizations, other 
governmental units, and/or other funds . 

fens ion Trust FLJ,nds 

The Pension Trust Funds arc used lo account for activities related to benefits for retired 
employees. This includes all activities of the Employees ' Retirement System including 
accumulation of resources for, and payment of, retirement annuities and/or other benefits 
and the adminisu·ativc costs of operating the system. This also includes resources set 
as ide to pay the Commission's portion of medical costs for retirees. 

Private Purpose Trust Funds 

The Private Purpose Trust Funds arc used to account for funds whose principal and 
interest must be expended in accordance with their designated purposes. 

/\gen.CV Funds 

The Agency Funds arc used to account for funds where the Commission is merely acting 
in an agent capacity for another organization. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSlON 
Schedule9 

Combining Statement of Net Assets 
Fiduciary funds 
June 30, 2003 

PRIIIATE PURPOSE 
F'elSK». TRUST RJNOS TRUST FUNDS AGENCY FUNDS 

E'llP>)'eeo' 
Po$I 

E~~=s' &np!oymenl Tcbl Prince Tocal To!al Tot3J 
Rellfensnt Bene~ls Pensiol\ Trusl !.lortlgoi,ay Geage's PIWatB Pa-pose Sim Ajja)Cy Fdudary 

FU'1CI Fon:! Fll'.lds c ..... 1y __ C:C'..1:L'y TnAt FLn<ls Re!Rrrem '>lc.."llprery Fuxls F.nls 

ASSETS 
Eq..ty in Poo:ed Cash and Investments s - $ $ - s .i:,284,331 s 8,747,9.i:6 s 13,032.2n s 2,817,612 s 5'57.717 s 3.35S.329 s 16,387,606 

Cash and Marl<.etab:e Securities 450,511.965 7.025.~B 457,537.063 457,537,063 

Res1ric!ed Cash: Unspenl Bond Proceeds 584,278 259,588 843.1166 843,866 

Collateral f°' Securities lencing 

T rans31:lions 43.782.139 43.782,139 43,782.139 

Aa:ounts Receivable 1,829,141 1.629,141 2,000 2 ,000 1,831.141 
Due from Other Governments 27.627 27,627 27.627 
Deposils and Other 109.444 109,444 109.444 
Receivable From Enterprise Fund 3,629,363 3,829,363 3.829.363 

0 Land Held for Transfer 25,311.110 11,913,244 37.22<:.354 37.224.354 
Othe, 481,665 481,665 <181,665 

Tota1Assei%1 496.232,689 7,052.725 503.265.414 30.179.719 25,233.806 55,413.525 2,817,612 537.717 3.355.329 562.054 ,268 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 871.424 871,424 1.497 1,<:97 2,817.612 1.900 2.819.512 3,692,433 
Due lo Group Insurance Internal Service Fund 932.702 932,702 932,702 
Obligafum for Colateral Received 

under Securities Lending lrans.aclions 43.782, 139 43,782,139 43,782.139 
Deposits 535,817 535,817 535.817 

Total Lialliities 44.653,563 932,702 45,566.265 1,497 ___ 1_.497 2,817,612 537,717 3,355.329 48.943.091 

NETASS1:TS 
Assets Held i n Trusl for: 

Land Held forTransfer 25.311 110 15,742.607 41.053,717 41.053.717 
Pension Benefits 451,579.126 451 ,579,126 451,579,126 
Olher Poslefl¥)loyment Benefrts 6,120,023 6,120,023 6,120,023 
Olher Purposes 4,868,609 9,489,702 14,358,311 14,358,311 

Tola! tllet Assets $ 451,579.126 $ 6,12-0,023 s 457,699.149 s 30,179.719 $ 25.232,309 $ 55,412.028 s - s - s - s S13,111,1n 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMJSSION 
Schedule10 

Combining Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
Fiduciary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

PRIVATE P'URPOSE 
PENSION TRUST FU~'OS TRUSTFUKDS 

Ell\llloyees' 
Post 

El1¥)1ayees' E~ Priooe 
Re1Jremelll 8e'1s1b Montgomery George"$ 

Fl.lld Finl Tomls CGUTty Co~ To1als 

ADDITIONS: 
C«*ilut!OIIS'. 

Employer $ 540,369 $ - s 540,36'9 $ - s - $ 
Plan Members 3,583,083 3,583,083 
Privale Donations 16.829 38.831 55,680 

To!al Contribut:ons 4,123,452 4,123.452 16,829 38..831 55,660 

Recei1Jb lrom Cormni:sslon Debt Service Furm 332,333 160,725 ~.058 

Investment E.ari,gs: 
Interest 9,575,757 1,777 9,sn.534 55,446 157,.997 213,443 
Dividends 1,820,092 286.677 2,106.769 

0 Net increase (clecrease}a, the Fair Value ollnveslmenls 16,361,166 ~23.6S2) 16,137,514 IIJ 
Total Investment Ea"*1gs 27,757,015 64,802 27,821,817 55,4'6 157,.997 213,443 

Les.s lnveslment Expense 
lmre'*1lenl Advisory a11d lf.an&gemenl Fees (1,609.9701 131,970) (1,641,940) 

Net lnoome from llrwesliog Aaivities 26,147,045 32.832 26,179.877 55.4"6 157,997 ~443 

Securities Lendmlg Al:hily 
Securilies Le111fug n::ome 714,llll6 714,806 
Se<uiaes Lenlfug Fees (642.439) (642.489) 

Net lnccme rrom Securities Lenm,g Activily 72.317 72,317 

TOia! Net lrwestme:rt IIICl0C'lle 26.219.362 32,832 26.252.194 55,446 157,997 ---1.!,!443 

TOia! Additions 30.342.814 32,83.2 30.375.646 404,608 357,553 ------------1§b 161 

DEDUCTIONS 
SenefllS 13,734,100 13,734,100 
ReliRlds of ConHnt'.ions 349,645 349,645 
Administrative expenses 1.047,456 1,1)47,466 
Transfe,s to Groop lrmnr<ee l!ltemal Senlice Fund 2,757,1 65 2,757,165 
Transfefs to Cooimlssxm Debt SeMCe Fi,ids 7,296 2.,578 9.874 
Transfe!s to Enterprise Fun:! 17,759 17,759 
Other 8,216 65,197 73-41S 

T olal Deooc:tions 1S.131211 2,757,165 17.1188,376 33,273 frl.775 101,048 
Chan11& in Net Assets 1S.211.603 (2,724,333) 12,487.270 371 ,335 289.778 661.113 

Net Assets - Begirong 436,367.523 8,844,356 445.211 ,879 29,608,364 24,942.531 54,750,915 
Nel Assets - Endir;g $ ~1.57~.126 s _§,120.0~ $ 457,699,149 $ 3>!l,179,71_!L $ ~ :n2.309 $ 55,412.028 



103 



• PART III • 
STATTSTTCAL SECTION 

Visitors In Sliver Spring get acquainted with a Park Police officer and his well-trained steed 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-1 

Net Assets by Category ( 1) 
Entity-wide Basis 

Last Two Fiscal Years (2) 

Fiscal Year 
2002 2003 

Governmental Activities 
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt $ 282,595,478 $ 305,800,251 
Unrestricted 82,792,312 86,192,777 

Subtotal Governmental Activities Net Assets 365,387,790 391,993,028 

Business- type Activities 
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 82,267,248 80,397,496 
Restricted for Debt Service 583,266 589,848 
Unrestricted 3,772,189 1,910,929 

Subtotal Business-type Actictivities Net Assets 86,622,703 82,898,273 

Primary Government 
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 364,862,726 386,197,747 
Restricted for Debt Service 583,266 589,848 
Unrestricted 86,564,501 88,103,706 

Total Government Net Assets $ 452,010,493 $ 474,891 1301 

(1) Accounting standards require that net assets be reported in three components in the 
financial statements: invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and 
unrestricted. Net assets are considered restricted only when an external party places 
a restriction on how the resources may be used. 

(2) The entity-wide net assets figures are only available for two years. 

Source: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, Finance Department 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-2 

Change In Net Assets 
Entity-wide Basis 

Last Two Fiscal Years (1) 

Expenses 
Governmental Activities: 

General Government 
County Planning and Zoning 
Park Operations and Maintenance 
Recreation Programs 
Interest on Long-term Debt 

Subtotal Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Recreational and Cultural Facilities 

Total Government Expenses 

Program Revenues 
Governmental Activities: 

County Planning and Zoning 
Park Operations and Maintenance 
Recreation Programs 

Subtotal Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Recreational and Cultural Facilities 

Total Government Program Revenues 

Net Government Expenses 

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets 
General Revenues: 

Property Taxes 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 

Loss on Disposal of Land 
Total Government General Revenues 

Change in Net Assets 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal Year 
2002 2003 

11,614,891 
29,739,984 

102,355,291 
37,992,630 
8,460,869 

190,163,665 

28,203,070 
218,366,735 

2,771,580 
31,666,712 
10,330,965 
44,769,257 

22,420,258 
67,189,515 

(151,177,220) 

174,735,630 
3,334,954 

{3,170,165} 
174,900,419 

23,723,199 

$ 

$ 

12,678,079 
29,119,749 

104,484,551 
38,057,899 
6,994,245 

191,334,523 

28,243,046 
219,577,569 

3,058,135 
26,321,407 
9,410,542 

38,790,084 

19,757,618 
58,547,702 

(161,029,867) 

181,859,997 
2,055,598 

{4,920! 
183,910,675 

22,880,808 

(1) The entity-wide change In net assets figures are only available for two years. 

Source: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Comr.nission, Finance Department 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLE T-3 

General Governmental Expenditures by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY CO.!.lNTY 

Planning Acquisition 
Fiscal General And Park And 
Year Government Zoni!:!9....__ Operations Recreation Development Debt Service Total 

1994 $ 4,753,717 $ 11,379,693 $ 32.231,027 $ 6,669,068 $ 7,668,748 $ 4,077,257 s 66,779,510 
1995 4,663,950 12,029,701 35,561,927 7,947,953 7,381,419 3,905,317 71,490,267 
1996 4,493,900 11,726,301 37,112,446 8,707,367 6,040,622 4 ,329,544 72,410,180 
1997 4,949,621 13,067,495 38,060,834 9,347,189 12,319,049 4,180,980 81,925,168 
1998 4,985,152 12,503,437 39,019,404 10,913,409 9,261,163 3,595,621 80,278,186 
1999 4,984.274 13,109,778 42,033,957 9,360,590 7,639,025 3,618,820 80,746,444 
2000 5,068,159 13,000,742 41 ,604,208 11,829,696 15,863,948 3,933,623 91 ,300,376 
2001 5,552,110 14,069,191 46,797,675 12,825,172 21,436,376 4,039,110 104,719,634 
2002 5,670,023 14,414,637 46,465,552 13,839,887 13,155,356 4,424,915 97,970,370 ..... 
2003 4,416,400 93,742,819 0 5,983,250 14,243,827 48,205,561 13,854,785 7,038,996 

-...J 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Planning Acquisition 
Fiscal General And Park And 
Year Government Zonin2...._ Oeerations Recreation Development Debt Service Total 

1994 $ 5,316,425 s 12,047,360 $ 35,388,157 s 30,814,415 $ 19,643,068 $ 9,856,836 $ 113,066,261 
1995 4,973,592 13,245,607 38,742,712 35,215,012 21 ,344,005 9,861 ,953 123,382,881 
1996 5,217,449 12,881,808 38,032,695 35,196,607 12,590,746 10,1 33,399 114,052,704 
1997 5,611,371 13,928,468 41,269,238 34,819,087 14,151,322 9,027,160 118,806,646 
1998 5,609,422 14,024,336 41,782,331 36,293,297 17,643,444 11,852,306 127,205,136 
1999 5,946,352 14,243,529 45,907,274 37,825,764 36,728,321 11,554,197 152,205,437 
2000 5,719,483 13,770,821 45,069,874 42,522,884 17,622,626 11,985,924 136,691,612 
2001 6,199,217 14,791,655 48,282,211 45,205,092 15,986,523 11,662,299 142,126,997 
2002 6,418,906 15,292,636 49,084,592 49,860,473 12,459,966 13,062,513 146,179,086 
2003 6,715,060 15,143,747 51.260,598 51 ,181,362 9,348,527 34,111,163 167,760,457 

Note: Includes General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Debt Service and Enterprise Funds. Debt Service in Prince George's 
County in 2003 includes payment at maturity of a short-tenn Prince George's County Par1< Bond of $21 .0 million which was 
refinanced. Enterprise Funds which are primarily recreational facil ities and activities are included in Recreation 

Source: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, Finance Department 



...... 
0 
OJ 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

General Revenues by Source 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Fiscal Property Inter- Charges for Interest 
Year Taxes Governmental Services Earnings 

1994 $ 52,734,344 $ 3,199,sn $ 6,182,389 $ 971,811 
1995 55,233,140 6,974,552 7,358,834 1,528,618 
1996 53,880,270 5,424,794 7,614,645 1,527,593 
1997 57,612,812 6,654,626 7,627,376 1,231,641 
1998 60,270,773 6,797,726 9,120,287 1,586,354 
1999 60,270,408 5,921,195 9,134,201 1,670,534 
2000 62,448,568 12,324,Sn 9,446,610 1,747,465 
2001 64,611,473 17,714,828 10,357,245 1,374,924 
2002 69,212,845 12,640,323 11,327,470 581,151 
2003 70,200,528 7,225,328 10,441,684 339,008 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Fiscal Property Inter- Charges for Interest 
Year Taxes Governmental Services Earnin~ 

1994 $ 91 ,143,535 $ 4,331,934 s 6,622,486 $ 2,376,165 
1995 92,571,349 7,308,602 6,988,014 3,733,213 
1996 94,857,674 1,933,128 6,731,893 3,653,354 
1997 96,816,650 5,360,060 7,106,102 4,217,988 
1998 98,538,298 2,125,267 7,402,645 5,875,336 
1999 101,308,740 10,368,201 7,496,543 5,208,609 
2000 103,640,212 8,130,897 7,414,320 4,891,099 
2001 104,417.411 4,808,601 8,753,412 4,004,692 
2002 107,930,218 5,920,707 11,193,063 1,946,482 
2003 111,980,326 7,066,267 10,363,411 1,146,166 

Note: Includes General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Debt Service and Enterprise Funds. 
(1) Issued to retire Bond Anticipation Notes 
(2) Refunding Bonds 
(3) Includes $21,000,000 to refinance a short-term note 
(4) Includes Refunding and New Money issues 
(5) Includes Refunding and Refinancing Bond issues 

I"'\- __ - • 'TL_ • • -- 41 __ ,.. .. t-&:---1 r_,-:._,1 ~,I,.,...,,,.~ Oln.-.Nrv, /"'-rr,.miirrin.n C'in"'.Jnl'"'O non.~rtmPnf 

Other Total 

$ 3,461,964 $ 66,550,185 
3,945,300 75,040,444 
3,969,092 72,416,394 
4,227,264 77,553,721 
4,361,403 82,136,543 
4,410,413 81,406,751 
4,432,045 90,399,265 
5,164,768 99,223,238 
5,897,530 99,659,319 
5,718,794 93,925,342 

Other Total 

$ 4,426,002 $ 108,900,122 
6,323,419 116,924,597 
5,189,727 112,365,776 

10,581,819 124,082,619 
5,231 ,154 119,172,700 
7,158,655 131,540,748 
6,559,164 130,635,692 
6,165,111 128,149,227 

11,031,588 138,022,058 
9,193,575 139,749,745 

TABLET-4 

General 
Obligation 
Bonds Sold 

$ 5,500,000 (1) 
5,000,000 
8,700,000 (2) 

7,000,000 

5,700,000 

13,705,000 (4) 

General 
Obligation 

Bonds Sold 

$ 14,500,000 (1) 

30,025,000 (2) 
33,000,000 
28,325,000 (3) 
21,000,000 {2) 

18,700,000 
42,310,000 (5) 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNINu \,;UMMl::>:>1uN 
TABLE T-5 

Property Tax Levies ar.d Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Prior Years 
Taxes 

Penalties Percent of 
Current Percent and Total 

Rscal Total Tax of Levy Interest Total Colteciions 

Year Tax Le~ Collections Collected Collections Collections to Tax Levy 

1994 $ 52,767,491 $ 51,997,064 99 % $ 737,280 $ 52,734,344 100 % 
1995 55,410,789 55.247,895 100 (14,755) 55,233,140 100 

1996 54,476,197 54,062,888 99 (182,618) 53,880,270 99 
1997 58,632,597 57,916,789 99 (303,977) 57,612,812 98 
1998 59,150,686 58,603,216 99 1,667,557 60,270,773 102 
1999 60,547,511 59,484,336 98 786,072 60,270,408 100 
2000 61,998,281 60,973,987 98 1,474,581 62,448,568 101 

2001 65,210,972 64,015,359 98 596,114 64,611,473 99 
.... 2002 69,302,154 68,605,694 99 607,152 69,212,846 100 
0 

2003 69,493,121 68,994,492 99 1,206,036 70,200,528 101 (0 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Prior Years 
Taxes 

Penallies Percent of 

Current Percent and Total 
Fiscal Total Tax of Levy Interest Total Collections 
Year Tax Le~ Collections Collected Collections Collections to Tax Levy 

~ -·---

1994 $ 90,765,239 $ 89,580,087 99 % s 1,563,448 $ 91,143,535 100 % 
1995 92,551,211 91,879,635 99 691,714 92,571,349 100 
1996 94,707,563 93,970,990 99 886,684 94,857,674 100 
1997 97,533,798 96,689,551 99 127,099 96,816,650 99 
1998 98,618,464 97,670,607 99 867,691 98,538,298 100 
1999 101,339,962 100,037,283 99 1,271,457 101,308,740 100 
2000 103,461,526 102,213,005 99 1,427,207 103,640,212 100 
2001 105,035,614 103,544,928 99 872,483 104,417.411 99 
2032 107,977,263 106,777,906 99 1,152,312 107,930,218 100 
2003 112,003,391 110,517,257 99 1,463,069 111,980,326 100 

Source: Total Tax Levy- Montgomery County and Prinoe George's County Governments. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLET-6 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
Ratio of Total 

Assessed Value 
Real Property Total (1} To Total 

Fiscal Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Estimated 
Year Value Actual Value Value Actual Value Actual Value 

1994 $ 25,462,671 $ 66,171,182 $ 28,823,025 $ 69,531,537 41.45 % 
1995 25,796,030 67,107,259 29,172,981 70,484,210 41.39 
1996 26,057,529 66,677,402 29,575,004 70,194,878 42..13 
1997 26,603,652 68,284,529 30,392,876 72,073,752 42.17 
1998 27,274,641 69,295,328 30,929,092 72,949,779 42.40 
1999 27,906,080 71,480,738 31,664,627 75,239,284 42.09 
2000 28,674,554 74,907,403 32,553,857 78,786,706 41.32 
2001 29,649,013 79,021 ,889 33,726,861 83,099,737 40.59 
2002 (2) 77,574,948 84,229,042 81,776,292 88,440,386 92.46 
2003 82,407,338 93,432,356 86,635,192 97,660,210 88.71 

...... 
PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY ...... 

0 Ratio of Total 
Assesst!d Value 

Real Proeerty Total {1} To Total 
Fiscal Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated EsliTlated 
Year Value Actual Value Value Actual Value Actual Value 

1994 $ 13,501,439 $ 34,929,206 $ 15,829,304 $ 37,257,071 42.49 % 
1995 13,961,904 35,575,591 16,381,236 37,994,922 43.1 1 
1996 14,188,944 35,404,010 16,678,956 37,894,021 44.01 
1997 14,319,088 35,827,507 16,991,422 38,499,841 44.13 
1998 14,393,723 36,104,232 17,159,141 38,869,650 44.15 
1999 14,630,433 36,423,659 17,525,979 39,319,204 44.57 
2000 14,869,426 37,244,023 17,891 ,768 40,266,365 44.43 
2001 15,173,826 38,267,541 18,182,904 41,276,619 44.05 
2002 (2) 39,091,456 39,326,338 42,190,779 42,425,661 99.45 
2003 40,794,370 42,546,271 43,832,133 45,584,034 96.16 

Note: (1) Total includes real property, business personal property, public utility operating property and 
domestic shares. 

(2) Beginning in Fiscal Year 2002 all real property in the State of Maryland is assessed at 
100 percent of actual value. Previously the valuation was assessment at 40% of actual value. 
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TABLE T-7 
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overfapping Governments 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

M-NCPPC TAXES 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
County-wide 

Advance Property 
Fiscal Park Park Land Taxes 
Year Administration Operations Maintenance Acquisition Total Within Coun~ Total 

1994 $ 0.0620 $ 0.1260 $ 0.0200 $ 0.0030 $ 0.2110 $ 2.2260 $ 2.4370 
1995 0.0650 0.1300 0.0200 0.0030 0.2180 2.2250 2.4730 
1996 0.0610 0.1260 0.0200 0.0040 0.2110 2.2850 2.4960 
1997 0.0630 0.1340 0.0200 0.0040 0.2210 2.2780 2.4990 
1998 0.0610 0.1330 0.0200 0.0040 0.2180 2.2630 2.4810 
1999 0.0610 0.1330 0.0200 0.0040 0.2180 2.2350 2.4530 
2000 0.0620 0.1340 0.0200 0.0030 0.2190 2.1750 2.3940 
2001 0.060 0.1400 0.0200 0.0030 0.2230 2.1670 2.3900 
2002 (1) 0.024/0.059 0.0578/0.1444 0.0082/0.0206 0.0010/0.0020 0.0910/0.2260 1.001/1.977 1.0912/2.203 
2003 0.023/0.058 0.0551/0.1383 0.0079/0.0197 0.0010/0.0030 0.0870/0.2190 1.125/1 .988 1.2120/2.207 -- PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

County-wide 
Advance Property 

Fiscal Park Land Taxes 
Year Administration Operations Recreation Acquisition Total Within Coun~ Total 

1994 $ 0.1103 $ 0.3587 $ 0.1348 $ 0.0062 $ 0.6100 $ 2.7520 $ 3.3620 
1995 0.1103 0.3587 0.1348 0.0062 0.6100 2.7580 3.3680 
1996 0.1 103 0.3587 0.1348 0.0062 0.6100 2.7630 3.3730 
1997 0.1103 0.3534 0.1401 0.0062 0.6100 2.7360 3.3460 
1998 0.1103 0.3534 0.1401 0.0062 0.6100 2.7410 3.3510 
1999 0.1103 0.3534 0.1401 0.0062 0.6100 2.7360 3.3460 
2000 0.1 123 0.3534 0.1381 0.0062 0.6100 2.7340 3.3440 
2001 0.1153 0.3534 0.1381 0.0032 0.6100 2.7330 3.3430 
2002 (1) 0.0466/0.1165 0.1420/0.3550 0.0541/0.1353 0.0013/0.0032 0.2440/0.6100 1.090612. 7277 1.3346/3.3377 
2003 0.0466/0.1165 0.1420/0.3550 0.0541/0.1353 0.0013/0.0032 0.2440/0.6100 1.0901/2.7253 1.3341/3.3353 

Note: Rates are per $100 of assessed valuation. 
( 1) Rates shown are for Real/Personal. 

Beginning in Fiscal Year 2002 all real property in the State of Maryland is assessed at 
100 percent of actual value. Previously the valuation was assessment at 40% of actual value. 
Tax rates were adjusted so that change was revenue neutral. 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 
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Year 

1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

Year 

1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

Notes: 

(3) 

(3) 

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt 
To Assessed Value and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita 

Last Ten Flscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Net Ratio of Net 
Assessed Bonded Bonded Debt to 

Population Value (1) Debt (2) 8S§essed Va!ue 

804,000 $ 24,918,829 $ 24,220 0.10 % 
813,100 25,365,173 27,730 0.11 
822,800 25,640,317 26,970 0.11 
829,400 26,459,376 25,185 0.10 
842,900 27,052,214 23,585 0.09 
854,100 27,701,359 28,985 0.10 
869,500 28,408,647 27,125 0.10 
881,000 29,324,926 30,920 0.11 
892,000 71,060,080 28,700 0.04 
903,000 75,030,387 32,125 0.04 

eBlf:l~!;; ~§QB~E'§ QQUNTY 

Net Ratio of Net 
Assessed Bonded Bonded Debt to 

Population Value (1) Debt (2) Assessed Value 

744,066 $ 14,250,000 $ 84,700 0.59 % 
752,009 14,606,000 80,530 0.55 
758,510 14,978,000 78,460 0.52 
765,520 15,385,000 107,095 0.70 
770,786 15,839,475 122,815 0.78 
777,811 16,274,756 117,980 0.72 
804,021 16,634,701 112,635 0.68 
801,515 16,873,735 107,280 0.64 
819,796 39,068,577 119,620 0.31 
883,084 40,706,364 113,655 0.28 

(1) Metropolitan District only - OOO's omitted. 
(2) Above figures for net bonded debt exclude indebtedness related to Advance Land Acquisition 

Acquisition, which Is Intended to be a revolving fund • OOO's omitted. 
(3) Beginning in Fiscal Year 2002 all real property In the State of Maryland is assessed at 100% 

of actual value. Previously the valuation was assessment at 40% of actual value. 

Source: Assessed Value and Population - Montgomery County and Prince George's County 
Governments. 
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TABLE T-8 

Net Bonded 
Debt Per 
Capita 

$ 30.12 
34.10 
32.78 
30.37 
27.98 
33.94 
31.20 
35.10 
32.17 
35.58 

Net Bonded 
Debt Per 
Capita 

$ 113.83 
107.09 
103.44 
139.90 
159.34 
151.68 
140.09 
133.85 
145.91 
128.70 
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Computation of Legal Debt Margin 

Assessed Valuation • Metropolitan District for 

Park Acquisition and Development Bonds 
As of June 30, 2003 

Park Acquisition and Development Bonds 
Guaranteed by Montgomery County 

Real Property 

flscal year ending June 30, 2003 .................................................. . $ ___!1,653,677,756 

Tax rate (cente) per each $100 of assessed valuation .... ... .. .... .. ...... .... _______ 3._6_ 

Annual Revenue from mandatory park tax levied 
for each $100 of assessed valuation ....................................................... ___ 2_.5~,7_9_5~,3_2_4_ 

Legal Debt Margin • 

Revenue available from mandatory park tax 
over next thirty years ............ ............. ......................................... $ ===7=7=3'=8=59='=72=0= 

Debt service over next thirty years on $32,125,000 bonds 

Personal Property 

$ 3,376.709,429 

9.0 

3,039,038 

$ ~==9=1.=1=71==14=0= 

and notes issued and outstanding at June 30, 2003 .................. , ...................... ...... ................................. ....... .. . 

Amount of tel\ available for debt service on future bonds ..................................................... .. ............. ..... .......... ... $ 

Assessed Valuation • Metropolitan District for 

Park Acquisition and Development Bonds 
Guaranteed by Prince George's County 

fiscal year ending June 30, 2003 ......................... .. ...... ... .............. . $ 37,840,312,000 

Tax rate (cents) per each $100 of assessed valuation ........ ................. ______ 4_._o_ 

Annual Revenue from mandatory park tax levied 
for each $100 of assessed valuation .............. ......................................... __ __,;1_5._11_36._._12""5 __ 

Legal Debt Margin -

Revenue available from mandatory park tax 
over next thirty years ............ ................ ...................................... $ ___ 4_5_4 ,_o_s3_,7_5_o_ 

Debt service over next thirty years on $113,655,000 bonds 

$ 2,866,052,000 

10.0 

2.866,052 

$ 85,981,560 """'-------
and notes Issued and outstanding at June 30, 2003 ................................. ... ..... ... .. .... .. ...... ... .. ..... . ...... .... .. .... . ..... . 

Amount of tax available for debt service on future bonds ........................................... ........... ............................... . 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments and The Maryland-National 
Capital Park and Planning Commission, Flnanco Dopartmcnt 
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TABLE T·9 

Total 

$ 75,030,387,185 

28,834,362 

865,030,860 

43 472,000 

821,558,SCBO_, 

$ 40,706,364,000 

18 002.177 

540,065,310 

147,391,000 

$ ===3.,,92,...6=7=4=,3=1 o= 
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Computation of Direct and Ovorlapplng Debt 

June 30, 2003 

Montgomery Princo George's 
County County 

Direct Debi Outstanding $ 521468,258 $ 117,8001000 
Over1applng Debt 
Montgomery County Debt 1,493,314,260 (1) 

Prince George's County Debt 765,881,553 
Washington Suburban Sanitary 
Commission Debt 982,620,956 499,054,385 
Montgomery County Revenuo 
Authority Debt 57,248,845 

Prince George's County Industrial Authority 
Lease Revenue Bonds 42,320,193 

Montgomery County Housing 
Opportunities Commission 660,826,260 

Prince George's County State 
of Ma,yland Participation Loans 836,181 

Total Overlapping Debt 3119410101321 1 ,30810921312 
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 3,246,4 781579 1,425,892,312 

Less Self-Supporting Debt 
M-NCPPC • Revenue Bonds 3,420,000 

M-NCPPC - Revenue Notes 7,431,668 
Montgomery County Debt 78,680,000 
Prince George's County Debt 214,152,281 
Washington Suburban Sanitary 
Commission Debt 982,620,956 499,054,385 
Montgomery County Revenue 
Authority Debt 57,248,845 
Prince George's County Industrial Authority 
Lease Revenue Bonds 5,905,000 

Montgomery County Housing 
Opportunities Commission 660,826,260 
Prince George's County State 
of Maryland Participation Loans 836,181 

Total Self-Supporting Debt 1 .7901227,729 719.9471847 
Net Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 1,456,250,850 $ 705,944,465 

Note: (1) Overlapping debt does not Include the debt of towns, cities and villages aggregating 
$58,482,990 in Montgomery County. Total is not available In Prince George's County. 

(1) 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments and Washington Suburban 
Sanlta,y Commission. 
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TABLE T-10 

Total Debt 
Outstanding 

$ 170,268,258 

1,493,314,260 
765,881 ,553 

1,481,675,341 

57,248,845 

42,320,193 

660,826,260 

836,181 
4,5021102,633 

4,672,370,891 

3,420,000 

7,431,668 
78,680,000 

214,152,281 

1,481,675,341 

57,248,845 

5,905,000 

660,826,260 

836 181 

21510, 175,576 
$ 2,162,195,315 
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Demographic Statistics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Per Capita Labor Unemployment 
Year Population Income (2) Force Rate 

1994 804,000 $ 37,304 462,202 2.9 
1995 813,100 38,552 463,112 2.9 
1996 822,800 39,705 474,872 2.6 
1997 829,400 40,342 466,500 2.6 
1998 842,900 43,303 467,741 2.3 
1999 854,100 45,402 476,812 1.8 
2000 869,500 49,107 481,950 1.9 
2001 881,000 50,919 490,178 2.3 
2002 892,000 52,363 503,584 2.6 
2003 903,000 54,013 505,270 2.7 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Per Capita Labor Unemployment 
Year Population (1) Income (2) Force Rate 

1994 744,066 $ 21,772 449,047 4.9 
1995 752,009 22,645 451,897 5.5 
1996 758,510 25,554 459,235 5.1 
1997 765,520 26,409 454,875 5.6 
1998 770,786 27,518 443,686 4.8 
1999 777,811 28,471 447,650 3.8 
2000 801,515 30,340 452,598 4.5 
2001 804,021 31,037 458,419 4.4 
2002 816,796 n.a. 473,387 4.1 
2003 883,084 n.a. 476,994 4.9 

Notes: 

(1) Populatlon estimates are from the U. S. Census Bureau, State and County QulckFects. 

('.) U.S. Depanment of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Regional Economics Maasuremont Division. 
The calendar per capita income figures are based on the month of December for each fiscal year. Data for 
Fiscal Years 2002 and 2003 are not currenUy available, although estimated for Montgomery County 

(3) Maryland Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulations. Represents yearly average figures. 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Govemments. 

, ,s 

% 

% 

TABLE T-11 

Registered 
__ Pupils 

113,429 
117,082 
120,291 
122,505 

(3) 125,035 
(3) 127,852 
(3) 130,689 
(3) 134,180 
(3) 138,891 
(3) 140,861 

Registered 
Pupils 

111 ,823 
116,383 
119,951 

122,831 
(3) 125,637 
(3) 129,793 
(3) 128,501 
(3) 130,713 
(3) 131,737 
(3) n.a. 
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TABLE T-12 

RaUo of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for 
General Obligation Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

MQNTGOMER::X: QQW:ln'. 
Ratio of 

Total Total Debt Service 
Fiscal Debt General to General 
Year Principal Interest Service Expenditures (1) Expenditures 

1994 $ 2,330,000 $ 1,636,139 $ 3,966,139 $ 66,779,510 5.94 % 

1995 1,970,000 1,926,774 3,896.774 71,490,267 5.45 
1996 2,260,000 1,930,963 4,190,963 72,410,180 5.79 
1997 2,370,000 1,787,569 4,167,669 81 ,925,168 5.07 
1998 1,905,000 1,678,695 3,581,695 80,278,186 4.46 
1999 1,905,000 1,704,211 3,609,211 80,746,444 4.47 
2000 2,165,000 1,758,089 3,923,089 91,300,376 4.30 
2001 2,235,000 1,744,583 3,979,!>83 104,719,634 3.80 
2002 2,645,000 1,769,734 4.414,734 97,970,370 4.51 
2003 2,630,000 1,640,666 4,270,666 93,742,819 4.56 

EB!~Q5 GEORGE'S ~Q!.!~I:!'. 
Ratio of 

Total Total Debt Service 
Fiscal Debt General to General 
Year Principal Interest Service Expenditures (1) Expenditures 

1994 $ 5,065,000 $ 4,596,086 $ 9,661,086 $ 113,066,261 8.54 % 

1995 4,615,000 5,206,174 9,821,174 123,382,881 7.96 
1996 5,040,000 4,892,298 9,932,298 114,052,704 8.71 
1997 4,685,000 4,303,838 B,988,838 118,806,646 7.57 
1998 5,480,000 6,294,373 11,774,373 127,205,1 36 9.26 
1999 5,070,000 6,281,752 11,351,752 152,205,437 7.46 
2000 5,580,000 6,383,221 11,963,221 136,691,612 8.75 
2001 5,590,000 6,050,074 11,640,074 142,126,997 8.19 
2002 6,695,000 6,306,713 13,001,713 146,179,086 8.89 
2003 28,705,000 (3) 4,998,267 33,703,267 167,760,457 20.09 (3) 

Note: (1) Total general expenditures includes General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Debt Service 
and Enterprise Funds. 

(2) Includes the refinancing of X-2 Series for $21,000,000. 

Source: Tho Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, Finance Department 
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TABLE T-13 

Property Value, Construction, and Bank Deposits 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Dollars In Millions) 

MQ-ll!.TGOMERY COUNTY 

Total 
Estimated 

Total Number Residential Commercial Real 
Fiscal of Building Construction Construction Bank Property 
Year Permits Value (1l Value (1l Deeosits Value 

1994 11,769 $ 468 $ 100 $ 7,866 $ 66,171 
1995 13,500 583 70 7,710 67,107 
1996 12,677 765 116 7,994 66,677 
1997 13,837 726 183 7,973 66,285 
1998 14,162 743 331 8,376 69,295 
1999 15,130 787 287 8,967 71,461 
2000 20,205 843 234 9,351 74,907 
2001 14,599 879 276 10,646 79,022 
2002 15,696 896 521 11,624 84,229 
2003 15,969 1,024 427 na 93,432 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Total 
Residential Estimated 

Building Residential Commercial Real 
Fiscal Permits Construction Construction Bank Property 
Year Issued Value (2} Value (2) Deeosits Value 

1994 3,864 $ 291 $ 102 $ 4,016 $ 34,929 
1995 3,604 299 98 3,941 35,576 
1996 3,205 276 417 3,929 35,404 
1997 2,815 257 168 3,854 35,828 
1998 3,430 318 190 3,873 36,104 
1999 2,582 291 286 4,260 36,424 
2000 2,219 250 156 4,250 37,244 
2001 1,584 166 424 4,442 38,268 
2002 n.a n.a. n.a. n.a 39,326 
2003 n.a n.a. n.a. n.a 42,546 

lotes: (1) Estimated market value of new construction added to the real property tax base. 

(2) Estimated value of new construction on building permits. 

lource: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 
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TABLE T-14 

Principal Taxpayers 

June 30, 2003 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

Percentage 
ofTotal 

Total Assessed Real Other 
Taxpayer Assessment Valuation Property Property 

Potomac Electric Power Company $ 831,750,280 0.96 % $ 6,282,220 $ 825,468,060 
Verizon/Bell Atlantic 704,318,184 0.81 27,221,510 677,096,674 
Montgomery Mall 221,842,146 0.26 221,541,566 300,580 
Mirant Mid-Atlantic LLC 210,666,756 0.24 69,671 ,466 140,995,290 
Washington Gas Light Company 186,819,170 0.22 186,819,170 
7501 Wisconsin Ave. LLC 155,000,000 0.18 155,000,000 
Bryant F. Foulger, Trustee 150,827,832 0.17 150,827,832 
Camaller, Anne D et al, Trustee 139,303,652 0.16 139,303,652 
Democracy Associates 132,000,000 0.15 132,000,000 
Marbeth Partnership 129,350,000 0.15 129,350,000 

Total $ 2,861 ,878,020 3.30 % $ 1,031 ,198,246 $ 1,830,679,774 

Total Assessable Base $ 86,635,192,231 100.00 % 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 

Percentage 
of Total 

Total Assessed Real Other 
Taxpayer Assessment Valuation Property Property 

Mirant Chalk Point LLC $ 471,882,953 1.08 % $ 145,332,233 $ 326,550,720 
Potomac Electric Power Company 470,354,510 1.07 3,216,930 467,137,580 
Verizon Maryland 434,806,270 0.99 434,806,270 
JKC Stadium 208,004,000 0.47 208,004,000 
Washington Gas Light Company 161 ,666,738 0.37 2,917,568 158,749,170 
Baltimore Gas & Electric Company 101,059,340 0.23 3,300 101,056,040 
Safeway Stores 100,465,063 0.23 87,241,763 13,223,300 
Summerfield Housing LTD Partnership 99,274,000 0.23 99,274,000 
Greenbelt Homes, Incorporated 85,549,134 0.20 85,549,134 
Dlgex lncorp 751100,790 0.17 75, 100,790 

Total $ 2,208,162,798 5.04 % $ 631,538,928 $ 1,576,623,870 

Total Assessable Base $ 43,832,133,344 100.00 % 

Source: Montgomery County and Prince George's County Governments. 
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rvPE or- COVERAGE AND NAME OF COMPANX 
Self ln11,1rud ,n Conjunohon with 
',1Qntgomery County se1r Insurance Fund. 

o Worl<ers' Compensation and Employefa 
Llablhty 

o Comprehensive General end Auto LlabllllV 
o Public Orflcllll Uablhty 
o Police F'rofosion~I Ll~t>hty 
o A1,1tomob1I~ Physical DamaA& 

o Excus Ll~bihty 
Commonweal!l\ Ina Co 

Insured In ConjUnctlon Wltll Montao~ry 
Cou,,tv Sell Insurance Fund: 

o Exhibition Fioot,r 
Travelers lndomn,ty Co 

o All R,~ Real and Poroonal Proporty 

L!Qller and Machinery 
FM Global 

lnsuronco purch~:;od d,rncily by the Commlaaion· 
O AilJ)Orl linbility including ProdUCII, 

Ha1111ar Keepers end Nonownod Alrc,art 
Associated Avisllon Undorwritari; 

o Public Empfovces OIMke1 Rond 
Old Repubhc Surelv Fldalllv Bond 

o Public omc1a1 Bond 
(Soc,etary-freaeurer) 
Fldolltv end Deposit Company 

o Public omc1a1 8ond (Executlvo 
Olrec1or) 
Fldefity *nd Depo111 company 

o Depositors Forgery Bond 
Fldolltv and 0el)Oslt Comp~ny 

o CSLP 88V$0X Club, LLC 
(Bowl• S\~d,um) 
Gulf ln,uranco Group 

o College P~ AvialiOn Museum 
CGU Commorclal unee Polley 

SCHCDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE 
AS OF JUNC 30, 2003 

POLICY/BOND 
NUMBER 

N/A 

CEC-10007 

T JCMB225T952693 

LP39G 

ALI 607100 

EPE/EPX-1139338 

059614 776 

3066 &9 35 

CCP 0001730 03 

CLF'04G1080 

BA5737062 

CPR6~1437 

POLICY/ElOND PERIOD 
FROM TO 

7/1/1970 

1011s,01 10/15/02 

0//01/02 07/01/03 

07/01/02 07/01/03 

01/18/03 01/18/04 

07/01/02 07/01.1:)3 

07/01/02 0110110, 

08/14/02 08/14/03 

07101/02 07/01/0~ 

04/01/03 04/01/04 

11/05/02 11/05/03 

Miscellaneous Bond& purch~;~d d11ectlv by the Commlaalon 
o Llconso and l'trmil Bond 

Poorlt;$ ln~ur11nce com~anv 1!896677 03/31/03 03/31/04 
o A9celor,\IQII & oor.elerauon Bond 

Pterloss tnsumnce Company 18896679 04/08/03 04/08/04 
o Onvcway Pennlt Bond ELl1136391 02/2S/03 02/26/04 

COVERAGE 

M~l'yl~nd S1•te and $100,000 
Fma,loyefa UabilllY: Special 
Police Capita! Cenlfo, sso,ooo 
accidont, SS00,000 dl&HM 

S5Ml111on QXCOH OVQr $3 Mlllfon 

S2(>(),000 811 risk on display S20,000, 
(blenkot 0Q11re11ate): $10,000 any 
one Item, $250 deductibl~: $25,000 
env one conveyance 

Actual cash vaiuo, brood form 
covoreQG pur Gchod1,1lc,d ll$1il1g 
with $5,000 S I.ft per oceur'ttlnce 

$500,000,000 loss llmlt 
S2SO,OOO deduct1blo per occurrence 
lncludoa 0810, PrQ!lfllms and Softw;,r,, 
Flood end Eerthqu~ke, Thi'! B&M has a 
$fi0,000 deductible 
Actual cash value, broad lorm 
coveraae per scheduled 11&\lng, 

S 10,000,000 per occurrenca, 
s10,ooo,ooo por compl0ted opor11Uon1 
$2,000.000 Poroom1I & Advor11S1ng ln1ury Aggrega1e Umit, 
S500,000 Hun~,rskcepets' eaeh loss llmll 
$500.000 HMgnrakee~era' eneh alrcron limit 

S100,000 

$500.000 

$50,000 

Sb0.000 

$500,000 Building Contents 
$6,SOo,ooo 8ulldlng 
S2,000.000 Gtno"I L1~b1hly 
$1,000,000 Avtomobllo Llabllltv 
A1,110 Phyllc.ftt Oomago· ssoo Colllalon deducllblo 

S 100 ComprchOnslvo doductlble 
S100,000 Garage Keepers Llabllltv· $2~ d1duc11blo 

S300,000 8or11ner Helicoptwr 
$J10,000 11117 CurU; Jenny P!Me 

s,,ooo Orlvew~y Entrance 6724 Nacdwood Rd., Rockvlllo 

$12,600 67:1.4 NeBdWood Road 
$3,500 6710 NeedWood Road 

source. The Maryland-Nat,on~I CaPilat Perl< and PISnnlnQ Commlulon, De~artmenl 01 Human Resourcoa Rnd Mana11em,nt 
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TABLET-15 

ANNUAL 
PREMIUM 

$ 40,470 

$ 850 

s 101,430 

$ 75,176 

$ 4,910 

s 1,800 

$ 176 

$ 442 

s 44,239 

s 5,351 

s 100 

$ 126 
$ __!QQ_ 

5 ?75,167. 



THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
Tabte T-16 

SUPPLEMENTAL ENTERPRISE INFORMATkJN 

Condensed Sched~ot Reve,:iues and Expenses 
For the Fisca, Year Ended June 30, 2003 

R~~a!!Qnal Facilili~ 

1"1QNTGOME8Y COUNTY 

C<Jnference Goff Ice Indoor Park 
Centes-s Courses RinKS Tennis Faciities To~ls 

Operat;ng Revenues s 366,179 s 5,597,998 s 4,068,197 $ 1,0S6,707 $ 1,556,569 $ 12,685,650 
Operatng Expenses Before Deprecia1ion 484,660 6,159,226 3,587,393 757,368 1,274,058 12,262.705 

Operating loooma {Loss) 

Before Depreciation (118,481) (561,228) 480,604 339,339 282,511 422.945 
Depreciation 35,101 673,417 710,791 55,273 117,49a 1,592,DaO 

Operating lnoome (Loss) (153,582) (1,234,645) (229,987) 284,0€6 165,013 (1,169,135) 
Noooperating Revenues (Expanses) (220,236) (454,378) 56,2€0 35,540 (582,814) 
Transfe: of General Govem'Dllnt La'XI 
O;>erating Transfers In (Oul) 60,260 54,291 22,859 4,268 {154,746) 6,932 

Net lnooma (Loss} $ (73,322) S (1,400,590) $ (661,506} S 344,594 S 45,807 $ (1,745,017) 

f>RlNCE GEORGE'S CQU'JTY 

I\) Equestrian 
0 

Center/ Trap and Sports ar.d 
Mullipurp~ Golf Ice Regional S.ceet Learn rg Bladensbt.Vg 

Ai!EQ.!!_ Arena Courses Ri'lkS Pan<S Cenler ~lex Marina Totals 

Operating Reve:iues s 124,687 $ 1,240,700 s 2,077,919 $ 246,782 $ 270,905 $ 1,081,788 s 1,985,901 s 25,527 s 7,054,.209 
Opera.ling Expenses Before Depredation 187,644 2,598,118 2,393,940 441,826 257,012 1,170,951 4,.244,074 239.050 11,532,615 

Opera.ling Income (Loss) 
Before Depreciation (62,957) (1,357.418) (316,021) (195,044) 13,893 (89,163) (2,258, 173) (213,523) (4,478,406) 

Deprec'.alion 118,106 596,124 118,674 91,317 74,696 1 t,033 1,118,309 52,980 2,181,239 
Operating Income (Loss) (181 ,063) (1,953,542) (434,695) (286,361) (60,803) (100,100) (3,376,482) (266,503) (6,659,645) 

Nonoperaling Revenues (Expenses) 808 - 2,056 19,587 9,767 32,218 
Operalr,g Transfers In (Out) 166,761 1,413,547 340,604 73,998 85,793 35.219 2,220,037 312,055 4,648,014 

Net Income (Loss) s ~ (14,302) S (539,99~ $ (93,2832 $ ~ 12,363! $ 27,046 s !64,97~ $ {1.136,858) S 55,319 $ {1,979,413) 

Source: The Maryiand-National Capilal Park and Planning Commission, Finance Department 



2001 M Street NW 

Washington, DC 20036 

Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Pcrform(?d in Accordance 

With Government Auditi,ig Standards 

To The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission: 

We have audited the financial statements of The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning 
Commission (the Commission) as of and for the year ended Jtu1e 30, 2003, and have issued our 
report thereon dated September 12, 2003. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission's financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and, accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Jn!.emal Control Over Financial Repqrti.M 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Commission's internal control over 
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on internal control over 
financial reporting. Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting would not 
necessarily disclose all matters in intemal control over financial reporting that might be material 
weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more 
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements 
in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur 
and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of perf onning their 
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving internal control over financial reporting and 
its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Commissioners, management 
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and ·should not 
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

September 12, 2003 
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Cover: 

The Bladensburg Waterfront Park forms the centerpiece of community revitalization in the "Port 
Towns" of Bladensburg, Cottage City, and Colmar Manor, and highlights major efforts to restore 
the Anacostia River. Built with a combination of Commission, County, State and federal funds, 
the park features a visitors' center, playground, boat launching ramp, and canoe/kayak storage 
facility, as well as historic theme exhibits and fishing piers. Canoes and kayaks are available for 
rental, and canoe and pontoon boat tours are conducted by park naturalists. A variety of nature 
conservation and recreational activities and classes are offered for patrons of all ages. 

Page 9: 

The Rollingcrest-Chillum indoor splash pool is a unique attraction featuring water slides, four 
levels of swimming, a lap pool, and classes and instruction for patrons of all ages ... Volunteers 
and staff provide excellent customer service at Brookside Gardens Visitors Center Information 
Desk . . . People of all abilities enjoy the tranquil settings and accessible paths at picturesque 
Brookside Gardens . . . Birds-I-View is a public art project that celebrates area artists, forges 
partnerships with businesses and the community, and benefits youth art programs by bringing 74 
creatively designed bird sculptures to the people of Prince George's County . . . Historic 
Woodlawn Manor Park in Sandy Spring includes several cabins and outbuildings, landmarks on 
the Underground Railroad . . . The Prince George's Sports and Learning Complex has emerged 
as one of the top venues for indoor track meets on the East Coast . . . The Sports/Permits 
Division administers a diversified program of countywide sports through a Boys and Girls Club 
program . . . Some young visitors to Wheaton Regional Park play the water fountain game. 

Photo Credits: 

Steve Abramowitz (Prince George's County): Cover and pages 9, 20, 92, and 100. 
Francine Bethea (Montgomery County): pages 1, 9, 88, 96, and 104. 
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THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL 

PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

8787 Georgia Avenue 
Silver Spring, Maryland 2091 O 

14 7 41 Governor Oden Bowie Drive 
Upper Marlboro, Maryland 20772 


	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


